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To Our Customers, Shareholders and Employees:
In 2004, Grant Prideco, Inc. posted its best earnings performance since becoming a public company in April 2000. Each of cur three
operating divisions — Drilling Products and Services, Tubular Technology and Services and ReedHycalog™ — delivered improved
results. The Company’s strong performance was driven partly by improved market conditions, &s the worldwide cil and gas industry
experienced increased drilling activity, particularly in the second half of the year. With this upturn, we benefited from higher demand
for our drill stem products, premium engineered connections, drill bits and new products and services as well as improved pricing.
Positive market conditions, however, are only a part of the story behind our successful performance. Grant Prideco’s results are
directly linked to critical steps we took in late 2003 and early 2004 to improve operating efficiencies and financial performance — steps
essential to delivering higher shareholder value regardless of industry environment. To better manage our cost structure and realize
operational efficiency, we launched an initiative to identify and eliminate excess manufacturing capacity in our Drilling Products and
Services division and restructured our Tubular Technology and Services division to focus on cost-containment and significant growth
opportunities. We strengthened our product lines with two strategic acquisitions at ReedHycalog, giving us better control of key com-
ponents integral to the manufacturing of drill bits and expanding our product offering. We invested in a significant expansion of our
Singapore facility, which will deliver cost efficiencies in 2005. And, we dramatically improved our ability to cost-effectively and con-
sistently produce products that meet and exceed customer expectations through continued global plant automation and equipment

modernization.

Focus for 2005: Develop Industry-Leading Technologies, Maintain Financial Strength and Improve Customer Focus
Looking ahead, we are optimistic about the overall outlook for drilling activity and the demand for Grant Prideco products, technolo-
gy and services. As we begin 2005, the number of active drilling rigs continues at a relatively strong pace, and our backlag stands at
a record level.

Along with increased rig activity, we continue to benefit from the introduction of new products within all our divisions. These prod-
uct introductions continue to generate exceptional revenue growth and margin expansion. In the past few years, we have taken major
steps, such as the acquisition of ReedHycalog, to expand the breadth and depth of our product offering across various stages of the
drilling process, positioning us to better participate in the complete drilling cycle. As shown on pages 11 and 12 of this repart, our
products and services are now utilized in nearly every major phase of the drilling of onshore and offshore wells. The footprints of our
technology are leaving a significant impression on the industry and our customers. We remain committed to continuing our reputa-
tion as a technology-driven, customer-focused company.

in 2005, our strategic focus and business plan continues to be underpinned by two major pricrities — to develop industry-leading
technologies that address our customers' needs and to maintain our financial strength and discipline. Technology plays a fundamen-
tal role in our growth plans, and we are aggressively pursuing research, engineering and development projects, such as continued
expansion of our premium drill stem, tubular and premium connections and ReedHycalog drill bit technology, aimed at delivering inno-
vative solutions and superior products to our customers. We will also continue to focus on improved production and capacity plan-
ning to enhance our ability to deliver products when and where our customers need them in a cost effective manner. And, we are
firmly committed to maintaining the Company's financial strength and discipline so that we can capitalize on growth opportunities to




profitably expand our product lines and areas of service. More information about our growth plans is provided by each

of our division presidents throughout this ennual report.

Dedicated to Quality, Health, Safety, the Environment and Ethics

As we grow Grant Prideco, we remain steadfast in our dedication to delivering cost-effective solutions, quality products
and services, protecting the health and safety of employees and respecting the environment. From 1999 to 2004, Grant
Prideco employees achieved an impressive 80% decrease in recordable incidents, a 75% reduction in lost time incidents
and a 72% decrease in direct claims cost. We also strengthened our environmental efforts with a comprehensive com-
pliance policy and audit program for our facilities to further improve our performance. We appreciate our employees’

hard work, and we place top priority on fostering a culture that encourages and rewards innovative thinking, safety,

teamwork and technical skills development.

As a publicly held company doing business in over 103 countries, we will never sidestep our adherence to the highest levels of ethical
business practices, honesty and integrity. To bolster our commitment to strong corporate governance, we have continued to expand com-
puter-based training for ethics, corporate governance and compliance for all employees. Our management, operations and financial teams
are dedicating significant amounts of time implementing the Sarbanas-Oxley Act, ensuring that the proper controls are in place as we con-

tinue to operate a disciplined and well-managed company.

Stepping Boldly Toward 0u€ Future
Since 2002, we have embarked dn\é major transformation of Grant Prideco by addressing all facets of our operations and business — from
the products we provide to the way in which we offer them. Thanks to thé support and efforts of our team, we are gaining momentum
and delivering the desired results. But, we still have roam for improvement. As we make steady progress, we will keep you informed of
our achievements.

We value our partnerships with our customers and shareholders and extand our appreciation for your continued support. We look for-
ward to keeping you updated on our progress throughout 2005 and beyond, as we step boldly toward a bright future.

Sincerely,

Michae! McShane
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

March 31, 2005
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The majority of our future capital expenditures
and research projects will continue to focus on
efficiency improvements and product line
extensions.

A top pricrity is to maintain the Company's
financial strength by managing our debt. Cur
financial flexibility enables us to fund capitai
investment programs as well as consider
attractive acquisitions. We will continue to
evaluate strategic acquisitions that offer high-
return potential, support growth opportunities
for our core businesses, open new markets and

strengthen our market leadership positions.

MATTHEW D. FITZGERALD
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Benefiting from improved oilfield market
conditions, Grant Prideco achieved record
financial performance in 2004, Revenues
increased by 18% to $946 million and
income from continuing  operations
increased more than 10 times to $65 mil-
lion. Both of these figures represent the
highest totals since our initial public offer-
ing in 2000. Recognizing that we cannot
control market conditions, however, our
management team continues to focus on internal factors that can lead
to improved efficiencies, lower costs and higher returns.

During 2004, we took several major steps that will improve the
Company's operating income margins, regardless of business condi-
tions in the future. For instance, in early 2004 we initiated a rationali-
zation of our Drilling Products and Services’ manufacturing capacity,
which is expected to provide up to $12 million in annual savings.
Additionally, a restructuring of the Tubular Technology and Services
segment is anticipated to reduce yearly costs by $6 million. We also
relocated our Houston headquarters to be closer to our divisional
offices in The Woodlands, Texas, decreasing administrative costs by

$1 million annually.

Strong Cash Flow from Operations and Financial Discipline

In 2004, cash flow from operations totaled $113 miilion, up 36% from
2003. During the year, we utilized the Company’s strong cash flow to
pay down deht. By year-end 2004, we had reduced the Company’s total
debt by $56 million and boosted our cash reserves to $48 million. We
also made substantial progress on our warking capital by reducing our

days sales outstanding by 16 days.




Buring 2004, the Company invested $38 million on capital expendi-
tures and an additional $20 million on research and engineering. All
major projects undergo a rigorous financial analysis to ensure they
meet the Company's investment return objectives. Two major projects
completed in 2004 were the expansions of our Chinese drill pipe oper-
ation and our Singapare drill bit facitity. Our major research efforts are
centered on development of product line extensions in our Tubular
Technology and Services division and expanding our premium drill stem
products and ReedHycalag™ drill bit technology.

The outlook for 2005 is encouraging: The backiog for our products —
an impartant indicator of current demand ~ grew to a record $271 mil-
lion at year-end 2004, up 124% from the end of 2003. We are experi-
encing strong demand in each of our ségments, with our drill pipe
backlog nearing record levels at improved prices. Whatever market
conditions prevail in 2005, we will continue to stress sound financial
discipline throughout our operations. Our goal is to manage the
Company’s growth to avoid the “hoom to bust” cycle prevalent in our

Financial Highlights

BN

industry. We remain focused on containing costs, managing manufac-
turing capacity and boosting utilization rates at our facilities. Qur divi-
sions also are pursuing improved production planning to better match
production schedules with our global sales efforts, delivering products

to customers when and where they need them.

Significant Business Transformation

During the past two years, Grant Prideco has undergone a significant
transformation in its worldwide operations, management and vision
for growth. The acquisition of ReedHycalog in late 2002 strengthened
our business mix with its industry-leading drill bit technologies.
Through ReedHycalog, we now participate in the early phases of the
drilling cycle, giving the Company mare operational balance. The
Company also has divested non-core businesses, allowing us to better
focus on our business segments with the highest growth opportunities.
These and other steps give the Company a strong competitive position

to deliver lang-term value to our shareholders.

{in Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Revenues $ 945643 § 803818 $ 608,330 § 688036 § 451,659
Gross Profit 384,836 270,248 137,170 163,137 54,552
Operating Incame (Loss} 141,672 45,297 46,995 59,978 (11,029)
income {Loss) From Continuing Operations 64,793 4,857 13,690 24,809 {14,718)
Diluted Earnings Per Share From

Continuing Operations $ 0.51 $ 0.04 $ 012 $ 022 ¢ {0.13)
Diluted Weighted

Average Shares Outstanding 126,091 123,401 112,854 110,884 109,000
Total Assets {at end of period} $ 1,344,466 $ 1262061 § 1315349 $ 915598 $ 892564
Total Debt {at end of period) 381,954 437,926 495,503 266,178 257,264
Capital Expenditures 37,879 41,418 45,781 37,212 20,891

{a) The following table reconciles reported operating income (loss) to operating income, before charges; and EBITDA, before charges:

Reported Operating Income (Loss) $ 162§ 45297 % 4689  § 59,376 $ (11029
Add back charges -
Included in cost of sales — 6,425 — 10,788 10,570
Included in other charges 9,035 31,398 7,045 33,755 11,044
Operating Income, Befare Charges 150,707 83120 54,040 104,520 10,585
Add back depreciation and amortization 43,220 44,688 28,831 32,695 28,079
EBITDA, Befare Charges $ 193927 $§ 127808 $ 82,871 § 137215 3 38,664

{b) EBITDA and operating income before charges are non-GAAP measures and should not be used as substitute calculations under U.S. GAAP, in particular operating income {toss} and net income
{loss}. The Company believes that EBITDA and operating income before charges are useful to investars because they provide consistent measures of performance of the Company's underlying results
of operations, excluding the impact of certain non-operational items. Operating income, before charges is calculated by taking reported operating income {loss), adding back charges. EBITDA, before
charges is calculated by taking reported operating income (loss), adding back charges and depreciation and amortization.



{Below) Grant Prideco’s industry lea
ing R&D program paid dividends in
2004 with the introduction of Viper'
targe bore connectors and HFR-3, th
newest riser connector design.
(Below, right) Viper connectors a
sub-arc welded to large hore pipe
to meet a wide range of offshore

applications.

JIM BREIHAN
President

Right Direction”

Our performance in 2004 demonstrated a focus to take steps to provide technelogi-
caily superior products and services to customers and deliver fong-term, profitable
growth to sharehelders.

Qur Premium Threading and TCA product lines and services are sold almost
exclusively through distributors in North America. We value our long-term, stron
relationships with our distributers and will continue to ensure that we meet thei
requirements for superior quality products. These beneficial partnerships are
essential as we move aggressively to grow revenues and improve margins and
profitability in 2005 and beyond.



Tubular Technology and Services

For 2004, Tubular Technology and Services' revenues were relatively flat at $226 miilion, however, operating income margins rose to nearly
10%, a significant improvement from 3% in 2003. The dramatic increase in profitability was driven by the overall upturn in worldwide
drilling activity as well as substantial benefits realized from the successful integration of the former Marine Products and Services Division
with Tubular Technology and Services. We also sold Texas Arai™, which provided manufacturing and precision machining of APl and pre-
mium couplings. Through this consclidation, our division is better focused on valug-added premium connections and associated premium
tubular products and accessories, which offer long-term, profitable growth opportunities.

Amang the benefits from this rearganization are improved interactions between our 10 manufacturing facilities worldwide, closer coor-
dination of our sales efforts to address customers’ project requirements and reduced operating costs. We expect to realize annual savings

of $6 million as a result of this rearganization, which will strengthen our earnings perfarmance throughout the business cycle.

Record Production Levels and Product Offering Expansion

As oit and gas companies boosted their drilling activity in 2004, existing inventories of oil country tubular goods, line pipe and related prod-
ucts were quickly exhausted. Our TCA™ facility in Oklahoma quickly responded to customers’ needs and ramped up production for quick
turnaround of specialty tubular products. The second half of 2004 also showed a marked increase in sales of Premium Pipe Pak™, resuit-
ing in record profitability for this segment.

Reflecting our commitment to cutting-edge technologies, we continued to commercialize new products and services in 2004. In the XL
Systems™ product line, our new proprietary Viper weld-on connector
has opened new markets in the Middle East for Grant Prideco. This
connection offers an advanced, cost-effective option for a variety of
chatlenging offshare applications. In conjunction with Viper, our
teams also developed proprietary techniques for welding the Viper
and other XL connectors.

In 2004, our Premium Threading business introduced the ATS-E™
semi-premium connection — the first thread-sealing connection to be
tri-axially performance-tested to new ISQ 13679 standards. TCA con-

tinues to develop proprietary products for difficult drilling environ-

ments, including sour service resistance and super strong/super
tough grades such as TCA 140-Q1™ and TCA 150-Q1™. These grades allow operators to use thinner pipe, reduce weight and offer a cost
effective solution in complex tubular applicatians.

Encouraging Signs for Strong Demand in 2005

In 2005, we see encouraging signs for continued strong demand for many of our product lines. While little change is expected in the Gulf
of Mexico, with higher rig activity elsewhere, we are focusing our efforts to remain the industry leader in providing premium tubular and
connection products that meet and exceed our customers’ needs. Lowering our cost structure remains @ major initiative for us during 2005,
and we continue to address additional cost-savings measures that will bring added value to customers and shareholders.

Qur Tube-Alloy™ and Atlas Bradford® product lines of downhole tubular accesscries are highly leveraged to the Gulf of Mexico market,
which has been essentially flat during the past few vears. We are well positioned to service customers if drilling activity in the Gulf picks
up during 2005. In the meantime, to strengthen this business, we are steadily expanding sales activities in key international markets and
evaluating further opportunities for efficiency gains, particularly in manufacturing.

in 2005, our teams are committed to continuous improvement and performance in the areas of quality, health, safety and the environ-
ment. We have no higher priority than keeping our employees and customers safe and protecting our environment. We are excited about
the combined talents and technical expertise in our reorganized division and will continue to take all the right steps to deliver additional
value to customers and shareholders.




(Below) In 2004, Grant Prideco mamL
factured the industry’s first welded
landing string to support two millior{
pound casing loads.

(Below, right} With over 4.4 million
feet shipped, the XT® connection

remains Grant Prideco’s premier dri7

pipe connection.

DAVID BLACK
President

——loday’s Technology”

Driven by an upturn in drilling activity, drilf pipe inventeries reached equilibrium
in 2004, We experienced increased demand for drill pipe and other drill stem
products, including heavyweight drill pipe, driil collars and toa! joints.

Striving to deliver higher value to our customers and increase margins, we
continye to engineer and offer premium products to meet today’s toughest

drilling demands.




Drilling Products and Services

In 2004, revenues from Drilling Products and Services rose 27% to $391 miilion, while operating income margins topped 23%, up from 6%
in 2003. Our improved profitability reflected higher drilling activity and our employees’ dedicated efforts to enhance manufacturing efficien-
cies and manage increased costs for raw materials, Qur manufacturing facilities ramped up production to meet customers’ increasing prod-
uct demand. Compared to 2003, we produced 24% maore footage of drill pipe in 2004.

Improved Manufacturing and Cost Efficiencies

To deliver long-term, sustained value to all stakeholders, we faunched a major effort in 2004 to enhance profit margins by improving our
manufacturing efficiencies. By consolidating our Canadian drill pipe operations into our world-class facility in Navasota, Texas, we reduced
excess capacity, achieved higher utilization rates and lowered production costs. For customers, this realignmant enhances our ability to
provide exceptional quality products at competitive costs and respond to their needs worldwide.

In 2004, the global market for stesl — the basic component for drill pipe and other drill stem products — remained challenging. Higher
demand for stee! fueled by economic growth worldwide led to significantly increased stee! prices. Qur equity interest in Voest Alping
Tubulars ~ an Austrian rolling mill - helped us mitigate potentially adverse effects of tight supply on our customers and rising production
costs. As the only drill pipe manufacturer vertically integrated from rolling mill through drilt pipe manufacturing, we are uniquely positioned

to serve customers in a challenging market environment.

Through our two joint ventures, JSG and Tianjin Grant Prideco {TGP), we continued to help meet China’s growing demand for drill pipe
by supplying aver 50% of its domestic drill pipe needs. A vertical
integration initiated in 2003 contributed to our strong performance in
2004 by adding upset-to-grade tube capabilities, reducing costs and
improving operating income. n 2005, we will further expand our
product offering by adding heavy weight drill pipe and accessories to
our Chinese manufacturing capability.

Innovative Products and Applications

To stay a step ahead of customers’ needs for innovative praducts, we

continued to invest in research and development to design value-

adding drill stem products for use in challenging applications, includ-
ing sour service, extended reach, high torque and high temperature/high pressure. in addition, leading-edge technologies, including high
tensile strength landing strings and purpose-built deepwater strings, expand the market for our drill stem products. For example, our team
designed and manufactured a welded two million-pound capacity landing string with a customized CT-M57™ connection for the Tahiti proj-
ect in the Gulf of Mexico. CT-M57 can withstand external pressures exceeding 25,000 psi and internal pressures nearing 30,000 psi. The

record-setting landing string and connection enabled the operator to realize significantly reduced drilling and completion costs.

2005: Exceed Customers’ Needs and Pursue Operating Efficiencies

As operators seek to meet the world's growing energy needs, rig activity in 2005 is anticipated to rise modestly. Demand for drill pipe will
track the higher rig count, and we expect to be a leading participant in this increased market demand. We are committed to further improve
operating efficiencies and will take additional steps to reduce costs. We place the highest importance on providing a safe work environ-
ment for our employees and delivering superior product quality, reliability and service to our customers. In all areas of our business, Drilling
Products and Services is positioned for continued improvement in 2005 and beyond.




(Below) ReedHycalog’s patented
powder forge process enables a
unigue cutting structure that drills
further, taster.

(Below, right) The marleet leader in
wi-center drill bits, ReedHycalog

offers a range of solutions for hole-

opening applications.

JOHN DEANE
President

The Challenges”

The develapment of state-of-the-art technolegies is the liteblood of our busines
New product launches have contributed significantly to ReedHycalog's growth
and accounted for over §0% of our n'evénues in 2004,

In 2005, we remain focused an our major goals: To tackle customers’ drillin
challenges by investing in innovative, cost-effective technologies and seek gr
itable, emerging growth oppartunities avound the world. We also will solidify
strong market position in the bi-center/hole-opening business and will contin
to evaluate strategic acquisitions that complement our product lines and offe:

high-return value tor customers and shareholders.




ReedHycalog™

During 2004, revenues from ReedHycalog, the Company's drill bit business segment, grew by 26% to $327 million compared to $259 mil-
tion in 2003, while operating margins remained essentially tevel at 22%. Revenue growth was led by higher performance in the U.S. and
strong progress in the Middle East, Canada and the CIS, a5 our results surpassed the overall 10% increase in year-to-year worldwide rig
activity.

We maintained our commitment to provide the best technological drilling solutions in the industry with key product developments.
During 2004, we broadened the proprietary TReX™ offering, launched a range of rotary steerable and directional products and brought
Titan™, TuffDuty™ and the unigue TuffCutter™ roller cone products to market. We also made twa strategic acquisitions in our fixed cutter
product line to strengthen our leadership position.

A Tradition of Technological Breakthroughs
During 2004, ReedHycalog continued its tradition of delivering innovative technologies to customers with the full commercial launch of the
TReX drill bit line. First introduced in 2003, TReX represents a technological breakthrough in PDCs. This in-house developed, multi-patent-
ed product improves drilling efficiencies by enhancing abrasion resistance by as much as 400% with a PDC cutter more heat-tolerant than
conventional premium cutters. TReX dramatically improves customers’ drilling efficiencies, particularly in challenging formations. Respanse
to TReX has exceeded our expectations: Nearly 95% of our fixed cutter products use this technology.

As part of our growth plans for TReX, in 2004 ReedHycalog purchased the PDC manufacturing capabilities of Utah-based Novatek
International. This strategic acquisition enables us to boost capacity,
reduce costs for our fixed cutter requirements, provides greater con-

trol over this core competency for the business and leverages our

long-term relationship with the Novatek operation.

In 2004, our roller cone segment continued to develop and launch
key technologies and products, including TuffCutter, TuffDuty and
Titan. Titan was specifically designed for the more demanding
requirements of large diameter holes in the toughest applications.
TuffDuty provides increased bit durability, incorporating our

advanced bearing, seal and cutting structure technologies. TuffCutter

bits utilize a revolutionary methad of forming the teeth of the bit and

their hardmetal components are far more robust than their predecessors.
To better serve our global customers, we completed in 2004 an expansion and major upgrade of our Singapore facility, where we manufac-
ture roller cone bits. The expansion enabled us to upgrade the plant's heat-treating technology and realign our manufacturing to reduce pro-

duction costs. Singapore is now focused on the TuffDuty drill bit product line while Titan and TuffCutter bits are produced in Houston.

Leadership in Bi-Center Market with DPI Acquisition

To expand our product lines, add geographic diversification and broaden our customer base, in 2004 we acquired Diamond Products
International (DPI), the market leader for bi-center drill bits used for specialized hole-opening applications. The purchase of DPI, which has
a 50% share of the bi-center bit market, expands ReedHycalog's presence in the bi-center bit market and enables us to benefit from man-
ufacturing and operations synergies with our market-leading fixed cutter technologies.

2005: Investing to Meet Customers’ Technical Challenges
Bevelopment of new technologies and refinement of existing products are top priorities at our research facilities. In 2005, we will continue to
introduce new products, including the next generation of smaller Sabre bits specifically designed for onshare directional drilling and other slim-
hole applications. Enhanced sales efforts will promote the TReX, TuffCutter, TuffDuty and Titan bits to realize increased revenues.

Every day, ReedHycalog employess provide exceptional, top performance drilling products and services to customers with a focus on
superior quality and the highest standards for safety, health and environmental care. Our team is driven to succeed and is enthusiastic about
stepping up to the challenges in 2005 and beyond.
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Developed by Tubular
Technology and
Services, the new
Viper™ connector is
a high-strength
weld-on casing and
conductor connection
designed to meet a
variety of offshore
applications.

Vacuum Insulated
Tubing (VIT™) is a
high-performance,
double-walled tubu-
lar product used
wherever tempera-
ture isolation is
required to address
downhole production
problems.

Custom engineered
threaded and coupled
riser connectors from
Tubular Technology
and Services are
ideal for deepwater
production, interven-

tion, worlcover and
landing operations.




Drilling Products and Sevices

Manufactured by
Drilling Products and
Services hoth in the
U.S. and China, tool
joints are high-
strength, high-pres-
sure threaded pipe
connections
designed to sustain
the weight of the
drill stem and repeat-
ed make-up and
break-out cycles.
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Designed specifically
to carry the very high
tensile loads gener-
ated by long, heavy
casing strings
Drilling Products and
Services' landing
strings significantly
extend the deepwa-
ter drilling and com-
pletion envelope.

Drilling Products and
Services’ gas-tight
XT-M™ connections
allow one string to he
used for drilling, dril}
stem testing,
workover operations,

completion operations
and underbalanced
drilling.

Roller cone technology
from ReedHycalog™
includes Titan™,
which allows opera-
tors to drill large
diameter hales further
and faster.

ReedHycalog™

The SpeedReamer
CSD® drill bit's patent-
ed design allows it to
drill through casing
equipment to save
significant time and
costs.

In deepwater appli-
cations where contin-
gency casing strings
are required,
BiCentrix™ hits
enable operators to
produce hole diame-
ters larger than the
previous hole section

or casing string. \




Consolidated Statements of Operations (in thousands, except per share data)

Grant Prideco, Inc. Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Revenues $ 945,643 $ 803,818 $ 609,390
Operating Expenses:

Cost of sales 560,807 533,572 472,220

Sales and marketing 128,585 106,589 27,828

General and administrative 85,071 69,251 52,112

Research and engineering 20,473 17,711 3,190

Other charges 9,035 31,398 7,045

803,971 758,521 562,395
Operating Income 141,672 45,297 46,995
interest Expense (41,889) (43,871 (27,040
Other Income (Expense), Net 398 11,164 (982)
Equity Income (Loss) in Unconsolidated Affiliates 1,565 (478) 5,342
(39,926) (33,185) (22,680}

Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes and

Mincrity Interests 101,746 12,112 24,315
Income Tax Provision (31,710 (4,239} (7,574}
Income from Continuing Operations Before Minority Interests 70,036 7873 16,741
Minority Interests (5,243} (3,218) (3,051)
income from Continuing Operations 64,793 4,657 13,690
Income {Loss]} from Discontinued Operations, Nat of Tax {9,527 533 (644}
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 55,266 5,190 13,046
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, Net of Tax — — {6,412)
Net Ircome $ 55,266 $§ 5190 § 6634
Basic Net Income Per Share:

Income fram continuing operations $ 053 § 004 § 0712

Income {loss) from discontinued operations {0.08) — —

Cumulative effect of accounting change — — {0.06)

Net income $ 045 § 004 § 006

Basic weighted average shares outstanding $ 123,325 $ 121,646 $111,459

Diluted Net Income Per Share:

Income from continuing operations $ 051 $ 004 $ 012

Income {loss) from discontinued operations (0.07) — —

Cumulative effect of accounting change — — (0.086)

Net income $ 044 $ 004 $ 008

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 126,091 123,401 112,854




Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows (in thousands)

Grant Prideco, Inc. Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Cash Flows From QOperating Activities:
Net income $ 55266 § 5190 $ 6634
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activitigs:
Cumulative effect of accounting change — — 6412
Loss on sale of discontinued operations 11,746 — —
(ain on sale of businesses, net (778) (3,393) —
Depreciation and amortization 43,220 44,688 28,831
Non-cash portion of other charges 6,010 31,247 2,580
Bad debt expense 3.844 1,948 1,106
Deferred income tax 20,096 (16,133) (3.317)
Equity {income) loss in unconsolidated affiliates, net of dividends 6,525 14127 10,746
Stack-based compensation expense 4,660 2,866 2135
Deferred compensation expense 1,682 1,995 1,526
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries, net of dividends 2,103 1,326 2,360
{Gain) loss on sale of assets (4,466) 645 535
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of
businesses acquired (36,742) {1,168) 58,078
Net cash provided by operating activities 113,170 82,938 118,686
Cash Flows From investing Activities:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired {33.833) (8,272) (265,172)
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash disposed 2,180 30,364 . —
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations, net of cash disposed 19,859 — —
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated affiliates (4,167) (5.459) (3,794)
Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment {37.879) {41,418) {45,781)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 8,459 981 91
Net cash used in investing activities (45,381) {23,804) {313,836)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Repayments on revolver debt, net {14,320) {42,982) (2,391)
Barrowings on debt — — 226,635
Repayments on debt (49,781) {17,608} (17,098)
Purchases of treasury stock {2,508) (2,388) (2,279)
Proceads from stock option exercises 25,791 566 1,173
Employee stock purchase plan purchases 928 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities {39,890) 62,412) 206,040
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash a3 630 504
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 28,322 (2,648} 11,494
Cash at Beginning of Year 19,230 21,878 10,384
Cash at End of Year $ 47552 $ 19,230 $ 21878




Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets (in thousands)

Grant Prideco, Inc. December 31,
2004 2003

Current Assets $ 596,767 $ 510863
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 244,305 251,236
Goodwill 393,993 396,944
Other Assets 109,401 103,018

Total Assets $ 1,344,466 $ 1262081
Current Liabilities $ 195501 -$ 186,255
Long-Term Debt 371,773 426,853
Other Long-Term Liabilities 65,651 62,839
Stockholders’ Equity 705,541 606,114

Total Liabilities and Stockhalders’ Equity $ 1,344,466 $ 1,262,061




prporate Information

)\ n S_A
Uavid Buti
Sohn R. B
el |
) 1 R. Black

Philip :

vatew 0 bggecald |

Uan M. Latham



gprporate Directory

BW_YOIK |




UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004

O  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 001-15423

Grant Prideco, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 76-0312499
(State or Other Jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer
of Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)
400 N. Sam Houston Pkwy. East 77060
Suite 900 (Zip Code)

Houston, Texas
(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

(281) 878-8000

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities to be registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange On Which Registered

Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 403 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act
Rule 12b-2). Yes No O

Aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by nonaffiliates of the
registrant: $1,450,165,174. This figure is estimated as of June 30, 2004, at which date the closing price of the
registrant’s shares on the New York Stock Exchange was $18.46 per share.

Number of shares of Common Stock outstanding as of March 18, 2005: 124,636,659
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Listed below is the document parts of which are incorporated herein by reference and the part of this
report into which the document is incorporated:

(1) Proxy Statement for 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders — Part 111




{tem 1.

Item 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.

Item 5.

Item 6.
Item 7.

Item 7A.

Item 8.
Ttem 9.

Item 9A.

Item 10.
Item 11.
Item 12.

Item 13.
Item 14.

Item 15.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1
BUSIIESS .« © v ot ettt ittt ettt et et e e e e e
GEnEral . o oo e e
Drilling Products and Services Segment . ...... ...
Drill Bits SEEMENT. . .« oottt
Tubular Technology and Services Segment ............ ... i ...
Other SEZMENT. .« .ottt et et e
Other Business Datad .. ...ttt
PIOPETLIES .« e oot et et e et e e e e e e
Legal ProCeedings ... vvvett et ettt et e e
Submission of Maters to a Vote of Security Holders ............ ... ... ... .....

PART I

Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities ... .......oviveiii i

Selected Financial Data ... ..ot
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Gemeral . o oo
Market Trends and Outlook . ... .o c ot
Future Market Trends and Expectations. . ......c.v oot
Results of OPETations . ... ......tut it
Liquidity and Capital RESOUICES .. ... .vvvve e et e
Related-Party Transactions. . .. .....o.vuvortnenronn ot
Off-Balance Sheet Financing ............... e
Recent Accounting Pronouncements . .. ...o.vv ettt oo
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates ...l
Forward-Looking Statements and Exposures ... oo
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk .................... ...
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ................. ... . .. L

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
DISCIOSULE .+ o v e ettt et e e e e e e e e

Controls and Procedures.......... FP JR R

PART III
Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant . ........ ... .. ... .. ... ... .. ...
Executive COMPENSAtION . . . .\ \ v ottentene ettt et e

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
StoCKhOIAEr MAIETS .« . vt vttt ettt e e e e e e e e

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions ............... ... .. ... ... ...
Principle Accounting Fees and Services ..o

PART 1V

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules . .............. . . i
Schedule 11 — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts...................... e
Signatures . ... e e



FORM 10-K
PART 1

Item 1. Business
General

We are the world leader in drill stem technology development and drill pipe manufacturing, sales and
service; a global leader in drill bit technology, manufacturing, sales and service; and a leading provider of high-
performance engineered connections and premium tubular products and services. Our drill stem and drill bit
products are used to drill oil and gas wells while our tubular technology and services are primarily used in
drilling and completing oil and gas wells. Our customers include drilling contractors, North American oil
country tubular goods (OCTG) distributors; major, independent and state-owned oil companies; and other
oilfield service companies. We primarily operate through three business segments: (1) Drilling Products and
Services, (2) Drill Bits and (3) Tubular Technology and Services. In the first quarter of 2004, we announced
an organizational restructuring that resulted in our former Marine Products and Services businesses now being
reflected in the Tubular Technology and Services segment. Prior periods have been restated for comparability.

Our business is primarily dependent on the level of oil and gas drilling activity worldwide, which, in turn,
depends on the level of capital spending by major, independent and state-owned exploration and production
companies. This capital spending is driven by current prices for oil and gas and the perceived stability and
sustainability of those prices. All of our business segments generally track the level of domestic and
international drilling activity, however, their revenues, cash flows and profitability follow the rig count at
different stages within the market cycles. Drill pipe demand is also a function of customer inventory levels and
typically lags changes in the worldwide rig count. In a declining market, customers are contractually required
to purchase ordered drill pipe even if they will no longer need that pipe. This creates a situation where our
customers have an inventory of excess drill pipe. Consequently, in a market with increasing activity, customers
delay purchasing until they no longer have sufficient inventory to sustain current and near-term expected
future activity. Drill bit demand and this segment’s earnings and cash flows have closely tracked the worldwide
rig count. Within our Tubular Technology and Services segment, there are four product lines: Atlas Bradford
premium connections, Tube-Alloy accessories, TCA premium casing and XL Systems large bore connections
and services. Resuits for this segment’s Atlas Bradford, Tube-Alloy and TCA product lines predominantly
follow changes in North American {in particular Guif of Mexico) offshore drilling, deep drilling and natural
gas drilling rig counts, but short-term demand for Atlas Bradford products also can be affected by inventories
at OCTG distributors. The TCA product line also is affected by the level of U.S. OCTG mill activity. This
segment’s XL Systems product line generaily follows the level of worldwide offshore drilling activity.

Additional information regarding our revenues and foreign investments by geographic region can be found
in the footnotes to our consolidated financial statements starting on page 33 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Grant Prideco was incorporated in Delaware on June 22, 1990. Our corporate headquarters is located at
400 N. Sam Houston Pkwy. East, Suite 900, Houston, Texas 77060.

Drilling Products and Services Segment

Our Drilling Products and Services segment manufactures and sells a variety of drill stem products used
for the drilling of oil and gas wells. The principal products sold by this segment are: (1) drill pipe products,
including tool joints, (2) drill collars and heavyweight drill pipe and (3) drill stem accessories.

Our drill stem products wear out through a combination of friction and metal fatigue and generally are
utilized by our customers for a three to five year period assuming regular use. Demand for our drill stem
products is impacted primarily by changes in drilling activity and worldwide.rig activity. However, since drill
stem products are not consumables and represent a capital investment by our customers, demand for these
products also is significantly impacted by the level of inventory held by our customers and their perceptions as
to future activity and their near-term need for new drill stem products. As a result, even in periods of rising or
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strong drilling activity, our customers may elect to defer purchases until their own inventory reaches levels at
which additional purchases are necessary to sustain their existing drilling activities.

With the increased complexity of drilling activity, demand for our proprietary line of eXtreme™ drilling
and other premium drilling products has remained strong. This value-added product line coupled with our
XT® (eXtreme torque) connections is specifically designed for extreme drilling conditions such as extended
reach, directional, horizontal, deep gas, offshore and ultra-deepwater drilling, as well as high-temperature,
high-pressure and corrosive well conditions. Operators and drilling contractors have embraced this product
line as a way to improve their efficiency and assure performance when drilling under extreme conditions. We
believe that our eXtreme product line offers some of the highest-performance drilling products ever brought to
market and provides our customers with engineered solutions for some of their most challenging drilling
applications. In addition to our eXtreme product line, our premium drill pipe products can also include our
CT-M57™ connections that can withstand external pressures exceeding 25,000 psi and internal pressures
nearing 30,000 psi, along with proprictary sour-service grades and other proprietary products.

Our drill stem products are sold to a variety of customers, including oil and gas drilling contractors, rental
tool companies and major, independent and state-owned oil and gas companies. Our customers’ purchasing
decisions are generally based on operational requirements, quality, price and delivery. The principal
competitors for our drill stem products include Drilco Group (a subsidiary of Smith International Inc.), Texas
Steel Conversion, OMSCO Industries (a subsidiary of ShawCor Ltd.), IDPA and various smaller local
manufacturers in the U.S. and in foreign countries. We typically compete on quality, technology, price and
delivery and we believe we are the technological leader in our industry.

The following is a description of our principal drill stem products:

Drill Pipe Products

Drill pipe is the principal tool, other than the rig, required for the drilling of an oil or gas well. Its primary
purpose is to connect the above-surface drilling rig to the drill bit. A drilling rig will typically have an inventory
of 10,000 to 25,000 feet of drill pipe depending on the size and service requirements of the rig. Joints of drill
pipe are connected to each other with a welded-on tool joint to form what is commonly referred to as the drill
string or drill stem.

When a drilling rig is operating, motors mounted on the rig rotate the drill pipe and drill bit. In addition to
connecting the drilling rig to the drill bit, drill pipe provides a mechanism to steer the drill bit and serves as a
conduit for drilling fluids and cuttings. Drill pipe is a capital good that can be used for the drilling of multiple
wells. Once a well is completed, the drill pipe may be used again in drilling another well until the drill pipe
becomes damaged or wears out.

In recent years, the depth and complexity of the wells our customers drill, as well as the specifications and
requirements of the drill pipe they purchase, have substantially increased. We estimate that over 95% of the
drill pipe we sell outside of China is required to meet specifications exceeding minimum American Petroleum
Institute (API) standards. We offer a broad line of premium drilling products designed for the offshore,
international and domestic drilling markets. Qur premium drilling products include our proprietary lines of XT
connections and 5’%-inch drill pipe that delivers hydraulic performance superior to standard 5'%-inch drill pipe
and weight benefits superior to standard 6°%-inch drill pipe.

Drill Collars

Drill collars are used in the drilling process to place weight on the drill bit for better control and
penetration. Drill collars are located directly above the drill bit and are manufactured from a solid steel bar to
provide necessary weight.




Heavyweight Drill Pipe and Other Drill Stem Products

Heavyweight drill pipe is a thick-walled seamless tubular product that is less rigid than a drill collar.
Heavyweight drill pipe provides a gradual transition zone between the heavier drill collar and the lighter drill

pipe.

We also provide kellys, subs, pup joints (short and odd-sized tubular products) and other drill stem
accessories. These products all perform special functions within the drill string as part of the drilling process.

IntelliServ™ Joint Venture

We own 50% of this joint venture partially sponsored by the U.S. Department of Energy to commercialize
intelligent drill pipe that permits real-time transfer of data through the drill string. This modified drill pipe is
embedded with a telemetry system that permits two-way data transmission along the drill string at rates of up
to two million bits per second, which is exponentially greater than the data transmission rates for measurement
in the drilling and logging systems utilized today. We currently are in the field trial testing and refinement
stage and have not yet introduced a product commercially. Due to the unproven nature of the technology and
that it is still in its development state, we can provide no assurances that it will be successful or be able to be
marketed and sold on a commercial basis.

Operations

Our major drill stem manufacturing plants are located in the U.S., China, Italy, Mexico, Singapore and
Indonesia. These products are sold and serviced through over 16 sales and service facilities located around the
world. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed an evaluation of our existing manufacturing capacities
and locations. Following this manufacturing rationalization study, we determined that we had excess capacity
and’duplicate operations in certain locations that could be eliminated without affecting our ability to quickly
and efficiently react to market increases. As a result, we shut down our Bryan, Texas facility, significantly
downsized our Canadian operations and rationalized certain operations in our Veracruz, Mexico and
Navasota, Texas locations.

We believe we are the only fully vertically integrated drill pipe manufacturer in the world, controlling
each facet of the drill pipe manufacturing process. We manufacture (through a 50.01% owned joint venture)
the green tube (drill pipe tube that has not been heat-treated or processed), the tool joint and complete the
finishing and welding operations. We believe this unique manufacturing strategy provides us with significant
competitive advantages over other drill pipe manufacturers, including those located outside the U.S. that may
have labor and other cost advantages over our U.S.-based manufacturing operations. By controlling each facet
of the drill pipe manufacturing process, we are able to tailor our processes and techniques to meet our
customers’ demanding product specifications, particularly with respect to green drill pipe tubes with body wall
thickness, wall uniformity and other features that exceed minimum API standards and are not readily
available from third-party mills. ’

Drill Bits Segment

Our Drill Bits segment’s products and services are comprised of the operations of ReedHycalog. This
segment is a leading global designer, manufacturer and distributor of drill bits and related technology to the oil
and gas industry. This segment also services its customer base through a technical sales and marketing
network in virtually every significant oil and gas-producing region in the world. Drill bits are generally sold
directly to oil and gas operators and, to a lesser extent, drilling contractors on turnkey and footage contracts.
Competition is based on technical performance, price and service.

The drill bit market consists of two product types: fixed-cutter bits and roller-cone bits. We manufacture
and sell both product types on a global basis.

Drilling through subsurface strata to locate oil and gas requires a drill bit to be run on drill pipe or
conveved through coiled tubing and rotated by surface rig equipment or downhole motors and turbines.
Selecting the optimal bit for a particular application represents one of the many challenges faced by oil and
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gas companies and drilling contractors in planning a well. Similar to the drill stem market, the primary market
driver is worldwide drilling activity or, more specifically, total footage drilled. In addition, demand is a function
of well depth and complexity with demand for fixed-cutter bits tied more strongly to offshore, directional or
horizontal drilling.

Drill bits constitute a very small percentage of total well costs, but are a critical component of well-
construction economics. The time required to drill a well is directly related to a drill bit’s rate of penetration
and footage drilled prior to becoming dull and requiring replacement. On a cost-per-foot basis, selecting the
appropriate drill bit significantly reduces drilling costs by decreasing drilling time and the number of trips
required in and out of a well. Typically, roller-cone bits are most appropriate for shallow land rig operations,
while higher performance roller-cone or fixed-cutter bits with better rates of penetration and longer lives offer
the most economic choice for offshore and deep wells where rig rates and trip costs are high. However, there is
a trend towards increased use of fixed-cutter bits in operations that traditionally have utilized rolier-cone bits.

We provide a complete series of drill bits incorporating advanced materials technology and a range of
performance-enhancing features. This broad product offering provides customers with maximum flexibility in
selecting drill bits. In addition, we provide drill bit selection and well-planning services through our field sales
organization and bit optimization engineers.

Our principal competitors for the sale of drill bits are Hughes Christensen (a division of Baker Hughes
Inc.), Smith Bits (a division of Smith International Inc.), and Security DBS (a division of Halliburton
Company) as well as numerous smaller competitors throughout the world.

Fixed-Cutter Bits

ReedHycalog first manufactured fixed-cutter natural diamond bits in 1953 and synthetic polycrystalline
diamond compact (PDC) bits in 1974.

The predominant fixed-cutter bit used in the oil and gas industry is the PDC bit. PDC bits have no
moving parts and are therefore intrinsically more reliable than roller-cone bits, but they are generally more
sensitive to geological changes. PDC bits drill with a shearing action to remove rock by dragging the diamond
clements through the formation as the drill bit body rotates. PDC bits allow faster rates of drilling penetration
and can drill complete well sections without the need for bit replacement. As a result, they are used in high
cost drilling locations (such as offshore or in remote locations) where their technical advantages reduce
drilling time sufficiently to justify the higher cost product. '

We provide fixed-cutter bit types and technology under various brand names including TReX™,
SteeringWheel™, Rotary Steerable and many others. One of the most significant innovations is our TReX
cutter technology, which significantly increases abrasion resistance (wear life) without sacrificing impact
resistance (toughness). This technology produces material that maintains a sharp, low-wearing cutting edge
that is producing results that exceed conventional standards for PDC bit performance.

During 2004, this segment acquired the assets of Novatek International, Inc. (Novatek), a manufacturer
of PDC cutters, as well as Diamond Products International, Inc., a leading provider of bi-center bits.

Roller-Cone Bits

ReedHycalog has manufactured roller-cone bits since 1916 and produces roller-cone bits for a wide
variety of oil and gas drilling applications. Roller-cone bits consist of three rotating cones that have cutting
teeth, which penetrate the formation through a crushing action as the cones rotate in conjunction with the
rotation of the drill pipe. This cutting mechanism, while less efficient than fixed-cutter bits, is more versatile in
harder formations, or where the geology is changing. We manufacture roller-cone dril] bits with milled teeth
and with tungsten carbide insert teeth, which have a longer life in harder formations.

We market our roller-cone products and technology globally under various brand names including
TuffDuty™, Titan™ and TuffCutter™.




Operations

We manufacture fixed-cutter bits in Stonehouse (U.K.) and in Houston, Texas and roller-cone bits in
Singapore and a separate facility in Houston, Texas. In January 2005, in connection with an expansion of our
Singapore operations, a significant portion of the production of roller-cone bits has been moved from Houston,
Texas to Singapore. All facilities are ISO 9001 and 14001 certified.

We market our drill bits through a global sales and marketing network with our employees strategically
positioned around the world. Sales people are located in North and South America, Europe, CIS, Africa,
Middle East and Asia. The sales force is technologically sophisticated and has developed strong regional
expertise.

Tubular Technology and Services Segment

Our Tubular Technology and Services segment provides a full range of premium threaded connections for
casing, production tubing and other accessory equipment. This segment also manufactures and sells premium
casing for use with third-party connections and is a leading supplier of tubulars and threaded connections for
the large-bore tubular market. During 2003, we made a strategic decision to exit the manufacture and sale of
premium tubing. Additionally, in 2004 we sold our Texas Arai couplings business which is now reflected as
discontinued operations in our accompanying financial statements.

Although we sell our large-bore tubulars and connections on a world wide basis, the demand for the
majority of our tubular technology and services is heavily dependent upon North American natural gas drilling
activity, and it is more particularly dependent upon rigs drilling for deep gas in the Gulf of Mexico. On a short-
term basis, demand for many of these products is also affected by the level of inventory held by distributors of
OCTG. Distributors often reduce purchases until their inventory positions are brought in line with then-
prevailing market conditions.

Over the long-term, a key factor positively impacting demand for our tubular technology and services is
the U.S. dependence on natural gas as a fuel. Gas wells generally encounter higher reservoir pressure and
corrosive environments, which both typically increase proportionally with increased depths. Therefore, gas
wells can require larger-diameter tubulars with thicker walls, higher strength steel grades and special
metallurgy that is resistant to corrosive elements. For these wells, premium connections, as opposed to
standardized API connections, are typically used to ensure the integrity of the tubulars throughout the life of
the well. Also, depletion rates for natural gas wells in the U.S. have significantly increased during the past
decade, which indicates that more wells will need to be drilled to keep production levels constant. This
increased demand in North America for natural gas should increase the number of natural gas wells being
drilled and completed, thus increasing demand for our tubular technology and services.

The following is a description of our principal premium connections and tubular products and services:

Atlas Bradford® Threading and Service

We market our premium engineered connections primarily through our Atlas Bradford product line,
which has been recognized as one of the industry’s leading connections for more than 40 years. We offer this
product line primarily in the U.S. and Canada due to a licensing arrangement that we previously entered into
in which the international rights to our Atlas Bradford connection line were licensed to a third party. We also
manufacture and sell connections for drilling with casing and expandable operations on a worldwide basis and
recently introduced our licensed ATS-E™ semi-premium connection for sale on a worldwide basis.

Our customers use premium connections when they need a connection that maintains a gas-tight seal
while subjected to cxtreme tension, pressure and compression forces or while drilling near environmentally
sensitive areas. The failure of a premium connection can be a catastrophic event, leading to the loss of ‘a well
or a blowout.

We actively promote our premium connections to oil and gas operators, the ultimate end-users of the
products, while selling the premium connections through a network of major distributors in the U.S. and
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Canada. Additionally, we provide tubular (casing, liner and tubing) string design recommendations, a full
range test and demonstration facility, plus field service personnel to assist in the running of the products. Qur
principal competitors for premium connections are Hydril Company, Vallourec and Mannesmann Tubes, the
Tenaris Group, Sumitomo, Kawasaki Steel, Lone Star Steel, Citra Tubindo, Hunting Interlock, Inc., Benoit,
Inc. and numerous other competitors domestically and internationally.

Tube-Alloy™ Accessories

Tubular accessories are manufactured and sold through our Tube-Alloy product line and include flow
control equipment, such as vacuum-insulated tubing, pup joints and landing nipples. Our vacuum-insulated
tubing represents an advanced flow-control solution used to minimize paraffin deposits, gas hydrate formation
and annular pressure buildup in deepwater production environments. Through our Tube-Alloy product line, we
thread third-party tubular products with our Atlas Bradford connections as well as with third-party
connections licensed to us. Qur competitors for these products and services include Hunting Interlock, Inc.,
Benoit, Inc., Oil Tools International, international steel mills and numerous other regional competitors in the
U.S. and worldwide.

TCA™

Premium casing products are offered through our TCA product line. These product offerings are designed
to address that segment of the oilfield tubular casing market that requires special product characteristics and
performance not generally offered by the tubular steel mills. Our TCA product line also provides tubular
processing services for major tubular steel mills.

We manufacture and sell premium casing, which includes high-performance, proprietary and custom-
designed OCTG from 5 to 17 inches in diameter as well as API casing. Our premium casing is designed for
critical applications. To capitalize on the high value spot market, we maintain common and high-alloy green
tube inventories to provide quick delivery of custom-finished casing and coupling stock. To meet exact
customer specifications and delivery requirements, we offer our specialized Premium Pipe Pak™ product line.
Premium Pipe Pak is an innovative bundling of proprietary casing, premium engineered connections and -
inspection services offered in conjunction with an independent third-party inspection company. This product
line allows the customer the option of having threaded and inspected critical-service casing shipped “rig-
ready” directly to the customer’s well site, which reduces costs and delivery times.

XL Systems

Our XL System’s product line offers the customer an integrated package of large-bore tubular products
and services for offshore wells. This product line includes our proprietary line of wedge thread marine
connections on large-bore tubulars and related engineering and design services. We provide this product line
for drive pipe, jet strings and conductor casing. We also offer weld-on connections and service personnel in
connection with the installation of these products. We also completed development of our new high strength
Viper™ weld-on connector that we believe will permit us to penetrate traditional markets that do not require
the enhanced performance of our proprictary wedge thread design.

Risers range from 9%-inches to 13%-inches and represent that section of the offshore production system
from the wellhead and mudiine up to the offshore production platform, which is typically either a floating
platform, tension leg platform or SPAR. We currently offer top tension production risers and have begun to
bundle our riser products with other third-party technology to offer a complete line of riser products. Qur risers
are sold with our various marine riser connectors. The tubular and coupling components of our riser products
are often manufactured for our XL Systems product line by our Atlas Bradford and TCA product lines.

Our XL Systems product line competes with DrilQuip, Vetco, Oil States, Franks and various other
competitors domestically and internationally.




Operations

Our Tubular Technology and Services segment operations are located in Texas, Louisiana, Oklahoma,
Wyoming, Vlissingen, The Netherlands and Canada. We also offer accessory threading services in Venezuela.
In connection with our TCA operations in Muskogee, Oklahoma, we have entered into a long-term supply
agreement with U.S. Steel Corporation that we expect will supply the majority of our steel needs at this
location for the next several years. In addition, during the latter part of 2003, we moved our XL Systems Asia
Pacific facility from Singapore to a new manufacturing location in Batam Island, Indonesia.

Other Segment

Our Other segment included our industrial drill pipe operations and our construction casing and water
well operations. We exited the industrial drill pipe business in the second quarter of 2003 and the construction
casing and water well business with the sale of Star Iron Works (Star) in the first quarter of 2003. As of the
end 2004, the remaining inventory related to the industrial drill pipe operations had been sold.

In 2003, we moved our joint ventures relating to POS-GRIP technology from our Tubular Technology
and Services segment to our Other segment. Prior periods have been restated to reflect this change. During the
first quarter of 2004, we sold to our partner our rights to the POS-GRIP technology for jack-up exploration
applications and have granted our partner an option to purchase our rights to POS-GRIP technology for

subsea applications.

Other Business Data

Research and Engineering

We maintain an active research and engineering program. The program improves existing products and
processes, develops new products and processes, and improves engineering standards and practices that serve
the changing needs of our customers. Our expenditures for research and engineering activities totaled
$20.5 million, $17.7 million and $3.2 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These costs do not include
amounts expended by our IntelliServ joint venture, which is accounted for as an equity-method investment.
The significant increase from 2002 to 2003 related primarily to the ReedHycalog acquisition, which has an
extensive research and engineering program.

Patents

Many of our business lines rely on patents and proprietary technologies. We currently have numerous
patents issued or pending. Many of our patents provide us with competitive advantages in our markets.
Although we consider our patents and our patent protection to be important for our existing business and for
the development of new technologies and businesses, we do not believe that the loss of one or more of our
patents would have a material adverse effect on our business as a whole.

Backlog

As of December 31, 2004, we had a product backlog of $270.5 million, representing 29% of our total
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004, which we expect to complete during 2005. This backlog was
comprised of $203.3 million from Drilling Products and Services and $67.2 million from Tubular Technology
and Services. We had a product backlog as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, of $120.6 million and
$87.2 million, respectively. These year-end backlogs represented 15% and 14% of our total revenues for those
years, respectively. The increase in product backlog from 2003 to 2004 reflects the strengthening of overall
market conditions for oil and gas drilling. '

Insurance

We believe that we maintain insurance coverage that is adequate for the risks involved. However, there is
always a risk that our insurance may not be sufficient to cover any particular loss or that our insurance may not
cover all losses. For example, while we maintain product liability insurance, this type of insurance is limited in
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coverage, and it is possible that an adverse claim could arise that exceeds our coverage. Further, insurance
rates are subject to wide fluctuations, and changes in coverage could result in increases in our cost or higher
deductibles and retentions.,

We do not maintain political risk insurance (generally designed to cover expropriation and nationalization
exposures), but do maintain all-risk property insurance that covers losses from insurrection, civil commotion
and uprising. This insurance does not cover losses resultmg from a declared state of war and provides a limited
range of coverage from terrorist attacks. “

Federal Regulation and Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations relating to the energy
industry in general and the environment in particular. Environmental laws have over the years become more
stringent, and compliance with such laws increases our overall cost of operations. In addition to affecting our
ongoing operations, applicable environmental laws can require us to remediate contamination at our
properties, at properties formerly owned or operated by us, and at facilities to which we sent waste materials
for treatment or disposal and impose liability for related damages of natural resources. While we are not
currently aware of any situation involving an environmental claim that would likely have a material adverse
effect on our business, it is always possible that an environmental claim could arise with respect to one or more
of our current businesses or a business or property that one of our predecessors owned or used that could have
a material adverse effect.

Our expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations were not material in 2004, and are
not expected to be material in 2005. We also believe that we are in material compliance with applicable
environmental requirements and our costs for compliance with environmental laws and regulations are
generally within the same range as those of our competitors. However, we can offer no assurance that our costs
to comply with environmental laws will not be material in the future. Prior to our acquisition, ReedHycalog
was conducting remediation of groundwater at certain of its facilities. Based on currently available informa-
tion, the indemnification provided by Schlumberger in the acquisition agreement and contractual indemnities
from other third parties, we do not believe that these matters will result in any material effect on the
Company’s capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position. However, there can be no guarantee that
the indemnities will be available to cover-all costs or that material expenditures will not be incurred.

Our operations aré also affected by trade laws affecting the import of OCTG, drill pipe and other products
into the U.S. Although the majority of our manufacturing operations, including the capital investment,
employees and costs and expenses associated therewith, are located in the U.S., we have key manufacturing
facilities located outside the U.S., including our drill bit operations in the U.K. and Singapore, our 50.01%
owned Voest-Alpine Tubulars GmbH & Co KG (Voest-Alpine) subsidiary located in Austria and our tool
joint manufacturing operations in Mexico and Italy,-that support our domestic operations. Our premium
tubular business also is affected by the level of foreign imports of-tubular products into the U.S.

Imports of products from our foreign locations that are utlhzed by our domestic manufactunng operations
can be the subject of investigations, including antidumping and countervailing duty orders, into whether such
products are unfairly priced at low levels (ie., dumping) and causing material damage to the domestic
industry, as well as investigations under Section 201 of the trade laws into whether such imports have seriously
damaged the domestic industry. Although we believe we are the clear price leader for drill pipe and other drill
stem products and do not utilize imports from our foreign facilities to “dump” our products, our products have
been, and may in the future be, the subject of such investigations.

Employees

As of February 28, 2005, we had 4,064 employees. Certam of our operatrons are subject to union
contracts. These contracts, however, cover approximately 9% of our total employees. We believe our
relationship with our employees is good.




2007 and our 9% Senior Notes Due 2009 contain restrictions on our ability to pay dividends. Refer to
Part 11 — Item 7 —“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opera-
tions — Liquidity and Capital Resources” for further information..

At March 18, 2005, we had 2,815 record holders of our common stock.

Item 6. Selected Finaricial Data

The following table sets forth certam of our historical financial data. Until we were spun off on April 14,
2000, we were a wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford International, LTD. (Weatherford). This informa-
tion has been prepared as if we had been a stand-alone company during 2000. Additionally, in April 2004 we
sold the assets and business of our Texas Arai division and prior year results related to this division have been
reclassified as discontinued eperations. This information should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following mformanon may not be
indicative of our future operating results. ‘

, Year Ended December 31, .
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)

Operating Data: o
Revenues........... ... ... $ 945,643 § 803,818 $ 609,390 . $688,056  $451,659

~-Operating Income (Loss) ..... e 141,672 45,297 . 46,995 59,976 (11,029)

Income (Loss) From Continuing - ‘ '
Operations. .............oovunn.. 64,793 4,657 13,690 24,809 (14,716)

Income (Loss) Before Cumulative ‘ : :

. Effect of Accounting Change ... ... 55,266 5_,19(.)‘ 13,046 28,090 (14,696)

Net Income (Loss) .. ..vovvvvnnn.. 55,266 5,190 6,634(b) 28,090 (16,485) (¢)

Income (Loss) Per Share(a):
Income (Loss) from Continuing

Operations:
Basic ..,........ e 0.53 0.04. 0.12 023 . (0.13)
Diluted ... 0.51 0.04 0.12 0.22 (0.13)
Net Income (Loss): ‘ _ . ‘ ‘
CBaSiC o o o045 004 0.06 0.26 (0.15)
Diluted ....... B 0.44 004 . 006 0.25. . (0.15)
Balance Sheet Data (At End
of Period): ‘
Total ASSEtS .. ovoeeennennnn.. $1,344,466  $1,262,061  $1,315,349  $915,598  $892,564
Long-Term Debt ....... U 377,773 426,853 478,846 205,024 219,104
Stockholders Equlty ......... I 705,541 606,114 588,872 468967 431,503

(a) We'did not have a separate capital structure prior to bcmg spun. off from Weatherford on Apnl 14, 2000;
accordingly we have calculated our 2000 pro forma earnings per share using pro forma basic and diluted
weighted average shares outstanding prior to the spin-off. In calculating our pro forma basic weighted
average shares, we have adjusted Weatherford’s historical basic weighted average shares outstanding for
the applicable period to reflect the number of shares that would have been outstanding at the time
assuming a distribution of one share of our common stock for each share of Weatherford common stock.
The effect of stock options and restricted stock is not included in the 2000 diluted weighted average
,shares computation because to do so would have been anti-dilutive.

(b) Includes a cumulative effect of accounting change related to Financial Accountmg Standards ‘Board
(SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” of $6.4 million, net of tax.
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coverage, and it is possible that an adverse claim could arise that exceeds our coverage. Further, insurance
rates are subject to wide fluctuations, and changes in coverage could result in increases in our cost or higher
deductibles and retentions. .

We do not maintain political risk insurance (generally designed to cover expropriation and nationalization
exposures), but do maintain all-risk property insurance that covers losses from insurrection, civil commotion
and uprising. This insurance does not cover losses resultmg from a declared state of war and provides a limited
range of coverage from terrorist attacks.

Federal Regulation and Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations relating to the energy
industry in general and the environment in particular. Environmental laws have over the years become more
stringent, and compliance with such laws increases our overall cost of operations. In addition to affecting our
ongoing operations, applicable environmental laws can require us to remediate contamination at our
properties, at properties formerly owned or operated by us, and at facilities to which we sent waste materials
for treatment or disposal and impose liability for related damages of natural resources. While we are not
currently aware of any situation involving an environmental claim that would likely have a material adverse
effect on our business, it is always possible that an environmental claim could arise with respect to one or more
of our current businesses or a business or property that one of our predecessors owned or used that could have
a material adverse effect.

Our expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations were not material in 2004, and are
not expected to be material in 2005. We also believe that we are in material compliance with applicable
environmental requirements and our costs for compliance with environmental laws and regulations are
generally within the same range as those of our competitors. However, we can offer no assurance that our costs
to comply with environmental laws will not be material in the future. Prior to our acquisition, ReedHycalog
was conducting remediation of groundwater at certain of its facilities. Based on currently available informa-
tion, the indemnification provided by Schlumberger in the acquisition agreement and contractual indemnities
from other third parties, we do not believe that these matters will result in any material effect on the
Company’s capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position. However, there can be no guarantee that
the indemnities will be available to cover all costs or that material expenditures will not be incurred.

Our operations are also affected by trade laws affecting the import of OCTG, drill pipe and other products
into the U.S. Although the majority of our manufacturing operations, including the capital investment,
employees and costs and expenses associated therewith, are located in the U.S., we have key manufacturing
facilities located outside the U.S., including our drill bit operations in the U.K. and Singapore, our 50.01%
owned Voest-Alpine Tubulars GmbH & Co KG (Voest-Alpine) subsidiary located in Austria and our tool
joint manufacturing operations in Mexico and Italy, that support our domestic operations. Our premium
tubular business also is affected by the level of foreign imports of.tubular products into the U.S.

Imports of products from our foreign locations that are utilized by our domestic manufacturing operations
can be the subject of investigations, including antidumping and countervailing duty orders, into whether such
products are unfairly priced at low levels (i.e., dumping) and causing material damage to the domestic
industry, as well as investigations under Section 201 of the trade laws into whether such imports have seriously
damaged the domestic industry. Although we believe we are the clear price leader for drill pipe and other drill
stem products and do not utilize imports from our foreign facilities to “dump” our products, our products have
been, and may in the future be, the subject of such investigations.

Employees

As of February 28, 20035, we had 4,064 employees. Certain of our operations are subject to union
contracts. These contracts, however, cover approximately 9% of our total employees. We believe our
relationship with our employees is good.




Available Information

We file annual, quarterly, and other reports and other information with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). You may read and
copy any materials that we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW,
Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain additional information about the Public Reference Room by calling
the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet site (http.//www.sec.gov) that
contains reports, proxy information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically
with the SEC, including us.

We also make available free of charge on or through our Internet site (htzp://www.grantprideco.com)
our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and other
information statements and, if applicable, amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material
with, or furnish it to, the SEC.

Item 2. Properties

The following table describes the principal manufacturing, other facilities and offices we currently own or
lease. We believe that our manufacturing facilities are well maintained and suitable for their intended purpose.

Facility
Size
Location Tenure (Sq.Ft.) Utilization
Drilling Products and Services
Navasota, Texas .............. Owned 347,000 Manufacture of drill stem products
Veracruz, Mexico ............. Leased 303,400 Manufacture of tool joints and drill pipe
Baimi Town, Jiangyan, Jiangsu Leased 49,428 Manufacture of drill pipe
China ... .. v
Jianjin, China ................ Owned 100,912 Manufacture of unfinished upset to
grade drill pipe
Turin, Italy.......... ... ... Owned 60,400 Manufacture of tool joints
Jurong, Singapore ............. Leased 33,600 Manufacture of drill collars, accessories,
and threading services
Batam [sland, Indonesia........ Owned 25,984 Manufacture of drill pipe
Drill Bits
Houston, Texas . .............. Owned 403,000 Manufacture of roller-cone bits
Owned 50,256 Manufacture of fixed-cutter bits
Leased 58,920 Manufacture of bi-center driil bits
Stonehouse, UK. ............. Owned 71,000 Manufacture of fixed-cutter bits
Jurong, Singapore ............. Leased 169,663 Manufacture of roller-cone bits
Provo, Utah .................. Leased 39,038 Manufacture of PDC cutters
Tubular Technology and Services
Muskogee, Oklahoma . ......... Leased 195900 Manufacture of TCA premium casing
: and premium threading
Houston, Texas ............... Leased 249,893 Manufacture of Atlas Bradford
connectors
Owned 54,500 Premium threading services and
manufacture of tubular accessories
Houma, Louisiana. ............ Owned 101,150 Manufacture and threading of downhole
accessories
Broussard, Louisiana........... Owned 55,920 Premium threading of downhole and

specialty equipment
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Facility
Size

Location Tenure (Sq.Ft.) Utilization

Casper, Wyoming ............. Owned 28,181 Premium threading of casing and tubing

Beaumont, Texas.............. Owned 17,838 Premium threading services and
manufacture of conductors

Vlissingen, The Netherlands . ... Leased 65,800 Premium threading services and
manufacture of conductors

Batam Island, Indonesia........ Owined 14,400 Premium threading services and
manufacture of conductors

Corporate

Houston, Texas ............... Leased 39,350 Corporate headquarters

The Woodlands, Texas ......... Leased 61,831 Sales and administrative offices

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, we are the subject of various claims and litigation. We maintain
insurance to cover many of our potential losses and we are subject to various self-retentions and deductibles
with respect to our insurance. See “‘Business — Other Business Data — Insurance.” Although we are subject
to various ongoing items of litigation, we do not believe that any of the items of litigation that we are currently
subject to will result in any material uninsured losses to us. It is possible, however, that an unexpected
judgment could be rendered against us in the cases in which we are involved that could be vninsured and
beyond the amounts that we currently have reserved or anticipate incurring for that matter.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Company during the fourth quarter of
2004.

PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our common stock has a par value of $0.01 per share and is listed and traded on the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “GRP.” The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high
and low sales prices of our common stock as reported on the NYSE:

_High  Low
2004
First quarter .. ... $15.99 $12.87
Second qUATTET . ... ..ot 18.56 13.90
Third quarter . ... 2091 16.82
Fourth quarter ...... ... o e 22.31 18.80
2003 :
First quarter ........... R $12.81  $ 9.77
Second qUATTEr . ... ... 14.87 10.75
Third quarter ... ..o 12.26 10.00
Fourth quarter ................ S 13.68 10.00

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock since becoming a public company. We currently
intend to retain any earnings for use in our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. In addition, our senior credit facility and indenture governing our 9% Senior Notes Due
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2007 and our 9% Senior Notes Due 2009 contain restrictions on our ability to pay dividends. Refer to
Part II — Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opera-
tions — Liquidity and Capital Resources” for further information.

At March 18, 2005, we had 2,815 record holders of oﬁr common stock.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth certain of our historical financial data. Until we were spun off on April 14,
2000, we were a wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford International, LTD. (Weatherford). This informa-
tion has been prepared as if we had been a stand-alone company during 2000. Additionally, in April 2004 we
sold the assets and business of our Texas Arai division and prior year results related to this division have been
reclassified as discontinued operations. This information should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following information may not be
indicative of our future operating results.

. Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)

Operating Data:

Revenues...........ccvviuuni .. $ 945643 § 803,818 § 609,390 $688,056 $451,659
Operating Income (Loss) ........... 141,672 45,297 46,995 59,976 (11,029)
Income (Loss) From Continuing

Operations. ............oovivnin. 64,793 4,657 13,690 24,809 (14,716)
Income (Loss) Before Cumulative '

Effect of Accounting Change ...... 55,266 5,190 13,046 28,090 (14,696)
Net Income (Loss) ................ 55,266 5,190 6,634(b) 28,090 (16,485) (¢)

Income (Loss) Per Share(a):
Income (Loss) from Continuing

Operations:
Basic .............. ... ... . ... 0.53 0.04 0.12 0.23 (0.13)
Diluted ................ R 0.51 0.04 0.12 0.22 (0.13)
Net Income (Loss): ‘
Basic ..... e 045 0.04 0.06 0.26 (0.15)
Diluted ................ ... .. ... 0.44 0.04 0.06 0.25 (0.15)
Balance Sheet Data (At End
of Period):
Total Assets ...........oovinnun. $1,344,466  $1,262,061  $1,315,349  $915,598  $892,564
Long-Term Debt .................. 377,773 426,853 478,846 205,024 219,104
Stockholders” Equity ............... 705,541 606,114 588,872 468,967 431,503

(a) We did not have a separate capital structure prior to being spun off from Weatherford on April 14, 2000;
accordingly we have calculated our 2000 pro forma earnings per share using pro forma basic and diluted
weighted average shares outstanding prior to the spin-off. In calculating our pro forma basic weighted
average shares, we have adjusted Weatherford’s historical basic weighted average shares outstanding for
the applicable period to reflect the number of shares that would have been outstanding at the time
assuming a distribution of one share of our common stock for each share of Weatherford common stock.
The effect of stock options and restricted stock is not included in the 2000 diluted weighted average
shares computation because to do so would have been anti-dilutive.

(b) Includes a cumulative effect of accounting change related to Financial Accounting Standards Board
(SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” of $6.4 million, net of tax.
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(¢) Includes a cumulative. effect of -accounting change related to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
(SAB) No. 101 of $t. 8 mﬂhon net of tax.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analys'is of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following. discussion is intended to assist you in understanding our financial position as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and our results of operations for the three-year period ended December 31,
2004. This discussion should be read with our consolidated financial statements and their notes included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10 K.

The discussion of our results of operations and financial condition contains statements relating to our
future results, including certain projections and trends, which-constitute forward-looking statements. Certain
risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to be materially different from projected results contained in
these forward-looking statements and other disclosures. These risks and uncertainties are more fully described
under “Forward-Looking Statements and Exposures” below. As used herein, unless otherwise required by the
context, the term “Grant Prideco” refers to Grant Prideco, Inc. and the terms “we,” “our,” and similar words
refer to Grant Prideco and its subsidiaries. The use herein of such terms as “group,” “organization,” “we,”
“us,” “our” and “its,” or references to specific entities, are not intended to be a precise description of corporate
relationships. ‘ :

General

We are the world leader in drill stem technology development and drill pipe manufacturing, sales and
service; a global leader in drill bit technology, manufacturing, sales and service; and a leading provider of high-
performance engineered connections. and premium tubular products and services. We operate primarily
through three business segments: (1) Drilling Products and Services, (2) Drill Bits and (3) Tubular
Technology and Services.

Market Trends and Outlook

Our business is primarily dependent on the level of oil and gas drilling activity worldwide, which, in turn,
depends on the level of capital spending by major, independent and state-owned exploration and production
companies. This capital spending is driven by current prices for oil and gas and the perceived stability and
sustainability of those pricés. All of our business segments generally track the level of domestic and
international drilling activity, however, their revenues, cash flows and profitability follow the rig count at
different stages within the market cycles. Drill pipe demand is also a function of customer inventory levels and
typically lags changes in thé worldwide rig count. In a declining market, customers are contractually required
to purchase ordered drill pipe even if they will no longer need that pipe. This creates a situation where our
customers have an inventory of excess drill pipe. Consequently, in a market with increasing activity, customers
delay purchasing until they no longer have sufficient inventory to sustain current and near-term expected
future activity. Drill bit demand and this segment’s earnings and cash flows have closely tracked the worldwide
rig count. Within our Tubular Technology and Services segment, there are four product lines: Atlas Bradford
premium connections, Tube-Alloy accessories, TCA premium casing and XL Systems large bore connections
and services. Results for this segment’s ‘Atlas Bradford, Tube-Alloy and TCA product lines predominantly
follow changes in North American (in particular Gulf of Mexico) offshore drilling, deep drilling and natural
gas driiling rig counts, but short-term demand for Atlas Bradford products also can be affected by inventories
at OCTG distributors. The TCA product line also is affected by the level of U.S. OCTG mill activity. This
segments XL Systems product line generally follows the level of worldwide offshore drilling activity.
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from 5.6% to 15.0%. Operating income in 2004 and 2003 included other charges and transition costs
mentioned above totaling $9.0 million and $41.7 million, respectively. Improved margins reflect better pricing
at all of our segments and efficiencies obtained from the Drilling Products and Servicés’ rationalization
program and the Tubular Technology and Services’ restructuring program. These iniproved margins were
partially offset by increased costs at the Drill Bits segment.

Other operating expenses (sales and marketing, general and administrative, and research and engineer-
ing) as a percentage of revenues increased slightly from 24% to 25%. The increase in other operating expenses
resulted primarily from increased sales and marketing expenses at the Company’s Drill Bits segment from
international expansion costs'and bad debt expense related to foreign accounts receivable, higher incentive
expenses and increased costs related to compliance, with Section 404.of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Interest expense decreased $2.0 million due to lower debt balances ¢ompared to the prior’ year. Equity
income _(loss) from unconsolidated affiliates increased to-income of $1.6 million compared to a loss of
$0.5 million in 2003. This improvement primarily reflects increased equity income from our investment in
Voest-Alpine partially offset by increased development spending in our IntelliServ joint venture. Additionally,
2003 1nc1udes losses from one of our technology joint ventures that we wrote off in December 2003. Other
income; net decreased from $11.1 million in 2003 to $0.4 million in 2004. Fiscal 2003 includes gains related to
the sales of businesses of $3.4 million -and favorably renegotiating a liability to our former parent of
$6.6 million, partially offset by -transition costs in.2003 of $2.9 million associated” with<the ReedHycalog
integration. Fiscal 2004 -includes net gains from asset sales of $4.5 million. Additionally, the Company
incurred foreign exchange losses of $3.7 million in 2004 versus losses of $3.2 million in 2003 resulting
primarily from the U. S. dollar weakemng in relation to the Euro and British Pound.

The Company’s tax rate in 2004 was 31. 2% compared to 35 0% in 2003 The rate decrease was primarily
attributable to lower expected foreign taxes due.to-the. favorable renegotlatlon of a tax holiday for certain
foreign operations. - o TR : :

Segment. Reeults G e . IREI S
Drzllmg Products-and Servzces : - ' )

Revenues for the Dnﬂlng Products and Serv1ces segment 1ncreased $82.3 mllllon or 27%, and operatmg
income increased $71.7 million, or 382%, which includes other charges mentioned above. of $2.0 million and
$24.9 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The operating income margm of 23% was up from 6%, including
charges. During” 2004, drill pipe footage sold increased 0.9 ‘million feet, or 13%, from 7.1 million feet to
8.0 million feet sold. The average sales price per foot increased by 15%, which primarily reflects a shift in
product -mix-from lower margin, small-diameter drilling products to higher margin, large-diameter drilling
products and price increases implemeénted: during the year that -inclade surcharges due to higher steel prices.
Also contributing to the revenues.increase are increased sales-of tcol joints, heavyweight drill pipe and drill
collars and this segment’s results reflect the benefits from. the rationalization program. implemented at the
begmmng of 2004, Wthh increased facility utlhzatlon and prov1ded eﬂimency 1mprovements

= Y

’ Drz'll Bits '

Revenues for the Drill Bits segment increased $67:9: million, or 26%. This increase was primarily
attributable to increased revenues in. U.S. and Canada reflecting the 11% increase in-the North American rig
count, increased revenues at certain- international® regions due to focused sales and marketing efforts and
increased revenues from the Company’s acquisition of Diamond Products International, Inc. (DPI) in August
2004. This segment continues to have success in its newly developed product linés, which include ReedHyca-
log’s rotary steerable bit technologles and dlrecnonal products,’ ReedHycalog s TReX™ diamond technology
and the TuffCutter™, TuffDuty™ and “Titan™ hnes of roller-cone products. Operating income  increased
$12.1 million, or 21%, which includes transition ‘costs mentioned above of $3.9 million in 2003, however
operating income margins decreased slightly from 23% to 22%. The decrease in margins was primarily due to
manufacturing inefficiencies while shifting. capacity between plants in connection with an expansion of our
Singapore operations, and incremental salés and marketing expenses .in'connection ‘with this segment’s
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(¢) Includes a cumulative effect of accounting change related to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
(SAB) No. 101 of $1.8 million, net of tax.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion is intended to assist you in understanding our financial position as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and our results of operations for the three-year period ended December 31,
2004. This discussion should be read with our consolidated financial statements and their notes included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The discussion of our results of operations and financial condition contains statements relating to our
future results, including certain projections and trends, which constitute forward-looking statements. Certain
risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to be materially different from projected results contained in
these forward-looking statements and other disclosures. These risks and uncertainties are more fully described
under “Forward-Looking Statements and Exposures” below. As used herein, unless otherwise required by the
context, the term “Grant Prideco” refers to Grant Prideco, Inc. and the terms “we,” “our,” and similar words
refer to Grant Prideco and its subsidiaries. The use herein of such terms as “group,” “organization,” “we,”
“us,” “our” and “its,” or references to specific entities, are not intended to be a precise description of corporate
relationships.

General

We are the world leader in drill stem technology development and drill pipe manufacturing, sales and
service; a global leader in drill bit technology, manufacturing, sales and service; and a leading provider of high-
performance engineered connections and premium tubular products and services. We operate primarily
through three business segments: (1) Drilling Products and Services, (2) Drill Bits and (3) Tubular
Technology and Services.

Market Trends and Outlook

Our business is primarily dependent on the level of oil and gas drilling activity worldwide, which, in turn,
depends on the level of capital spending by major, independent and state-owned exploration and production
companies. This capital spending is driven by current prices for oil and gas and the perceived stability and
sustainability of those prices. All of our business segments generally track the level of domestic and
international drilling activity, however, their revenues, cash flows and profitability follow the rig count at
different stages within the market cycles. Drill pipe demand is also a function of customer inventory levels and
typically lags changes in the worldwide rig count. In a declining market, customers are contractually required
to purchase ordered drill pipe even if they will no longer need that pipe. This creates a situation where our
customers have an inventory of excess drill pipe. Consequently, in a market with increasing activity, customers
delay purchasing until they no longer have sufficient inventory to sustain current and near-term expected
future activity. Drill bit demand and this segment’s earnings and cash flows have closely tracked the worldwide
rig count. Within our Tubular Technology and Services segment, there are four product lines: Atlas Bradford
premium connections, Tube-Alloy accessories, TCA premium casing and XL Systems large bore connections
and services. Results for this segment’s Atlas Bradford, Tube-Alloy and TCA product lines predominantly
follow changes in North American (in particular Gulf of Mexico) offshore drilling, deep drilling and natural
gas drilling rig counts, but short-term demand for Atlas Bradford products also can be affected by inventories
at OCTG distributors. The TCA product line also is affected by the level of U.S. OCTG mill activity. This
segments XL Systems product line generally follows the level of worldwide offshore drilling activity.
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For the periods below, the revenues, profitability, and cash flows from each of our business segments have
been impacted by changes in oil and gas prices and rig counts. The following table sets forth certain
information with respect to oil and gas prices at the dates indicated and the North American (U.S. and
Canadian) and international rig counts for the periods reflected:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

WTI Oil(a)

AVETAZE ottt $41.51  $31.06 $26.17

Ending . ... ... 43.45 32.52 31.20
Henry Hub Gas(b)

AVETAZE . ... $590 $549 § 337

Ending ... .. 6.01 5.80 4.59
North American Rig Count(c)

AVETage . ... T 1,559 1,404 1,097

Ending . ... e 1,686 1,531 1,204
International Rig Count(c)

AVETABE .o 836 771 732

Ending ... 869 803 753

(a) Price per barrel of West Texas Intermediate (WTI) crude as of the dates presented above. Source:
Bloomberg Energy/Commodity Service.

(b) Price per MMBtu as of the dates presented above. Source: Bloomberg Energy/Commodity Service.

(c) Source: Baker Hughes Rig Count (International Rig Count excludes China and the Former Soviet
Union).

Future Market Trends and Expectations

Looking forward, we anticipate that our results will be based on the level of drilling activity and our
customers’ views regarding the sustainability of that activity. These perceptions depend on their views
regarding the sustainability of oil and natural gas prices, Commodity prices were particularly strong during
2004, and this resulted in strong drilling activity.

When forecasting our results for 2005, we relied on several assumptions about the market, our customers,
our suppliers and the Company. In the market, we anticipate continuing improvement in drilling activity, with
average worldwide rig counts up 4% to 5% over 2004. Importantly, we anticipate that our customers will
continue to believe in the sustainability of drilling activity. For all business units, we believe price
improvements are justifiable and achievable, and we will be able to modestly increase prices to our customers.
As such, we believe our 2005 results will improve over 2004. On December 31, 2004, total backlog was up
$149.9 million from December 31, 2003 to $270.5 million: this is the highest level since the company became
public in April, 2000. The improved backlog with strong drilling activity are expected to translate into a 10% to
15% increase in volumes at our Drilling Products and Services segment. Revenues at our Drill Bits segment
should move commensurate with the rig count, and our Tubular Technology and Services segment, with its
strong leverage to the weak Gulf of Mexico rig count, should benefit from a full year of restructurings and
pricing improvements made during 2004.
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Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2003

The following table summarizes the results of the Company:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003
(In thousands)

Revenues:
Drilling Products and Services ............. . oo, $390,617 $308,297
Drill Bits . ... e 326,918 258,975
Tubular Technology and Services ....................... ... ... 226,233 226,607
Other . . e e 1,875 9,939
Total Revenues. .. ...t e e 945,643 803,818
Operating Income (Loss):
Drilling Products and Services .................... T $ 90,509(a) $ 18,776(a)
Drill Bits . . ... e 70,542 58,443(d)
Tubular Technology and Services ................ ..., 20,884 (b) 7,634 (e)
Other . . (2,117) (16,754) (e) (f)
COTPOTALE . o\t e e ettt et et et e (38,146) (¢) (22,802} (g)
Total Operating Income . .......... ... ... . ... ... 141,672 45,297

(a) Includes other charges of $2.0 million in 2004 related to our manufacturing rationalization program,
which includes lease termination, severance and other exit costs in connection with the downsizing of our
Drilling Products Canadian operations. Includes other charges of $24.9 million in 2003 for fixed asset
‘write-downs related to our manufacturing rationalization program designed to take out of service
redundant or idle assets before their estimated useful lives pursuant to our initiative to streamline
manufacturing capacity and improve operating efficiencies. The fixed asset write-downs were determined
by use of internal appraisals and evaluations to assess the net’realizable value upon disposal based on
expected future cash flows. ’

(b) Includes other charges of $3.2 million for severance costs related to the Tubular Technology and Services
organizational restructuring.

(¢) Includes other charges of $3.8 million for the write-off of leasehold improvements and furniture and
fixtures related to the relocation of our corporate offices in September 2004,

(d) Includes transition costs of $3.9 million related to the ReedHycalog acquisition in December 2002.

(e) Includes other charges of $6.4 million, $0.4 million in Tubular Technology and Services and $6.0 million
in Other, classified as Cost of Sales related to the write-down of industrial inventory products to their
estimated net realizable values. The amount was determined by use of internal appraisals and evaluations
to assess the estimated net realizable value upon disposition.

(f) Includes other charges of $6.4 million related to the write-down of two technology joint ventures.
Included in this amount is a goodwill impairment of $2.5 million, an intangible asset write-off of
$1.3 million and an equity-method investment impairment of $2.6 million.

(g) Includes other charges of $1.5 million for stock compensation expense. In May 2003, two members of the
Board of Directors volunteered to step down to reduce the number of common directors between us and
our former parent Weatherford, and vesting of their stock-based compensation was accelerated. Also
included is a $1.4 million credit reflecting the actual 2003 settlement of a liability accrued as a charge in
2000.

Consolidated revenues increased $141.8 million, or 18%, while the worldwide rig count increased 10%.
Consolidated operating income increased $96.4 million, or 213%, and operating income margins increased
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from 5.6% to 15.0%. Operating income in 2004 and 2003 included other charges and transition costs
mentioned above totaling $9.0 million and $41.7 million, respectively. Improved margins reflect better pricing
at all of our segments and efficiencies obtained from the Drilling Products and Servicés’ rationalization
program and the Tubular Technology and Services’ restructuring program. These improved margins were
partially offset by increased costs at the Drill Bits segment.

Other operating expenses (sales and marketing, general and administrative, and research and engineer-
ing) as a percentage of revenues increased slightly from 24% to 25%. The increase in other operating expenses
resulted primarily from increased sales and marketing expenses at the Company’s Drill Bits segment from
international expansion costs and bad debt expense related to foreign accounts receivable, higher incentive
expenses and increased costs related to compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. -

Interest expense decreased $2.0 million due to lower debt balances compared to the prior year. Equity
income (loss) from unconsolidated affiliates increased to income of $1.6 million compared to a loss of
$0.5 million in 2003. This improvement primarily reflects increased equity income from our investment in
Voest-Alpine partially offset by increased development spending in our IntelliServ joint venture. Additionally,
2003 includes losses from one of our technology joint ventures that we wrote-off in December 2003. Other
income, net decreased from $11.1 million in 2003 to $0.4 million in 2004. Fiscal 2003 includes gains related to
the sales of businesses of $3.4 million and favorably renegotiating a liability to our former parent of
$6.6 million, partially offset by transition costs in 2003 of $2.9 million associated with the ReedHycalog
integration. Fiscal 2004 includes net gains from asset sales of $4.5 million. Additionally, the Company
incurred foreign exchange losses of $3.7 million in 2004 versus losses of $3.2 million in 2003 resulting
primarily from the U.S. dollar weakening in relation to the Euro and British Pound.

The Company’s tax rate in 2004 was 31.2% compared to 35.0% in 2003. The rate decrease was primarily
attributable to lower expected foreign taxes due to the favorable renegotiation of a tax holiday for certain
foreign operations. - ‘

Segment Results -
Drilling Products and Services

Revenues for the Drilling Products and Services segment increased $82.3 million, or 27%, and operating
income increased $71.7 million, or 382%, which includes other charges mentioned above. of $2.0 million and
$24.9 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The operating income margin of 23% was up from 6%, including
charges. During 2004, drill pipe footage sold increased 0.9 million feet, or 13%, from 7.1 million feet to
8.0 million feet sold. The average sales price per foot increased by 15%, which primarily reflects a shift in
product mix from lower margin, small-diameter drilling products to higher margin, large-diameter drilling
products and price increases implemented during the year that inclide surcharges due to higher steel prices.
Also contributing to the revenues increase are increased sales-of tool joints, heavyweight drill pipe and drill
collars and this segment’s results reflect the benefits from the rationalization program implemented at the
beginning of 2004, which increased facility utilization and provided efficiency improvements.

Drill Bits

Revenues for the Drill Bits segment increased $67.9.million, or 26%. This increase was primarily
attributable to increased revenues in U.S. and Canada reflecting the 11% increase in the North American rig
count, increased revenues at certain international regions due to focused sales and marketing efforts and
increased revenues from the Company’s acquisition of Diamond Products International, Inc. (DPI) in August
2004. This segment continues to have success in its newly developed product lines, which include ReedHyca-
log’s rotary steerable bit technologies and directional products, ReedHycalog’s TReX™ diamond technology
and the TuffCutter™, TuffDuty™ and Titan™ lines of roller-cone products. Operating income increased
$12.1 million, or 21%, which includes transition costs mentioned above of $3.9 million in 2003, however
operating income margins decreased slightly from 23% to 22%. The decrease in margins was primarily due to
manufacturing inefficiencies while shifting capacity between plants in connection with an expansion of our
Singapore operations, and incremental sales and marketing expenses .in-connection with this segment’s
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international cxpansxons increased bad debt expense related to forelgn accounts receivable and the acquisition
of DPL '

Tubular Technology and Services

Revenues for the Tubular Technology and Services segment remained relatively flat. Revenues were up
at this segment’s TCA and XL Systems product lines but were offset by declines at the other divisions within
this segment. Operating income increased $13.3 million, or 174%, which includes other charges mentioned
above of $3.2 million and $0.4 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Operating income margin of 9% was up
from 3%, including charges, reflecting improved results at this segment’s TCA, XL Systems and Premium
product lines due to improved pricing, strong mill activity and the benefit of cost cutting initiatives
implemented since last year related to this segment’s restructuring program. ..

Other

Qur Other segment included our industrial drill pipe operations and our construction casing and water
well operatlons We exited the industrial drill pipe business in the second quarter of 2003 and the construction
casing and water well busmess with the sale of Star in the ﬁrst quarter of 2003.

In 2003, we moved our joint ventures relating to POS-GRIP technology from our Tubular Technology
and Services segment to this segment. Prior periods have been restated to reflect this change. During the first
quarter of 2004, we sold the rights to the POS-GRIP technology for jack-up exploration applications and have
granted our partner an option to purchase our rights to POS-GRIP technology for subsea applications.

Our Other segment revenues decreased $8.1 million, or 81%, and operating loss decreased $14.6 million,
which includes other charges mentioned above of $12.4 million in 2003. As of the end 2004, the remaining
inventory related to the industrial drill pipe operations had been sold.

Corporate

Corporate expenses for 2004 were $38.1 million compared to $22.8 million, which includes other charges
mentioned above of $3.8 million and $0.1 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. As a percentage of revenues,
Corporate expenses increased from 3% to 4%. The increase was primarily due to higher incentive expenses,
costs rclated to the implementation of Sarbanes-Oxley and depreciation of the Company’s new ERP system.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2002

The following table summarizes the results of the Company:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002
(In thousands)

Revenues:
Drilling Products and Services ......... R $308,297 $317,280
Drill Bits . ...t PP 258,975 5,270
Tubular Technology and Services ................coovve. .. 226,607 258,458
0 7 (= S I 9,939 28,382
Total Revenues. .. ...oov vt e - 803,818 609,390
Operating Income (Loss): ‘
Drilling Products and Services .......................... .. 18,776(a) 58,029 (f)
DIl Bits . o .ottt e . - 58,443(b) 796
Tubular Technology and Services .................... e 7,634(c) 12,824(f)
Other........ e Ceee (16,754) (c) (d) (1,124)
Corporate ....... e (22,802) (e) (23,530) (g)
Total Operating Income . ............ ... oo 45,297 46,995




(a) Includes other charges of $24.9 million in 2003 for fixed asset write-downs related to our manufacturing
rationalization program designed to take out of service redundant or idle assets before their estimated
useful lives pursuant to our initiative to streamline manufacturing capacity and improve operating
efficiencies. The fixed asset write-downs were determined by use of internal appraisals and evaluations to
assess the net realizable value upon disposal based on expected future cash flows.

(b) Includes transition costs of $3.9 million related to the ReedHycalog acquisition in December 2002.

(¢) Includes other charges of $6.4 million, $0.4 million in Tubular Technology and Services and $6.0 million
in Other, classified as Cost of Sales related to the write-down of industrial inventory drilling products to
their estimated net realizable values. The amount was determined by use of internal appraisals and
evaluations to assess the estimated net realizable value upon disposition.

(d) Includes other charges of $6.4 million related to the write-down of two technology joint ventures.
Included in this amount is a goodwill impairment of $2.5 million, an intangible asset write-off of
. $1.3 million and an equity-method investment impairment of $2.6 million.

(e) Includes other charges of $1.5 million for stock compensation expense. In May 2003, two members of the
Board of Directors volunteered to step down to reduce the number of common directors between us and
our former parent Weatherford, and vesting of their stock-based compensation was accelerated. Also
included is a $1.4 million credit reflecting the actual 2003 settlement of a liability accrued as a charge in
2000.

(f) Includes other charges of $2.6 million, $2.4 million in Drilling Products and Services and $0.2 million in
Tubular Technology and Services, related to fixed asset write-downs for idle assets that were taken out of
service pursuant to our ongoing automation and efficiency initiatives and were classified as held for sale.
The amount was determined by use of internal appraisals and evaluations to assess the net realizable
value upon disposal based on expected future cash flows.

(g) Includes other charges of $4.5 million related to an executive terminated in June 2002.

Consolidated revenues increased $194.4 million, or 32%, and consolidated operating income decreased
$1.7 million, or 4%. Operating income margins decreased from 7.7% to 5.6%. Operating income in 2003 and
2002 included other charges and transition costs mentioned above totaling $41.7 million and $7.1 million,
respectively. The increases, excluding other charges, were due to the acquisition of ReedHycalog in December
2002.

Other operating expense (sales and marketing, general and administrative, and research and engineering)
as a percentage of revenue increased from 14% to 24%. This increase relates primarily to our Drill Bits
segment, which has a significant worldwide sales and marketing infrastructure and an extensive research and

engineering program.

Our interest expense increased $16.8 million due to new debt related to the ReedHycalog acquisition in
December 2002. In connection with the acquisition, we issued $175 million 9% Senior Notes Due 2009 and
entered into a new Senior Credit Facility, which includes a $50 million term loan. See “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” for further discussion of the Senior Credit Facility. Equity income (loss) from unconsolidated
affiliates decreased to a loss of $0.5 million in 2003 from income of $5.3 million in 2002. This decrease was
primarily due to a $4.4 million decrease in equity income contributed by our investment in Voest-Alpine due
to decreased activity. The remaining decrease relates to our equity-method investments in G-PEX and
IntelliServ that had increased costs from continued development of their products in 2003, coupled with equity
income in 2002 related to Jiangsu Shuguang Grant Prideco Tubular Limited (JSG) before our majority
interest purchase in March 2002. Other income (expense), net increased from expense of $1.0 million to
income of $11.2 million in 2003. This increase relates to a $6.6 million gain from favorably renegotiating a
liability to our former parent, a gain on the sale of businesses of $3.4 million, along with favorable foreign
exchange fluctuation in 2003. These increases were partially offset by transition costs in 2003 of $2.9 million
associated with the ReedHycalog integration.
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Drilling Products and Services

Our Drilling Products and Services segment revenues decreased $9.0 million, or 3%, and operating
income decreased $39.3 million, or 68%, which includes other charges mentioned above of $24.9 million and
$2.4 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Operating income margin of 6% was down from 18% in 2002,
including charges. During 2003, drill pipe footage sold increased 0.7 million feet, from 6.4 million feet sold to
7.1 million feet sold, and average sales price per foot decreased by 10%. The decrease in price reflects a shift in
product mix from higher margin, large-diameter drilling products to lower margin, small-diameter drilling
products. Also contributing to the decrease in revenues are decreased sales of tool joints and heavyweight drill
pipe. These decreases are partially offset by incremental revenues for 2003 related to our majority-interest
purchase of JSG in March 2002.

Drill Bits

On December 20, 2002, we acquired ReedHycalog, which comprises our Drill Bits segment. Our Drill
Bits segment reported revenues of $259.0 million compared to $5.3 million. Operating income was
$58.4 million compared to $0.8 million and operating income margins were 23% compared to 15%, which
includes transition costs mentioned above. ReedHycalog’s results have strengthened throughout the year
reflecting worldwide sales increases and successful market penetration of this segments new TReX fixed-
cutter bit,

Tubular Technology and Services

Our Tubular Technology and Services segment revenues decreased $31.9 million, or 12%, and operating
income decreased $5.2 million, or 40%, which includes other charges mentioned above of $0.4 million and
$0.2 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Operating income margin of 3% was down from 5%, including
charges. These decreases reflect the impact of exiting the tubing product lines in the first quarter of 2003, sales
of our Rotator subsidiary in September 2003 and our Petro-Drive product line in December 2003, as well as
decreased premium threading and tubular processing activities. The 2003 results also included incremental
revenues and operating income related to our Grey-Mak business that was acquired in September 2002.

Other

Our Other segment revenues decreased $18.4 million, or 65%, and operating loss increased $15.6 million,
which includes other charges mentioned above of $12.4 million in 2003. This segment included our industrial
drill pipe operations and our construction casing and water well operations. We exited the industrial drill pipe
business in the second quarter of 2003 and the construction casing and water well business with the sale of
Star in the first quarter of 2003.

In 2003, we moved our joint ventures relating to POS-GRIP technology from our Tubular Technology
and Services segment to this segment. Prior periods have been restated to reflect this change.

Corporate

Corporate expenses were $22.8 million compared to $23.5 million, which includes other charges
mentioned above of $0.1 million and $4.5 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Excluding these charges,
Corporate expenses increased primarily due to higher incentive and business development costs in 2003. As a
percentage of revenues, Corporate expenses remained relatively flat.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity depends upon our cash flow from operations, the level of availability under our senior credit
facility and our ability to raise capital from third parties. During 2004, we repaid all of the outstanding
borrowings under our senior credit facility and increased our borrowing base capacity. As a result of these
improvements, we have significantly improved our liquidity position. We believe that we are positioned to take
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advantage of upturns in the market for our products and services, take advantage of strategic opportunities as
they become available and maintain sufficient company liquidity in the event of a downturn.

At December 31, 2004, we had cash of $47.6 million, working capital ‘of $401.3 million, and unused
borrowing availability of $168.0 million under our senior credit facility, compared to.cash of $19.2 million,
working capital of $344.6 million and unused borrowing availability under our senior credit facility of
$122.3 million at December 31, 2003. :

The following table summarizes our cash flows provided by operating activities, net cash used in investing
activities, and net cash provided by (used in) financing activities for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities............... $113,170 $ 82,938 $ 118,686
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities. ....... e © (45,381)  (23,804)  (313,836)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Finaneing Activities .....  (39,890)  (62,412) 206,040

Operating Activities

Net cash flow provided by operating activities increased by $30.2 million in 2004 compared to 2003. Cash
flow before changes in operating assets and liabilities increased by $65.8 million, which was offset by a use of
cash of $35.6 million related to a net increase in operating assets. This use of cash was primarily due to
increased inventories reflecting the increased drilling activity and increased accrued liabilities primarily related
to incentive expenses, partially offset by an improvement in days sales outstanding of 16 days.

Net cash flow provided by operating activities decreased by $35.7 million in 2003 compared to 2002.
Cash flow before changes in operating assets and liabilities increased by $24.5 million, which was offset by a
use of cash of $60.2 million related to net increases in operating assets and liabilities (primarily accounts
receivable and inventory). These changes reflect the increased oil and gas drilling activity in 2003 when
compared to 2002. ‘

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased by $21.6 million in 2004 compared to 2003. This increase
was primarily attributable to higher cash payments for acquisitions of businesses of $25.6 million, which were
partially offset by increased proceeds from the sales of businesses (including the discontinued operations of
Texas Arai) and fixed assets of $0.8 million. Cash payments for business acquisitions, net of cash acquired, in
2004 include $17.3 million for the assets of Novatek and $16.5 million for DPI, while the activity in 2003
includes $3.1 million of post-closing acquisition payments related to both ReedHycalog and POS and
$5.2 million for acquiring an additional 35% interest in Rotator. Proceeds from the sale of businesses in 2004
include $19.9 million for Texas Arai, $1.3 million for POS and $0.8 million for a post-closing receipt related to
Rotator, while the activity in 2003 includes $13.1 million for the sale of Rotator, $6.3 million for the sale of our
Petro-Drive operations and $11.0 million for the sale of Star.

Net cash used in investing activities decreased by $290.0 million in 2003 compared to 2002 due primarily
to decreased business acquisitions during 2003, coupled with proceeds from the sale of businesses of
$30.4 million and a decrease in capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment of $4.4 million.

Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment totaled $37.9 million and $41.4 million for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. We currently expect to expend approximately
$40.0 million for capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment during 2005. This includes capital
expenditures related to our capital improvement program to reduce production costs and improve efficiencies
and the existing equipment base, and excludes any capital spending related to our IntelliServ joint venture.
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. Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities decreased by $22.5 million in 2004 compared to 2003. This change
primarily reflects increased proceeds from stock options exercised in 2004 of $25.2 million partially offset by
increased repayments on our debt. As of December 31, 2004, there were no borrowings outstanding under the
revolver or term loan portions of our senior credit facility.

Net cash provided by financing activities decreased:-by $268.5 mrllron in 2003 compared to 2002. In 2002,
wes received net proceeds of $170.4 million from the issuance of $175 million 9% Senior Notes Due 2009,
coupled with net bo‘rrowings of $36.8 million. In 2003, net'repayments on total debt were $60.6 million.

Semor Credit Facility and Other Long-T erm Debt

Our debt balances are primarily comprlsed of: (1) borrowrngs under our senior credit facility,
(2) 9% Senior Notes due 2009 and (3) 9%:% Senior Notes due 2007. We estimate our required principal and
interest payments for outstanding debt to be approximately $39.3 million for 2005.

Senior Credit Facility

In connection with the ReedHycalog acquisition in December. 2002, we entered into a four-year
$240 million senior secured credit facility (Senior Credit Facility) with a syndicate of U.S. and foreign banks
maturing on December 18, 2006. The Senior Credit Facility was comprised of a $50 million term loan and a
$190 million revolving credit facility, which includes up to $20 million for letter of credits. As of December 31,
2004, we did not have any outstanding borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility and $7.7 million of revolver
availability had been reserved to support outstanding letters of credit. Once the term loan was repaid, it no
longer represented availability under the Senior. Credit Facility.

The U.S. revolving facility is guaranteed by Grant Prideco and all domestic subsidiaries and is secured by
substantially all of our U.S. assets, including U.S. inventories, equipment, receivables, owned real property and
65% of the stock of certain foreign subsidiaries. The Canadian credit facility is guaranteed by Grant Prideco
and all U.S. subsidiaries and is secured by substantially all of our U.S. assets and certain of our Canadian
inventories, equipment, recervables owned real property and 65% of the stock of certain foreign subsidiaries.

Availability under the revolving credit facility, which was $168.0 million as of December 31, 2004, is
based -on the collateral value of the inventories and receivables securing the credit facility. Amounts
outstanding under the credit facilities accrue interest at a 'variable rate based on either the U.S. prime rate
(plus 0.75% to 1.75% depending on our leverage ratio) or LIBOR (plus 1.75% to 2.75% depending on our
leverage ratio) for the U.S. denominated advances or a variable rate based on the Canadian prime rate
(plus 0.75%) or the applicable rate for Canadian bankers acceptances, for Canadian denominated advances.
Interest on outstanding borrowings is payable monthly or, with respect to LIBOR borrowings, either quarterly
or at the end of the applicable LIBOR' period. The U.S. revolving credit facility also provides us with
availability for letters of credit. We are required to comply with various affirmative and negative covenants
which will limit our ability to incur new debt, make certain investments and acquisitions, sell assets, grant
liens, repurchase equity, repurchase debt and take other actions. We are subject to financial covenants that
require us to limit our capital expendrtures and, under certain circumstances, require us to maintain a certain
minimum fixed charge coverage ratio.

9% Senior Notes Due 2009

In December 2002, we issued $175.0 million principal amount of 9% Senior Notes Due 2009. Net
proceeds from the issuance of $170.4 million were used, along with certain other funds, to fund the cash
portion of the ReedHycalog acquisition. Interest is payable June 15 and December 15 of each year. After
December 15, 2006, we may redeem all or part of the 9% Senior Notes at any time at a price of 100% of their
principal amount plus an applicable premium (starting at 4%) and accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date. The 9% Senior Notes are guaranteed by all of our domestic subsidiaries. The indenture
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governing the 9% Senior Notes contains various covenants customary in such instruments, including
restrictions to incur new debt, pay dividends, sell assets, grant liens and other related items.

9/4% Senior Notes Due 2007

In December 2000, we issued $200.0 million principal amount of 9%:% Senior Notes Due 2007. The
9%:% Senior Notes were issued at a discount to yield an effective interest rate of 9%:%. Net proceeds from the
issuance of $193.3 million were utilized to repay a $100.0 million subordinated note to Weatherford
International, Inc. and to repay outstanding borrowings under our then-existing revolving credit facility of
$80.3 million. Interest is payable June ! and December 1 of each year. We may redeem all or part of the
9%:% Senior Notes at any time at a price of 100% of their principal amount plus an applicable premium and
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. The 9%% Senior Notes are guaranteed by all of our
domestic subsidiaries. The indenture governing the 9%4% Senior Notes contains various covenants customary
in such instruments, including restrictions to incur new debt, pay dividends, sell assets, grant liens and other
related items.

In the event there is a payment default under the Senior Credit Facility, the 9% and 9%:% Senior Notes '
could come due. As of December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with the various covenants under the
Senior Credit Facility and the 9% and 9%:% Senior Notes agreements.

Liguidity Outlook

We estimate our required principal and interest payments for our outstanding debt to be approximately
$39.3 million for 2005 and capital expenditures for 2005 to be approximately $40.0 million in the aggregate.
We currently expect to satisfy all required capital expenditures and debt service requirements during 2005
from operating cash flows, existing cash balances and the revolver portion of our Senior Credit Facility.

Based on our current projected capital expenditures and required principal and interest payments, our
operating cash flows, existing cash balances and estimated availability under the revolver portion of the Senior
Credit Facility, we believe we can satisfy all of our expected commitments during the next 12 months and will
have sufficient liquidity in the event of a prolonged market downturn to not only maintain our existing
operations but to take advantage of strategic opportunities that may present themselves during any such
period. Acquisitions and expansions will be financed from cash flow from operations, borrowings under the
revolver portion of our Senior Credit Facility, or through a combination of the issuance of additional equity
and debt financing, as appropriate. Any future financing will be arranged to meet our requirements, with the
timing, amount, and form of issue dependent on the prevailing market and general economic conditions.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and commercial commitments at Decem-
ber 31, 2004:
After

Total 1 Year 2-4 Years 5-6 Years 6 Years
(In thousands)

Contractual Obligations:
Long-Term Debt................... $381,954 $ 4,181 $201,212 ' $175,382 § 1,179
Operating Leases. .................. 47,453 9,992 19,095 4,822 13,544
Purchase Obligation(a) ............. 6,618 2,562 4,056 — —
Total Contractual Obligations . ... ~$436,025 $16,735 $224,363  $180,204 $14,723
After

Total 1 Year 2-4 Years 5-6 Years 6 Years

Commercial Commitments
Lettersof Credit ...........ccovnne ... $9,434  $6,209  $3,275 $— $—
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(a) We have entered into a supply agreement with Voest-Alpine which provides that we purchase a
minimum quantity of tubulars per year through July 31, 2007. Although we are not contractually
obligated to purchase an annual minimum commitment, the contract does include a penalty for every
metric ton that a two-year average of purchases fall below the annual purchase minimum. The
maximum annual penalty due under the contract would be approximately 1.9 million Euros annually.
The amounts in the table reflect the amount of this contractual penalty assuming we made no
purchases from Voest-Alpine and were converted from Euros to U.S. dollars using the average 2004
foreign currency exchange rate.

Related-Party Transactions

Until April 14, 2000, we were a wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford. We were spun off from
Weatherford on April 14, 2000, through a distribution by Weatherford to its stockholders of all of our common
stock. Weatherford no longer owns any interest in our Company. Prior to our 2003 Annual Meeting held in
May 2003, we had seven Directors, five of which also served on the Board of Weatherford. Currently, we now
have nine Directors, of which only three serve on Weatherford’s Board.

In connection with the spinoff, we entered into a preferred supplier agreement with Weatherford in which
Weatherford agreed to purchase at least 70% of its requirements of drill stem products from us, subject to
certain exceptions. In return, we agreed to sell those products at prices not greater than that at which we sell to
similarly situated customers, and we provided Weatherford a $30.0 million credit towards the purchase of
those products. During 2003, we extended the term of this contract by two years and reduced the unused
preferred supplier credit balance by $6.6 million. The effect of this reduction in the supplier credit was a
reduction in the accrued liability as a credit to other income. Such adjustment is reflected in “Other Income
{Expense), Net” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2003. At
December 31, 2004, the remaining credit balance was $4.1 million. Weatherford purchased approximately
$25.1 million of drill stem products from us during 2004. Weatherford also purchased API tubing and
accessory threading services from us aggregating $3.9 million during 2004,

Our Drill Bits segment sells drill bits worldwide to oil and gas operators, including Newfield Exploration
Company (Newfield). In addition, a division of our Tubular Technology and Services segment also sells
accessories directly to Newfield. Two of our directors, Mr. Trice and Mr. Hendrix, are directors of Newfield
and Mr. Trice is Newfield’'s Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer. During 2004, Newfield
purchased approximately $2.1 million of products from us. We believe that the prices we charge are on terms
comparable to those that would be available to unaffiliated third parties.

During 2004, our supply agreement with Voest-Alpine was amended. The amended agreement provided
for a reduced minimum quantity commitment per year through July 31, 2007, effective April 1, 2004. The
amendment also provides for a surcharge provision under which actual costs of key raw materials in the green
pipe production process will be indexed to the April 2003 base cost and surcharges per ton assessed
accordingly for the difference. These surcharges are phased in and did not significantly impact 2004, however,
they will be in place for 2005 forward. The contract includes a penalty for every metric ton that a two-year
average of purchases fall below the annual purchase minimum. During 2004, we met our minimum purchase
requirements and we currently believe we will meet our contractual commitments for 2005 without incurring
unnecessary penalties or material unnecessary inventory positions.

OH—Balance Sheet Financing

We do not have any off-balance sheet hedging, financing arrangements or contracts except those
associated with our investments in two companies that are not consolidated in our financial statements: Voest-
Alpine and IntelliServ. These investments are accounted for under the equity-method of accounting. The
assets and liabilities of Voest-Alpine are summarized in Note 7. Additionally, Voest-Alpine has entered into
forward contracts to cover its currency risk related to accounts receivables and accounts payables, has entered
into interest rate swap agreements to reduce its exposure to changes in floating interest rate payments of its
long-term bonds, and has also entered into an agreement with a bank to sell a significant portion of its
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accounts receivable. IntelliServ is our technology joint venture that is currently developing technology for
intelligent drill pipe that permits real-time transfer of data through the drill string. IntelliServ does not have
any debt, other than trade payables relating primarily to research and development expenses.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial "Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued the revised
SFAS No. 123, “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R), which addresses the accounting for share-based
payment transactions in which a company obtains employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of
the company or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the company’s equity instruments or that may
be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. This statement eliminates the ability to account for
employee share-based payment transactions using’ APB No. 25 and requires instead that such transactions be
accounted for using the grant-date fair value based method. This statement will be effective as of the
beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005 (July 1, 2005 for the
Company). Early adoption of SFAS 123R’is encouraged. This Statement applies to all awards granted or
modified after the Statement’s effective date. In addition, compensation cost for the unvested portion of
previously granted awards that remain outstanding on the Statement’s effective date shall be recognized on or
after the effective date, as the related services are rendered, based on the awards’ grant-date fair value as
previously calculated for the pro-forma disclosure under SFAS 123. ’ '

"We expect that upon the adoption of SFAS 123R, we will apply the modified prospective application
transition method, as permitted by the Statement. Under such transition method, upon the adoption of
SFAS 123R, our financial statements for periods prior to the effective date of the Statement will not be
restated. The impact of this Statement on our financial statements or its results of operations in 2005 and
beyond will depend upon various factors, among them our future compensation strategy. We expect that the
effect of applying this Statement on our results of operations in 20035 as it relates to existing option plans would
not be materially different from the SFAS 123 pro forma effect previously reported.

, In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151 “Inventory Costs — An Amendment of ARB

No. 43, Chapter 4” (SFAS 151). SFAS 151 clarifies that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight,
handling costs and spoilage should be expensed as incurred and not included in overhead. Further, SFAS 151
requires that allocation of fixed and production facilities overheads to conversion costs should be based on
normal capacity of the production facilities. The provisions in SFAS 151 are effective for inventory costs
incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. We do not believe that the adoption of SFAS 151
will have a significant effect on our financial statements. '

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”) enacted on October 22, 2004 provides for a
temporary 85% dividends received deduction on certain foreign earnings repatriated during a one-year period.
The deduction would result in an approximate 5.25% federal tax rate on the repatriated foreign earnings. To
qualify for the deduction, certain criteria in the Act-must be satisfied. We are in the: process of evaluating
whether we will repatriate foreign earnings under the repatriation provisions of the Act and if so, the amount
that will be repatriated. Through December 31, 2004, we-have not provided deferred taxes on certain foreign
earnings because such earnings were intended to be indefinitely reinvested outside the United States. Whether
we will take advantage of this provision depends on a number of factors including reviewing future
Congressional guidance before a decision can be made. Until that time, we will make no change in our current
intention to indefinitely reinvest certain earnings of our foreign subsidiaries. If we were to repatriate these
earnings, a one-time tax benefit to our Consolidated Statements of Operations of up to approximately
$2.1 million could occur.

In December 2003, the FASB revised SFAS No. 132, “Employer’s Disclosures about Pensions and
Other Post-Retirement Benefits”. The revised Statement requires new disclosures in addition to those required
by the original Statement about the assets, obligations, cash flows and net periodic benefit costs of defined
benefit pension plans and other defined benefit post-retirement plans. As revised, SFAS No. 132R is effective
for financial statements with fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003. The interim-period disclosures
required by this Statement were effective for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2003. However,
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disclosure of the estimated future benefit payments was effective for fiscal years ending after June 14, 2004.
We adopted SFAS 132R during 2004. The adoption of SFAS 132R did not have any impact on our results of
operations or financial position. See Note 13 for disclosures regarding our defined benefit pension plans.

In January 2003, the FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”
(FIN No. 46) was issued. FIN No. 46 clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
“Consolidated Financial Statements”, to variable interest entities (VIE’s), which are certain entities in which
equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient
equity at risk for the éntity to finance its activities without additional subordinated support from other parties.
The Interpretation is intended to achieve more consistent application of consolidation policies to VIE’s and,
thus, to improve comparability between enterprises engaged in similar activities even if some of those activities
are conducted through VIE’s. FIN No. 46 requires the entity, which absorbs a majority of the variable income
or loss of a VIE beé considered the primary beneficiary and requires consolidation of the VIE. The
Interpretation was effective immediately for VIE’s created after January 31, 2003, and to VIE’s in which we
obtain an interest after that date. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to FIN No. 46,
(FIN No. 46R), to clarify some of the provisions of FIN No. 46 and to exempt certain entities from its
requirements. Under the new guidance, special effective date provisions apply to enterprises that have fully or
partially applied FIN No. 46 prior to issuance of this revised interpretation. Otherwise, application of
FIN No. 46R was required in financial statements of public entities that have interests in structures that are
commonly referred to as special-purpose entities for periods ending after December 15, 2003. Application by
public entities, other than small business issuers, for all other types of VIE’s was required in financial
statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004. We are not a primary beneficiary of a VIE nor do we hold
any significant interests or involvement in a VIE. The adoption of this Interpretation did not have a material
effect on our results of operations or financial position.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our signiﬁcant accounting policies are fully described in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements
included in. this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Certain of our accounting policies require the application of
significant judgment by management in selecting the appropriate assumptions for calculating financial
estimates. By their nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. These judgments
are based on our historical experience, terms of existing contracts, our observance of trends in the industry,
information provided by our customers and information available from other outside sources, as appropriate.
Actual results may differ from these judgments and assumptions.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues when the earnings process is complete and collectibility is reasonably assured.
With respect to the Drilling Products and Services and Tubular Technology and Services segments, this
includes satisfying the following criteria: the arrangement with the customer is evident; the sales price is fixed
or determinable; the manufacturing process is complete (including completion of all proper inspections); title
and risk of loss have passed to the customer and all delivery obligations have been met. If requested in writing
by the customer; delivery may be satisfied through delivery to our customer storage location or to a third-party
storage facility. With respect to our Drill Bits segment, revenue is recognized when the customer runs the drill
bit. Customer advances or deposits are-deferred and recognized as revenue when we have completed all of our
performance obligations related to the sale. We also recognize revenues as services are performed. Addition-
ally, we recognize revenues associated with rebillable shipping costs.

Deferred'Revenues and Charges

For sales transactions where title and risk of loss has transferred to the customer but the supporting
documentation does not meet all of the criteria for revenue recognition prior to the products being in the
physical possession of the customer, recognition of the revenues and related inventory costs from these
transactions are required to be deferred until the customer takes physical possession. At December 31,.2004,
we had deferred revenues and charges related to such transactions of $21.4 million and $17.2 million,

25




respectively. The deferred charges represent customer-owned finished goods inventory on deferred sales
transactions for which legal title transfer has occurred, but the product is not yet in the customer’s physical
possession. See Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information on the restatement
of the first three quarters of 2004. The impact of deferred revenues and charges on prior years’ financial
statements was not material.

Inventories

Inventory costs are stated at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method. We value our
inventories primarily using standard costs, which approximate actual costs, that include raw materials, direct
labor, and manufacturing overhead allocations. We performs obsolescence reviews on our slow-moving and
excess inventories and establish reserves based on current assessments of factors such as age of inventory,
technological obsolescence, future product demands, market conditions and related management initiatives. If
such factors are different than those projected by management, additional inventory reserves may be required.

Business Combinations

The cost of business acquisitions is allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition using third-party appraisals and management estimates.
Management’s estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but which are
inherently uncertain. In addition, estimated liabilities to exit activities of an acquired operation or an existing
operation, including the exiting of contractual obligations and the termination of employees, are subject to
change as management continues its assessment of operations and finalizes its integration and exit plans.

Long-Lived Assets

A review for impairment of long-lived assets is performed whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets (group) may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets
to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset group to expected
undiscounted future net cash flows to be generated by the asset group. If such asset group is considered to be
impaired, the impairment loss to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of
the asset group exceeds fair value based on expected discounted future cash flows. Assets to be disposed of are
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less selling costs. In 2004, we recorded fixed asset
impairments of $3.8 million related to the write-off of leasehold improvements and furniture and fixtures
resulting from the relocation of our Corporate office in September 2004. While we believe no other
impairment existed at December 31, 2004 under accounting standards applicable at that date, different
conditions or assumptions, or changes in cash flows or profitability, if significantly negative or unfavorable,
could have a material adverse effect on the outcome of our impairment evaluation and our financial condition
or future results of operations.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are subject to at least an annual
impairment test and more frequently if circumstances indicate their value may not be recoverable. Goodwill is
tested for impairment using a two-step process that begins with an estimation of the fair value of each of our
reporting units compared with its carrying value. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of a reporting
unit, a second step test is completed comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its
carrying value to measure the amount of impairment. Intangible assets that are not amortized will be tested
for impairment at least annually by comparing the fair values of those assets to their carrying values. Other
identifiable intangible assets that are subject to amortization are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
years expected to be benefited, ranging from 1.5 to 20 years. These amortizable intangible assets are reviewed
for impairment if circumstances indicate their value may not be recoverable based on a comparison of fair
value to carrying value. Based on our annual goodwill impairment test as of October 1, 2004, we do not believe
any of our goodwill is impaired as of December 31, 2004, While we believe no impairment existed at
December 31, 2004 under accounting standards applicable at that date, different conditions or assumptions, or
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changes in cash flows or profitability, if significantly negative or unfavorable, could have a material adverse
effect on the outcome of our impairment evaluation and our financial condition or future results of operations.

Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Assets

We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will expire before realization of the benefit or that future
deductibility is not probable. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets depends on the ability to
generate sufficient taxable income of the appropriate character in the future. This requires us to use estimates
and make assumptions regarding significant future events such as the taxable profitability of entities operating
in the various taxing jurisdictions.

Contingent Liabilities

We have contingent liabilities and future claims for which we have made estimates of the amount of the
actual costs of these liabilities or claims. These liabilities and claims sometimes involve threatened or actual
litigation where damages have been quantified and we have made an assessment of our exposure and recorded
a provision to cover an expected loss based on our experience in these matters and, when appropriate, the
advice of outside counsel or other outside experts. Upon the ultimate resolution of these uncertainties, our
future reported financial results will be impacted by the difference between our estimates and the actual
amounts paid to settle a liability. Examples of areas where we have made important estimates of future
liabilities primarily include litigation, warranty claims, environmental liabilities and contract claims. While
management believes the recorded liabilities are adequate, inherent limitations in the estimation process may
cause future actual losses to exceed expected losses.

The calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax
regulations in a multitude of jurisdictions. We recognize potential liabilities and record tax liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the
extent to which, additional taxes will be due. We adjust these reserves in light of changing facts and
circumstances; however, due to the complexity of some of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may
result in a payment that is different from our current estimate of the tax liabilities. If our estimate of tax
liabilities proves to be less than the ultimate assessment, an additional charge to expense would result. If
payment of these amounts ultimately proves to be less than the recorded amounts, the reversal of the liabilities
may result in income tax benefits being recognized in the period when we determine the liabilities are no
longer necessary. Substantially all of these potential tax liabilities are recorded in “Other Long-Term
Liabilities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as payment is not expected within one year.

Pension Plans

The plan obligations and related assets of defined benefit pension plans are presented in Note 13 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Plan assets, which consist primarily of marketable equity and
debt instruments, are valued using market quotations as of the period end. Plan obligations and the annual
pension expense are determined by independent actuaries and through the use of a number of assumptions.
Key assumptions in measuring the plan obligations include the discount rate and the estimated future return
on plan assets. In determining the discount rate, the Company utilizes the yield on high-quality, fixed-income
investments currently available with maturities corresponding to the anticipated timing of the benefit
payments. Asset returns are based upon the anticipated average rate of earnings expected on the invested
funds of the plans.

Forward-Looking Statements and Exposures -

In light of the SEC’s Regulation FD, we have elected to provide in this report various forward-looking
statements and operational details. We have done so to assure full market disclosure of information that we
generally make available to our investors and securities analysts. We expect to provide updates to this
information on a regular basis in our periodic and current reports filed with the SEC. We have also made our
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investor conference calls open to all investors and encourage all investors to listen in on these calls. We will
publicly announce the call-in information in a press release before such calls. We are providing this
information to assist our stockholders in better understanding our business. These expectations refiect only our
current view on these matters as of the date of this report and are subject to change based on changes of facts
and circumstances. There can be no assurance that these expectations will be met and our actual results will
likely vary (up or down) from those currently projected. These estimates speak only of our expectations as of
the date of this report and we make no undertaking to update this information. The absence of an update
should not be considered as an affirmation of our current expectatxons or that facts have not changed during
“the quarter that would impact our expectations.

Risk Factors and Exposures

The businesses in which we operate are subject to various risks and uncertainties that could have adverse
consequences on our results of operations and financial condition and that could cause actual results to be
materially different from projected results contained in the forward-looking statements in this report and in our
other disclosures. Investors should carefully consider these risks and uncertainties when evaluating our
company and the forward-looking statements that we make These risks and uncertainties include, but are not
limited to, the following:

A decline in domestic and worldwide oil and gas vdrilling activity would adversely affect olir results of
operations.

Our forward-looking statements and projections of future results assume stable to moderately increasing
demand for our products and services. However, our businesses are materially dependent on the level of oil
and gas drilling activity in North America and worldwide, which in turn depends on the level of capital
spending by major, independent and state-owned exploration and production companies. This capital spending
is driven by current prices for oil and gas and the perceived stability and sustainability of those prices. Oil and
gas prices have been subject to significant fluctuatien in recent years in response to changes in the supply and
demand for oil and gas, market uncertainty, world. events, governmental actions, and a variety of additional
factors that are beyond our control, including:

the level of North American and worldwide oil and gas exploration and production activity;

« worldwide economic conditions, particularly economic conditions in North America;

« oil and gas production costs;

« the.expected costs of developing new reserves;

* national government political requirements and the policies of the OPEC;

« the price and availability of alte-rnativeﬂ fuels;

 environmental regulation; and

* tax policies.

Decreased demand for our products results not only from periods of lower drilling activity, but also from
the resulting build up of customer inventory of drill pipe associated with idle rigs, which can be used on active
rigs in lieu of new purchases. The time period during which drill pipe inventory is used is a function of the
number of rigs actively drilling and the expected level of drilling activity. A decrease in the number of rigs

actively drilling results in a large amount of unused drill pipe on idle rigs and a decrease in demand for new
drill pipe. :
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An economic downturn could adversely aﬂect demand for our products and services and our results of
operations. : :

The U.S. and worldwide ecdndhiiés have been very volatile, and their future directions ‘are uncertain. If
North American or international economies decline unexpectedly, our results of operations and financial
condition could be materially adversely affected

Increases in the prices of our raw materials could affect our results of operations.

We use large amounts of steel tubulars and bars in the manufacture of our products. The price of these
raw materials has a significant impact.on our cost of producing products. If we are unable to pass future raw
material price increases on to our-customers, our margins and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Steel prices have increased significantly since the end of 2003, caused primarily by significant increases in
the prices paid by our suppliers for scrap and coke utilized in their operations.

In addition, rising steel costs also have the potential to delay increases in demand for our drill stem
components and premium casing ‘products.’ As drill stem products are not consumables, our customers could
elect to defer purchases until such time as they determine that steel prices have stabilized or returned to more
normalized conditions. Our forward-looking statements do not assume that there will be any reduced demand
for our drill stem products or premium casing as a result of increased prices caused by the current shortages
being experienced in the worldwide steel markets. Reduced demand could adversely aﬁ'ect our results of
operations. :

Interruptions of supply of raw materials could materially adversely affect our results of operations.

We rely on various suppliers to.supply the components utilized to manufacture our drilling products and
premium casing. The availability of the raw materials is not only a function of the availability of steel, but also
the alloy materials that are- utilized by our suppliers in manufacturing tubulars that meet our proprietary
chemistries. Currently, there is a worldwide shortage of scrap, coke and alloys that has caused raw material
prices to increase for steel tubulars, billets and bars utilized in our manufacturing operations. To date, these
shortages have not caused a material disruption in availability or our manufacturing operations, however, there
can be no assurance that material disruptions could not occur in the future. If material disruptions to raw
materials availability occur, it could adversely affect our results of operations and our ability to increase our

manufacturing operations to meet the increased revenues upon which our forward-looking statements are
based.

Due to intense competition in our industry, our revenues may decline if we do not develop, produce, and
commercialize new competitive technologies and products or if we are unable to adequately protect our
current and futuve intellectual property rights velating to our technologies and products.

The markets for our premium products and services are characterized by continual developments.
Substantial improvements in the scope and quality of product function and performance can occur over a short
period of time. In order to remain competitive, we must be able to develop commercially competitive products
in a timely manner in response to changes in technology: Our ability to develop new products and maintain
competitive advantages depends on our ability to design and commercially market products that meet the
needs of our customers, including delivery schedules and product specifications.

Additionally, the time and expense invested in product development may not result in commercially
feasible applications that provide revenues. We could be required to write-off our entire investment in a new
product that does not reach commercial viability. Moreover, we may experience operating losses after new
products are introduced and commercialized because of high start- -up costs, unexpected manufacturing costs
or problems, or lack of demand.

Many of our products and the processes we use to manufacture them have been granted U.S. and
international patent protection, or have patent applications pending. Nevertheless, patents may not be granted
for our applications and, if patents are issued, the claims'allowed may not be sufficient to protect our
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technology. If our patents are not enforceable, or if any of our products infringe patents held by others, our
financial results may be adversely affected. Our competitors may be able to independently develop technology
that is similar to ours without infringing on our patents, which is especially true internationally where the
protection of intellectual property rights may not be as effective. In addition, obtaining and maintaining
intellectual property protection internationally may be significantly more expensive than doing so domestically.
We may have to spend substantial time and money defending our patents and, after our patents expire, our
competitors will not be legally constrained from developing products substantially similar to ours.

QOur results of operations and financial condition are dependent upon our ability to successfully increase
and decrease, without material disruption, our manufacturing capacity and expense in response to
changes in demand and to maintain prices for our products, which can be adversely affected by changes
in industry conditions and competitive forces.

Our projections assume steady to modest increasing demand for our products and services during 2005, in
particular our drill stem products. In the event demand for these products increases, we will be required to
increase our production during peak demand periods with minimal operational disruption and inefficiency. If
this does not happen, or we experience difficulties in this regard, our results of operations during this ramp-up
for high demand periods could be adversely affected.

QOur international operations may experience severe interruptions due to political, economic, or other
risks, which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we have derived approximately 39% of our total revenues from
our facilities outside the U.S. In addition, a large part of sales from our domestic locations were for use in
foreign countries. In addition, many of our key manufacturing operations are outside of the U.S., including
Mexico, Italy, United Kingdom, China, Indonesia, and Singapore. Qur operations in certain international
locations are subject to various political and economic conditions existing in those countries that could disrupt
operations. These risks include:

« changes in foreign tax laws;

« changes in regulations and labor practices;

» currency fluctuations and devaluations;

s currency restrictions, banking crises, and limitations on repatriation of profits; and
+» political instability or military conflict.

Our foreign operations may suffer disruptions, and we may incur losses that will not be covered by
insurance. We have not historically carried political risk insurance. In particular, terrorist attacks and other
threats to U.S. national security and resulting U.S. military activity throughout the world increase the
possibility that our operations could be interrupted or adversely affected. Such disruption could result in our
inability to ship products in a timely and cost-effective manner or our inability to place contractors and
employees in various countries or regions.

Any material currency fluctuations or devaluations, or political events that disrupt oil and gas exploration
and production or the movement of funds and assets could materially adversely affect our results of operations
and financial position. :

As of December 31, 2004, approximately $73.6 million of our revenues were earned by our Chinese
operations. As is customary in this country, it is common for our Chinese operations to settle receivabies and
payables through bearer bonds and notes. At December 31, 2004, we were not holding any such notes. To
date, our Chinese operations have not experienced significant losses as a result of such practice; however, there
can be no assurance that such losses could not occur in the future. Any such losses could have a materially
adverse affect on our results of operations in the period in which they occur.
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We have renewed an agreement with Voest-Alpine, an entity of which we own 50.01%, to purchase green
tubulars through September 2007. Our future results could be adversely affected if we are unable to use or
resell these tubulars. In addition, we have agreed to be responsible for paying any “anti-dumping” duties in the
U.S. on the resale of these tubulars, which could affect our ability to resell the tubulars in the U.S. Further,
our long-term supply contract with Voest-Alpine is denominated in Euros. We have no significant offset for
revenues in Euros and we have not hedged for currency risk with respect to this contract. Thus, a material
long-term strengthening of the Euro versus the U.S. dollar could materially adversely affect our results of
operations.

In connection with our business opevations, we could be subject to substantial liability claims that
adversely affect our results of operations.

Our products are complex, and the failure of this equipment to operate properly or to meet specifications
may greatly increase our customers’ costs of drilling a well. In addition, many of these products are used in
hazardous drilling and production applications where an accident or product failure can cause personal injury
or loss of life; damage to property, equipment, or the environment; regulatory investigations and penalties; and
the suspension of the end-user’s operations. If our products or services fail to meet specifications or are
involved in accidents or failures, we could face warranty, contract, or other litigation claims for which we may
be held responsible and our reputation for providing quality products may suffer.

Our insurance may not be adequate in risk coverage or policy limits to cover all losses or liabilities that we
may incur or be responsible. Moreover, in the future we may not be able to maintain insurance at levels of risk
coverage or policy limits that we deem adequate or at premiums that are reasonable for us, particularly in the
recent environment of significant insurance premium increases. Further, any claims made under our policies
will likely cause our premiums ta increase. ‘

Any future damages deemed to be caused by our products or services that are assessed against us and that
are not covered by insurance, or that are in excess of policy limits or subject to substantial deductibles, could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Litigation and claims for
which we are not insured can occur, including employee claims, intellectual property claims, breach of
contract claims, and warranty claims. Our forward-looking statements assume that such uninsured c¢laims or
issues will not occur. We account for warranty reserves on a specific identification basis. As a result, a
significant unexpected warranty issue during a particular quarter or year could cause a material reduction in
our results of operations in the quarter or year that the reserve for such warranty is made.

We are subject to environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations that expose us to potential
Sfinancial lability.

Our operations are regulated under a number of federal, state, local, and foreign environmental laws and
regulations, which govern, among other things, the discharge of hazardous materials into the air and water, as
well as the handling, storage, and disposal of hazardous materials and the remediation of contaminated sites.
Compliance with these environmental laws is a major consideration in the manufacturing of our products.
Because we use and generate hazardous substances and wastes in our manufacturing operations, we may be
subject to material financial liability for any investigation and clean up of such hazardous materials, and any
related personal injury damages or toxic tort claims. We have not historically carried insurance for such
matters.

In addition, many of our current and former properties are or have been used for industrial purposes.
Accordingly, we also may be subject to financial liabilities relating to the investigation and remediation of
hazardous materials resulting from the action of previous owners or operators of industrial facilities on those
sites. Liability in many instances may be imposed on us regardless of the legality of the original actions
relating to the hazardous or toxic substances or whether or not we knew of, or were responsible for, the
presence of those substances.

We are also subject to various federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations relating to safety and
health conditions in our manufacturing facilities. Those laws and regulations may subject us to material
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financial penalties or liabilities for any noncompliance, as well as potential business disruption if any of our
facilities or a portion of any facility is required to.be temporarily closed as a result of any violation of those
laws and regulations. Any such financial liability or business disruption could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

Our results of operations could be adversely affected by actions under U.S. trade laws and new foreign
entrants into U.S. markets.

Although we are a U.S.-based manufacturing company, we do own and operate international manufactur-
ing operations that support our U.S.-based business. If actions under U.S. trade laws were instituted that
limited our access to these products, our ability to meet our customer specifications and delivery requirements
would be reduced. Any adverse effects on our ability to import products from our foreign subsidiaries could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

, Additionally, foreign producers of tubular goods have been found to have sold their products, which may
include premium connections, for export to the U.S. at prices that are lower than the cost of production, or
their prices in their home market, or a major third-country market. Anti-dumping orders restricting the
manner and price at which tubular goods from certain countries can be imported are currently in effect. If
such orders are revoked or changed, we could be exposed to increased competition from imports that could
reduce our sales and market share. In addition, the premium connections market served by our Atlas Bradford
product line is highly competitive. The level of competition could further increase if foreign steel mills, with
their own lines of internationally accepted premium connections, more successfully penetrate the U S. market,
which could adversely affect our results of operations.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Marker Risk
Financial Instruments

We are currently exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions that we enter into in the
normal course of business. These risks relate to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and changes in
interest rates. Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for additional information on financial instruments.

Foreign Currency Risk

The functional currency for the majority of our international operations is the U.S. dollar. Adjustments
resulting from the remeasurment of the local currency financial statements into the U.S dollar functional
currency, which uses a combination of current and historical exchange rates, are included in net income in the
current period. The functional currency of our Canadian, Venezuelan and Chinese operations is the local
currency. Adjustments resulting from the translation of the local functional currency financial statements to
the U.S dollar, which is based on current exchange rates, are included in stockholders’ equity in the current
periad. In addition, our long-term supply contract with Voest-Alpine is denominated in Euros. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses are reflected in income for the period. Net foreign currency transaction
gains (losses) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were ($2.7 million), $3.2 million, and
$(0.2 million), respectively. The foreign currency transaction losses realized in 2004 were primarily from the
U.S. dollar weakening in relation to the Euro and British Pound. The foreign currency transaction gains
realized in 2003 relate primarily to the strengthening of the Canadian dollar and the British pound in relation
to the U.S. dollar.




Interest Rates

We are and will be subject to market risk for changes in interest rates related primarily to our long-term
debt. The following table summarizes our debt obligations at December 31, 2004 and 2003, that are sensitive
to changes in interest rates.

The tables present principal cash flows by expected maturity dates and weighted average interest rates:

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter
(In thousands)

Long-term debt:

Fixedrate .................. $4,181 81,273 $199,705 8234  $175,245 $1,316
Average interest rate ......... 9.28%  9.32% 9.22% 8.96% 8.94% 5.04%
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter

(In thousands)
Long-term debt:

Fixedrate ................ - $2642 0§ 285 $§ 212 $199,528 $ 234 $176,559

‘Average interest rate ....... 9.30% 9.32% 9.33% 9.22% 8.96% 8.97%
Variable rate . ............. $7,143  §$7,143  $42,892 § —  $ — 3 —
Average interest rate ....... 4.13% 4.12% 4.12% — — —

As of December 31, 2004, our long-term borrowings at variable rates were paid off, therefore, we were not
exposed to the risk of cash flow variability due to increased or decreased interest expense in the event of changes
in short-term interest rates. However, the Company’s fixed rate Senior Notes outstanding at December 31, 2004
subject the Company to risks related to changes in the fair value of the debt and exposes the Company to
potential gains or losses if it were to repay or refinance such debt. A 1% change in market interest rates would
increase or decrease the fair value of our fixed rate debt by approximately $9 million to $10 million.

The fair value of financial instruments which differed from their carrying value at December 31, 2004 and
2003, were as follows:
December 31,

2004 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
(In millions)
9% Senior Notes due 2007......................... $199.5  $225.1 $199.3  $229.0
9% Senior Notes due 2009 .......................... 175.0 196.7 175.0 196.8

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The following consolidated financial statements are filed in this Item 8:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting

Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2004

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grant Prideco, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Grant Prideco, Inc. as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Grant Prideco, Inc. at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004,
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As described in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for goodwill effective January 1, 2002,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness. of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 29, 2005,
expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting.

/s!/ ERNST & Young LLP

Houston, Texas
March 29, 2005




GRANT PRIDECO, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

ReVenUEs . ... o e
Operating Expenses:
Costofsales ................. e e e
Sales and marketing .............. e
General and administrative .......... P R
Research and.engi'neering ...... e
Other charges . ... i e

Operating Income .. ........... ..
Interest Expense ... ... .. i e

Other Income (Expense), Net .. ... .. ... ... ... .. .. :

Equity Income (Loss) in Unconsolidated Affiliates .. ...............

Income From Continuing Operations .Before Income Taxes and
Minority Interests ... ... ... ... ot e

Income Tax Provision........... ... ..o e
Income from Continuing Operations Before Minority Interests .......
Minority Interests . .................... e e

Income from Continuing Operations .......................... ...
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax ..........

Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change ............
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, Net of Tax ..............
Net INCOME . ...ttt e e e
Basic Net Income Per Share:

Income from continuing operations. ........... ..ot

Income (loss) from discontinued operations . ....................
Cumulative effect of accounting change...................... ...

NEtINCOME ..ottt e e e e e

Basic weighted average shares outstanding ......................
Diluted Net Income Per Share: ‘

Income from continuing operations. . ........... i i,

Income (loss) from discontinued operations .....................

Cumulative effect of accounting change................. PR

Nt INCOIIE . .ottt ittt e e e

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding.....................

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)

$945,643  $803,818  $609,390
560,807 533,572 472,220
1283585 106,589 27,828
85,071 69,251 52,112
20,473 17,711 3,190
9,035 31,398 7,045
803,971 758,521 562,395
141,672 45,297 46,995
(41,889)  (43,871)  (27,040)
398 11,164 {982)
1,565 (478) 5,342
(39,926) (33,185) . (22,680)
101,746 12,112 24,315
(31,710) (4,239) (7,574)
70,036 7,873 16,741
(5243)  (3,216) _ (3.051)
64,793 4,657 13_,690
(9,527) 533 (644)
55,266 5,190 13,046

‘ — — (6,412)

$ 55266 $ 5,190 $ 6,634
$ 053 § 004 §$ 012
(0.08) — —

— — {0.06)

$ 045 $§ 004 $ 006
123,325 121,646 111,459
$ 051 $ 004 $ 012
(0.07) — —

— — (0.06)
$..044 $ 004 $ 0.06
126,091 . 123,401 112,854




GRANT PRIDECO, INC,
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except par value amounts)

December 31,

2004 2003
ASSETS
Current Assets:
CaSh oo $ 47552 $ 19,230
Restricted cash ... oottt i e e e e 231 283
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $8,024
and $3,539 for 2004 and 2003, respectively .................coiiiinn.. 202,084 212,285
INVEnOMIES .« o ittt e e e e 288,820 231,994
Deferred charges ...... . i i e 17,204 —
Current deferred tax assets .. ... it i 26,473 30,283
Prepaid eXpenses . ... ...ttt e e 12,033 12,924
Other CUITENT @SS8TS . .\ v vttt ittt et et et et et ettt 2,370 3,864
596,767 510,863
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net ........ ... ... . i i, 244,305 251,236
Goodwill . . e e 393,993 396,944
Intangible Assets, Net. . ... e e 43,807 36,250
Investments In and Advances to Unconsolidated Affiliates .................. 49,159 47,786
OB ASSETS . oottt et e e e 16,435 18,982

$1,344,466  $1,262,061

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities: :

Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt .............. $ 4,181 §$ 11,073
Accounts payable . .. ... e e e e 71,741 74,408
Accrued labor and benefits . ... .. 53,060 30,406
Deferred reVenUES . ... ..ot e 21,413 —
Federal income taxes payable. ... .. ... ... .. . i 8,144 14,401
Current deferred tax liabilities ... ... ... it i 3,108 3,763
Other accrued liabilities .. ... ..ot e 33,854 32,204
195,501 166,255

Long-Term Debt . ... o e e 377,773 426,853
Deferred Tax Liabilities ... ...t e e e 36,433 26,965
Other Long-Term Liabilities ........ ... i, 13,224 23,843
Commitments and Contingencies (See Notes 15and 16) ................... —_ —
Minority Interests . ... .ottt i e et e 15,994 12,031

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 10,000 shares; no shares issned in

2004 0r 2003 . .. e e — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 300,000 shares; issued 124,516
and 121,250 in 2004 and 2003, respectively ....... ... ... . ..., 1,245 1,212
Capital in excess of parvalue. ...... ... .ottt 530,687 488,350
Unearned compensation . .............iuiniirrireeein i, (8,300) (6,228)
Retained earnings. ... ... i i 192,289 137,023
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. ........... o il (12,291) (16,917}
Treasury stock, at cost, 617 and 535 shares in 2004 and 2003, respectively . . . (8,483) (6,692)
Deferred compensation obligation ............ .. ... . . i, 10,394 9,366
: 705,541 606,114

$1,344,466  $1,262,061

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GRANT PRIDECO, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

NetIncome ... ... i

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change .......................
Loss on sale of discontinued operations . .......................
Gain on sale of businesses, net ............ ... ... ... .. ...
Depreciation and amortization ............. ...,
Non-cash portion of other charges . ...........................
Bad debt expense ......... ..
Deferred income tax. ... i i i e
Equity (income) loss in unconsolidated affiliates, net of dividends
Stock-based compensation expense . ...,
Deferred compensation €Xpense ............coeeivenninnnn...
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries, net of dividends . . ..
(Gain) lossonsale of assets .. ....... ... i,

Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of businesses
acquired:
Accounts receivable ... ...
Inventomies . . ..
Deferred charges....................... e
Other current assets . ........otiiiiin e
Other assets . .. ... e
Accounts payable ......... ..
Deferred revenues . . ...
Other accrued liabilities. . ....... ... ... . .. . o
Other, Net ..o e

Net cash provided by operating activities ....................
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired....................
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of cash disposed ............
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations, net of cash disposed . .
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated affiliates............
Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment.............
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets................. .. ... ...,

Net cash used in investing activities.........................
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Repayments on revolver debt, net............ ... ... .. ... ...,
Borrowings on debt. ... ... e
Repaymentsondebt. ... ... ... . . .
Purchases of treasury stock .......... ...
Proceeds from stock option €Xercises ..........o.ocvveenenaneaa.. ..
Employee stock purchase plan purchases.........................

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities............
Effect of Exchange Rate Changeson Cash.........................
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash.............. ... ... . ... 0.
Cash at Beginning of Year ........ ... . o i

Cashat Endof Year ... .. ... . . . i

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

$ 55266 § 5,190 $ 6,634
— — 6,412
11,746 — —
(774) (3,393) —
43,220 44,688 28,831
6,010 31,247 2,580
3,844 1,948 1,106
20,096 (16,133) (3,317)
6,525 14,127 10,746
4,660 2,866 2,135
1,682 1,595 1,526
2,103 1,326 2,360
(4,466) 645 595
2,278 (29,747) 20,643
(60,039) (4,413) 50,169
(17,204) — —_
6,768 29,500 4,370
3,087 (281) (2,011)
64 13,075 (1,039)
21,413 — —
17,197 (5,652) (6,121)
(10,306) (3,650) (6,933)
113,170 82,938 118,686
(33,833)  (8272) (265,172)
2,180 30,364 —
19,859 — —
(4,167)  (5,459) (3,794)
(37,879)  (41,418)  (45,781)
8,459 981 911
(45,381)  (23,804)  (313,836)
(14,320)  (42,982) (2,391)
— — 226,635
(49,781)  (17,608)  (17,098)
(2,508) (2,388) (2,279)
25,791 566 1,173
928 — —
(39,890)  (62,412) 206,040
423 630 604
28,322 (2,648) 11,494
19,230 21,878 10,384
$ 47552 $19,230 §$ 21,878




GRANT PRIDECO, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Capital
Common Stock j Fycess Accum Other Deferred
__S001Par " orpy Unearned  Retained Comprehensive _L1e35uY Stock  compensation
Shares Amount Value  Compensation Earnings Income Shares Amount  Obligation Total
(In thousands)
Balance at December 31,2001 ............ 109,293 $1,093 $364,193  $(2,328) $125,199  $(22,551)  (168) $(2,551) $ 5912  $468,967
Components of Comprehensive Income:
NetIncome.................ccuvuunn. — — —_ — 6,634 — — — — 6,634
Currency Translation Adjustment........ — — — — — (1,740) — — — (1,740)
Change in Fair Value of Derivative ‘ ' .

Instruments, net of tax of (§74)....... — — — — — 164 — — — 164
Unrealized Gain on Securities, net of tax

Of ($24) oo — — — — — 54 — _ — 54
Total Comprehensive Income ........... — ) 5,112
Stock Grant and Options Exercised . ..... 169 2 1,171 —_ — — — — —_ 1,173
Tax Benefit of Options Exercised ... ..... — — 733 — Co—= — —_ — — 733
Deferred Compensation Obligation. . .. ... — — 374 — — — 28 421 (954) (159)
Issuance of Stock for Acquisition........ 11,353 113 110,798 — —_ — — — — 110,911
Issuance of Restricted Stock ............ — — 7,550 (7,550) — — - = — —
Amortization of Restricted Stock .. ...... — — — 2,135 — — . — 2,135
Purchase of Treasury Stock for Executive :

Deferred Compensation Plan.......... — — — — C— L — (202) _(2,279) 2,279 —

Balance at December 31,2002 ............ 120,815 $1,208 $484,819  $(7,743) $131,833  $(24,073) (342) $(4,409) $ 7.237  $588,872
Components of Comprehensive Income:
NetIncome........................ . — —_ — — 5,190 — — — — 5,190
Currency Translation Adjustment .. ... ... — — — — — 7,818 — L= — 7,818
Minimum Pension Liability, net of tax of - . . i . -

8356 .. — — — — — (662) — — — (662)
Total Comprehensive Income ........... — 12,346
Stock Grant and Options Exercised . .. ... 85 1 565 — — — — — — 566
Tax Benefit of Options Exercised .. ... ... — — 120 — — — —_ — — 120
Deferred Compensation Obligation. . ..... — — 10 — — 11 105 (259) (144)
Issuance of Restricted Stock............ 350 3 2,496 (2,499) — — — — —_ —
Amortization of Restricted Stock, Net ... — — — 4,014 [ — = — — 4,014
Compensation Expense for Accelerated : .

VESHDZ . oo — — 340 — — — — — — 340
Purchase of Treasury Stock for Executive ’ )

Deferred Compensation Plan.......... — — - —_— — — (204) (2,388) 2,388 —

Balance at December 31,2003 ............ 121,250 $1,212 $488,350  $(6,228) $137,023  $(16,917)  (535) $(6,692) $ 9,366  $606,114
Components of Comprehensive Income: ]
NetIncome...................cco.oo0 — — — — 55,266 — — - — 55,266
Currency Translation Adjustment........ — — — — — 3,966 — — — 3,966
Minimum Pension Liability, net of tax of : '

(8354) oo — — — — — 660 — — - 660
Total Comprehensive Income ........... — 59,892
Stock Grant and Options Exercised . .. ... 2,998 30 25,761 — — — — — — 25,791
Tax Benefit of Options Exercised . ....... — — 6,717 — — R — — — 6,717
Deferred Compensation Obligation.. ... .. 177 2 46 — — — 68 717 (1,480) (715)
Issuance of Restricted Stock............ — — 5,582 (5,582) — — — — — —
Employee Stock Purchase Plan Issuance. . 91 1 927 — — — — — — 928
Amortization of Restricted Stock ........ — - — 3,510 — — —_ — — 3,510
Compensation Expense for Accelerated ‘ ‘ ‘

Vesting . ... — — 3,304 C— — -— — — — 3,304
Purchase of Treasury Stock for Executive )

Deferred Compensation Plan.......... — — — — — — (150) _(2,508) 2,508 —

Balance at December 31,2004 ............ 124,516 $1,245 $530,687  $(8,300) $192,289  $(12,291)  (617) $(8,483) $10,394  §705,541

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GRANT PRIDECO, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

The Company is the world leader in drill stem technology development and drill pipe manufacturing,
sales and service; a global leader in drill bit technology, manufacturing, sales and service; and a leading
provider of high-performance engineered connections and premium tubular products and services. The
Company’s drill stem and drill bit products are used to drill oil and gas wells while its tubular technology and
services are primarily used in drilling and completing oil and gas wells. The Company’s customers include
drilling contractors; North American oil country tubular goods (OCTG) distributors; major, independent and
state-owned oil companies; and other oilfield service companies. The Company operates primarily through
three business segments: (1) Drilling Products and Services, (2) Drill Bits and (3) Tubular Technology and
Services. In the first quarter of 2004, the Company announced an organizational restructuring that resulted in
the former Marine Products and Services businesses now being reflected in the Tubular Technology and
Services segment. Prior periods have been restated for comparability.

The Company’s business is-dependent on the level of drilling activity worldwide, which depends on the
level of capital spending by major, independent and state-owned exploration and production companies. This
capital spending is driven by current and forecasted prices for oil and gas, and the perceived stability and
sustainability of those prices. The Company’s Drilling Products and Services segment and Drill Bit segment’s
revenues most closely track worldwide rig counts, while its Tubular Technology and Services business is
dependent on the U.S. rig count, particularly the natural gas rig count, and more specifically, rigs drilling for
deep gas in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Grant Prideco, Inc. and its majority-owned
subsidiaries (Grant Prideco). The following table lists less than 100% owned consolidated subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004:

% Ownership

Jiangsu Shuguang Grant Prideco Tubular Limited (JSG) ................ ... ... 70%
Tianjin Grant Prideco (TGP) ... . i e e 60%
H-Tech oo e 54%

The minority interests of the above listed subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
and Statements of Operations as ‘““Minority Interests”. Intercompany transactions and balances between Grant
Prideco’s businesses have been eliminated. The Company accounts for its 50% or less-owned affiliates using
the equity-method of accounting, as the Company has a significant influence but not a controlling interest (see
Note 7). '

Certain reclassifications of prior year balances have been made to conform such amounts to correspond-
ing 2004 classifications. These reclassifications have no impact on net income. As explained in Note 6, in
2004, the Company completed the sale of its Texas Arai division. Prior year results of operations of Texas Arai
have been reclassified as discontinued operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of certain assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and the related reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The significant estimates made by management in the accompanying consolidated financial
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GRANT PRIDECO, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

statements include reserves for inventory obsolescence, restructuring, self-insurance, valuation of goodwill and
tong-lived assets, allowance for doubtful accounts, determination of income taxes, contingent liabilities and
purchase accounting allocations. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Allowance for uncollectible accounts of $8.0 million and $3.5 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, are provided primarily based on specific account collection issues but also include a general
component. The provision for bad debt expense was $3.8 million, $1.9 million and $1.1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 respectively. The increase from 2003 to 2004 relates to foreign
receivables at the Company’s Drill Bits segment.

Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had $0.2 million and $0.3 million of
restricted cash, respectively. The restricted cash balance at December 31, 2004 and 2003 primarily related to
the Company’s 60% interest in TGP and is subject to dividend and distribution restrictions; however, such
cash is available to fund the local operations in China.

Inventories

Inventory costs are stated at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method. The Company
values its inventories primarily using standard costs, which approximate actual costs, that include raw
materials, direct labor and manufacturing overhead allocations. The Company performs obsolescence reviews
on its slow-moving and excess inventories and establishes reserves based on current assessments of factors
such as age of inventory, technological obsolescence, future product demands, market conditions and related
management incentives.

Inventories by category are as follows:

December 31,

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Raw Materials, Components and Supplies ........................... $104,543  § 96,528
WOrK 1N PrOCESS . o ot et e e 59,308 36,889

Finished Goods. ... ... e 124,969 98,577
‘ $288,820  $231,994

Work in process and finished goods inventories include the cost of materials, labor and plant overhead.

Reserves for excess and obsolete inventory included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31,
2004 and 2003 were $13.0 million and $14.9 million, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. The
costs of replacements, betterments and renewals are capitalized. When properties and equipment are sold,
retired, or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated and the
resulting gain or loss is recognized. Depreciation on fixed assets, including those under capital leases, is
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GRANT PRIDECO, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives for the respective categories. The
useful lives of the major classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Life
Buildings and Improvements . .. ... ...ttt 7-30 years
Machinery and Equipment ................... P 2-10 years
Furniture and Fixtures . ....... .. . e 3-7 years

Property, plant and equipment, net consisted of the following:
December 31,

. 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Land .. e $ 21,521 § 227715
Buildings and Improvements . .......... ...ttt 78,557 85,322
Machinery and Equipment .. .................. T 269,517 255,788
Furniture and FixXtures. . ... ...t i 29,058 23,479
Construction in Progress .. ... ... .. i 19,655 19,856
418,308 407,160
Less: Accumulated Depreciation . ....... e (174,003)  (155,924)

$ 244,305 § 251,236

Depreciation expense was $38.8 million, $42.0 million and $30.2 million for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, which includes depreciation of assets related to capital leases.

The Company reviews long-lived asset groups for impairment whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset group may not be recoverable and when management
determines it is more likely than not that an asset group will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly
before the end of its previously estimated useful life. This consists of comparing the carrying amount of an
asset group with its expected undiscounted future net cash flows. If the asset group’s carrying amount is less
than such cash flow estimate, it is written down to its fair value based on expected discounted future cash
flows. Estimates of expected future cash flows represent management’s best estimate based on currently
available information and reasonable and supportable assumptions. Any impairment recognized is permanent
and may not be restored. See Note 3 for discussion related to the Company’s fixed asset write-downs.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
(SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives are subject to at least an annual impairment test and more frequently if
circumstances indicate their value may not be recoverable. Goodwill is tested for impairment using a two-step
process that begins with an estimation of the fair value of each of the Company’s reporting units compared
with its carrying value. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of a reporting unit, a second-step test is
completed comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying value to measure the
amount of impairment. Intangible assets that are not amortized will be tested for impairment at least annually
by comparing the fair values of those assets to their carrying values. Other identifiable intangible assets that
are subject to amortization are amortized on a straight-line basis over the years expected to be benefited,
ranging from 1.5 to 20 years. These amortizable intangible assets are reviewed for impairment if circumstances
indicate their value may not be recoverable based on a comparison of fair value to carrying value. Based on the
Company’s annual goodwill impairment test as of October 1, 2004, the Company does not believe any of its
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GRANT PRIDECO, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

goodwill is impaired as of December 31, 2004. See Note 10 for discussion related to the Company’s goodwill
and identifiable intangible asset impairments.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation programs using the intrinsic value method of
accounting established by Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees” and related interpretations. Under APB No. 25, no compensation expense is recognized when
the exercise price of an employee stock option is equal to the market price of common stock on the grant date
and all other provisions of the grant are fixed. Nonemployee stock-based compensation is accounted for using
the fair value method in accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (see
Note 12).

Pro forma information regarding net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share is required by
SFAS No. 123. The pro forma information has been determined as if the Company had accounted for its
stock options under the fair value method. The following is a summary of the Company’s net income (loss)
and net income (loss) per share as reported and pro forma as if the fair value-based method of accounting
defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applied. For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of
the options is amortized to expense over the options’ vesting period. The pro forma effects of applying
SFAS No. 123 may not be representative of the effects on reported net income for future years since options
vest over several years and additional awards are made each year.

Pro forma information applying to the fair value method follows:
Year Ended December 31,

_ 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share
amounts)
Net Income
AsReported. ........ ... ... ... e $55,266 $ 5,190 $ 6,634

Add: Stock-Based Employee Compensation Expense
Included in Reported Net Income, Net of Related Tax
Effects(a) ............. ... .. ... P 4,642 2,831 1,388

Deduct: Stock-Based Employee Compensation Expense
Determined Under the Fair Value Method for All

Awards, Net of Related Tax Effects................. (9,565)  (12,208)  (18,299)

Pro Forma Net Income (Loss)......................... $50,343 $ (4,187) $(10,277)
Net Income (Loss) Per Share: '

Basicas Reported ...t $ 045 $ 004 $ 0.06

Basic ProForma ............... ... iiiiiiiiiiiin., $§ 041 S (0.03) $ (0.09)

Dilutedas Reported ........... ..., $ 044 $ 004 $ 0.06

Diluted Pro Forma .............. .. ... ... il $§ 040 $ (0.03) § (0.09)

(a) Includes stock based compensation, which is included in the non-cash portion of other charges in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require’ the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. See Note 12
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for a discussion of the assumptions used in the option-pricing model and estimated fair value of employee
stock options.

Pension Plans

On December 20,.2002, the Company assumed sponsorship of two defined benefit pension plans in
connection with the ReedHycalog acquisition. Generally accepted accounting principles require the Company
to develop actuarial assumptions in determining annual pension expense and benefit obligations for the related
plans. These assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis and modified as necessary to reflect changed
conditions. Further, the recognition of a minimum pension liability and in certain circumstances an
adjustment to stockholders’ equity is required when the fair market value of year-end pension assets are less
than the accumulated benefit obligation. Future increases or decreases to the minimum pension liability are
dependent upon actuarial experience, including whether asset returns exceed assumed rates of return.

The assets and related obligations of the defined benefit pension plans are presented in Note 13. The
plan’s assets are valued using market quotations and consist primarily of marketable equity and debt
instruments. The plan’s obligations and annual pension expenses are determined by independent actuaries and
through the use of assumptions. The key assumptions used in measuring the plans obligations include the
discount rate and the estimated future return on plan assets. In determining the discount rate, the Company
utilizes the yield on high-quality, fixed-income investments currently available with maturities corresponding
to the anticipated timing of the benefit payments. Asset returns are based upon the anticipated average rate of
earnings expected on the invested funds of the plans.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional éurrency for the majority of the Comipany’s international operations is the U.S. dollar.
Adjustmerits resulting from the reimeasurment of the local currency financial statements into the U.S dollar
functional currency, which uses a combination of current and historical exchange rates, are included in net
income in the current period. The functional currency of the Company’s Canadian, Venezuelan and Chinese
operations is the local currency. Adjustments resulting from the translation of the local functional currency
financial statements into the U.S dollar, which is based on current exchange rates, are included in
stockholders’ equity in the current period. In addition, the Company’s long-term supply contract with Voest-
Alpine is denominated in Euros. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are reflected in income for the
period. Net foreign currency. transaction gains '(losses) for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
were ($2.7 million), $3.2 million, and $(0.2 million), respectively. The foreign currency transaction losses
realized in 2004 were primarily from the U.S. dollar weakening in relation to the Euro and British Pound. The
foreign currency transaction gains realized in 2003 relate primarily to the strengthening of the Canadian dollar
and the British pound in relation to the U.S. dollar.

Fair Value of Financial Instriments Other Than Derivatives

The Company’s financial instruments other than derivative instruments consist primarily of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and debt. The book values of cash and cash equivalents; trade
receivables and trade payables are considered to be representative of their respective fair values due to the
short-term maturity of those instruments. The Company determined fair value for debt based on the traded
market quote as of the applicable period. The Company had approximately $382.0 million and $436.6 million
of debt at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The fair value of the debt at December 31, 2004 and
2003 was $429.2 million and $488.1 million, respectively.
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Off-Balance Sheet Financing

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet hedging, financing arrangements or contracts except
those associated with our investments in two companies that are not consolidated in the Company’s financial
statements: Voest-Alpine Tubulars GmbH & Co KG (Voest-Alpine) and IntelliServ, Inc. (IntelliServ).
These investments are accounted for under the equity-method of accounting. The assets and liabilities of
Voest-Alpine are summarized in Note 7. Additionally, Voest-Alpine has entered into forward contracts to
cover its currency risk related to accounts receivables and accounts payables, has entered into interest rate
swap agreements to reduce its exposure to changes in floating interest rate payments of its long-term bonds,
and has also entered into an agreement with a bank to sell a significant portion of its accounts receivable.
IntelliServ is the Company’s technology joint venture that is currently developing technology for intelligent
drill pipe that permits real-time transfer of data through the drill string. IntelliServ does not have any debt,
other than trade payables relating primarily to research and development expenses.

Contingent Liabilities

The Company has contingent liabilities and future claims for which it has made estimates of the amount
of the actual costs of these Habilities or claims. These liabilities and claims sometimes involve threatened or
actual litigation where damages have been quantified and the Company has made an assessment of its
exposure and recorded a provision to cover an expected loss based on its experience in these matters and, when
appropriate, the advice of outside counsel or other outside experts. Examples of areas where the Company has
made important estimates of future liabilities primarily include litigation, warranty claims, environmental
liabilities and contract claims.

Accounting for Income Taxes

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes”, assuming Grant Prideco was a separate entity for all periods prior to the spinoff from
Weatherford International Lid. (Weatherford). Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. See Note 14 for further details.

In connection with the spinoff from Weatherford, Grant Prideco and Weatherford entered into a tax
allocation agreement (the “Tax Allocation Agreement”). Under the terms of the Tax Allocation Agreement,
Grant Prideco will be responsible for all taxes and associated liabilities relating to the historical businesses of
Grant Prideco. The Tax Allocation Agreement also provides that any tax liabilities associated with the spinoff
shall be assumed and paid by Grant Prideco subject to certain exceptions relating to changes in control of
Weatherford. The Tax Allocation Agreement further provides that in the event there is a tax liability
associated with the historical operations of the Company that is offset by a tax benefit of Weatherford,
Weatherford will apply the tax benefit against such tax liability and will be reimbursed for the value of such
tax benefit when and as Weatherford would have been able to otherwise utilize that tax benefit for its own
businesses. Also, the Tax Allocation Agreement provides that Weatherford will have the future benefit of any
tax losses incurred by Grant Prideco prior, as a part of a consolidated return with Weatherford, to the spinoff,
and Grant Prideco will be required to pay Weatherford an amount of cash equal to any such benefit utilized by
Grant Prideco or which expires unused by Grant Prideco to the extent those benefits are not utilized by
Weatherford.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues when the earnings process is complete and collectibility is reasonably
assured. With respect to the Drilling Products and Services and Tubular Technology and Services segments,
this includes satisfying the following criteria: the arrangement with the customer is evident; the sales price is
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fixed or determinable; the manufacturing process is complete (including completion of all proper inspections);
title and risk of loss have passed to the customer and all delivery obligations have been met. If requested in
writing by the customer; delivery may be satisfied through delivery to the Company’s customer storage
location or to a third-party storage facility. With respect to the Company’s Drill Bits segment, revenue is
recognized when the customer runs the drill bit. Customer advances or deposits are deferred and recognized as
revenue when the Company has completed all of its performance obligations related to the sale. The Company
also recognizes revenue as services are performed. Additionally, the Company recognizes revenues associated
with rebillable shipping costs.

Deferred Revenues and Charges

For sales transactions where title and risk of loss has transferred to the customer but the supporting
documentation does not meet all of the criteria for revenue recognition prior to the products being in the
physical possession of the customer, recognition of the revenues and related inventory costs from these
transactions are required to be deferred until the customer takes physical possession. At December 31, 2004,
the Company had deferred revenues and charges related to such transactions of $21.4 million and
$17.2 million, respectively. The deferred charges represent customer-owned finished goods inventory on
deferred sales transactions for which legal title transfer has occurred, but the product is not yet in the
customer’s physical possession. See Note 19 for information on the restatement of the first three quarters of
2004. The impact of deferred revenues and charges on prior years’ financial statements was not material.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year excluding non-vested restricted shares. Diluted net
income (loss) per share reflects the potential dilution from the exercise or conversion of securities into
common stock. Common stock equivalent shares are excluded from the computation if their effect is
antidilutive. The computation of diluted earnings per share for 2004, 2003 and 2002 did not include options to
purchase 3.7 million, 5.1 million and 5.2 million shares, respectively, of common stock because their exercise
prices were greater than the average market price of the common stock.

The following table reconciles basic and diluted weighted average shares:
December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Basic Weighted Average Number of Shares Qutstanding . .... .. 123,325 121,646 111,459
Dilutive Effect of Stock Options and Restricted Stock, Net of
Assumed Repurchase of Treasury Shares .................. 2,766 1,755 1,395
Diluted Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding ... .. 126,091 123,401 112,854

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued the revised
SFAS No. 123, “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R), which addresses the accounting for share-based
payment transactions in which a company obtains employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of
the company or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the company’s equity instruments or that may
be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. This statement eliminates the ability to account for
employee share-based payment transactions using APB No. 25 and requires instead that such transactions be
accounted for using the grant-date fair value based method. This statement will be effective as of the
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beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005 (July 1, 2005 for the
Company). Early adoption of SFAS 123R is encouraged. This Statement applies to all awards granted or
modified after the Statement’s effective -date. In addition, compensation cost for the unvested portion of
previously granted awards that remain outstanding on the Statement’s effective date shall be recognized on or
after the effective date, as the related services are rendered, based on the awards’ grant-date fair value as
previously calculated for the pro-forma disclosure under SFAS 123.

The Company expects that upon the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company ‘will apply the modified
prospective application transition method, as permitted by the Statement. Under such transition method, upon
the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company’s financial statements for periods prior to the effective date of the
Statement will not be restated. The impact of this Statement on the Company’s financial statements or its
results of operations in 2005 and beyond will depend upon various factors, among them the Company’s future
compensation strategy. The Company expects that the effect of applying this Statement on the Company’s
tesults of operatlons in 2005 as it relates to existing option plans would not be materially different from the
SFAS 123 pro forma effect previously reported.

In November 2004, the FASB. issued SFAS No. 151 “Inventory Costs — An Amendment of ARB
No. 43, Chapter 4” (SFAS'151). SFAS 151 clarifies that abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight,
handling costs and spoilage should be expensed as incurred and not included in overhead. Further, SFAS 151
requires that allocation of fixed and production facilities overheads to conversion costs should be based on
normal capacity of the production facilities. The provisions in SFAS 151 are effective for inventory costs
incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company does not believe that the adoption of
SFAS 151 will have a significant effect on its financial statements.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”) enacted on October 22, 2004 provides for a
temporary 85% dividends received deduction on certain foreign earnings repatriated during a one-year period.
The deduction would result in an approximate 5.25% federal tax rate on the repatriated foreign earnings. To
qualify for the deduction, certain criteria in the Act must be satisfied. The Company is in the process of
evaluating whether it will repatriate foreign earnings under the repatriation provisions of the Act and if so, the
amount that will be repatriated. Through December 31, 2004, the Company has not provided deferred taxes
on certain foreign earnings because such earnings were intended to be indefinitely reinvested outside the
United States. Whether the Company will take advantage of this provision depends on a number of factors
including reviewing future Congressional guidance before a decision can be made. Until that time, the
Company will make no change in its current intention to indefinitely reinvest certain earnings of its foreign
subsidiaries. If the Company were to repatriate these earnings, a one-time tax benefit to the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations of up to approximately $2.1 million could occur.

In December 2003, the FASB revised SFAS No. 132, “Employer’s Disclosures about Pensions and
Other Post-Retirement Benefits”. The revised'Statement requires new disclosures in addition to those required
by the original Statement about the assets, obligations, cash flows and net periodic benefit costs of defined
benefit pension plans and other defined benefit post-retirement plans. As revised, SFAS No. 132R is effective
for financial statements with fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003. The interim-period disclosures
required by this Statement were effective for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2003. However,
disclosure of the estimated future benefit payments was effective for fiscal years ending after June 14, 2004.
The Company adopted SFAS 132R during 2004. The adoption of SFAS 132R did not have any impact on the
Company’s results of operations or ﬁnancml position. See Note 13 for disclosures regarding the Company’s
deﬁned benefit pension plans.

In January 2003, the FASB Interpretatlon No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”
(FIN No. 46) was issued. FIN No. 46 clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
“Consolidated Financial Statements”, to variable interest entities (VIE’s), which are certain entities in which
equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient

46




GRANT PRIDECO, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated support from other parties.
The Interpretation is intended to achieve more consistent application of consolidation policies to VIE’s and,
thus, to improve comparability between enterprises engaged in similar activities even if some of those activities
are conducted through VIE’s. FIN No. 46 requires the entity, which absorbs a majority of the variable income
or loss of a VIE be considered the primary beneficiary and requires consolidation of the VIE. The
Interpretation was effective immediately for VIE’s created after January 31, 2003, and to VIE’s in which the
Company obtains an interest after that date. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to FIN No. 46,
(FIN No. 46R), to clarify some of the provisions of FIN No. 46 and to exempt certain entities from its
requirements. Under the new guidance, special effective date provisions apply to enterprises that have fully or
partially applied FIN No. 46 prior to issuance of this revised interpretation. Otherwise, application of
FIN No. 46R was required in financial statements of public entities that have interests in structures that are
commonly referred to as special-purpose entities for periods ending after December 15, 2003. Application by
public entities, other than small business issuers, for all other types of VIE’s was required in financial
statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004. The Company is not a primary beneficiary of a VIE’s
VIE nor does it hold any significant interests or involvement in a VIE. The adoption of this interpretation did
not have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

2. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table summarizes the components of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax:
‘ Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
: : . (In thousands)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments ................ $(12,289) $(16,255) $(24,073)
Minimum Pension Liability . ..................... e (2) (662) —
Total Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.......... $(12,291) $(16,917)‘ $(24,073)

3. Other Charges
2004 Charges

‘During 2004, the Company incurred $9.0 million of pre-tax charges, $6.2 million net of tax. These
charges include $3.8 million related to the relocation of the Company’s Corporate offices, $2.0 million due to
lease termination, severance and other exit costs related to the Drilling Products rationalization program and
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$3.2 million of severance costs related to the Tubular Technology and Services organizational restructuring.
The 2004 pre-tax charges are summarized in the following table: :

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Tubular Liability
Drilling Products  Technology Balance
and Services and Services Corporate  Total  Utilized 12/31/04

(In thousands)

Drilling Products
Rationalization' Program:

Lease termination cost(a) ... $1,430 $§ — $ — $1,430 §$ 276 $1,154
Severance costs(b) ......... 272 — — 272 272 —
Other exit costs(c)......... 349 : — — 349 349 —
2,051 — — 2,051 897 1,154
Severance Costs(d) .......... C— 3,207 — 3,207 3,207 —
Corporate Relocation '
Charge(e) ......c.covn.... — — 3,777 3,777 N/A —
$2,051 $3,207 $3,777 $9,035 $4,104 $1,154

The lease termination cost of $1.4 million, primarily recorded in the first quarter of 2004, is for a long-
term lease which is expected to be repaid over the next year for equipment located at the Company’s
Canadian facility. Due to the downsizing of the Company’s Canadian operations, this equipment will no
longer be utilized. This amount was included in “Other Current Liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

Severance costs of $0.3 million, primarily recorded in the first quarter of 2004, relate to employees that
were terminated in connection with the downsizing of the Company’s Canadian operations. These costs
relate to 79 employees and were paid in July 2004.

Other exit costs of $0.3 million, primarily recorded in the first quarter of 2004, are associated with the
downsizing of the Canadian operations.

Severance costs of $3.2 million, of which $0.9 million was recorded in the first quarter of 2004 and
$2.3 million was recorded in the second quarter of 2004, relate to the organizational restructuring of the
Company’s Tubular Technology and Services segment; These costs relate to 4 employees and of the
$3.2 million, $2.5 million related to accelerated vesting of stock options with the remaining $0.7 million
paid by June 2004,

Corporate relocation charge of $3.8 million, recorded in the third quarter of 2004, primarily relates to the
non-cash write-off of leasehold improvements and furniture and fixtures resulting from the relocation of
the Company’s Corporate offices in September 2004.

2003 Charges

During 2003, the Company incurred $37.8 million of pre-tax charges, $24.6 million net of tax. These

charges, which have all been utilized, include $24.9 million related to fixed asset write-downs, $6.4 million
related to inventory reserves for exited product lines which are classified in cost of sales, $6.4 million related to
asset impairments and $1.5 million related to stock based compensation expense.




(a)

(b)

(¢)
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The 2003 pre-tax charges are summarized in the following table:

Drilling Products Tubular Technology
“and Services ' " and Services Other Corporate Total

(In thousands)

Fixed Asset Write- ‘
Downs(a) ............ $24,924 $ — $ — s . $249%

Other Impairments(b) . .. - — 6,396 — 6,396
Stock Compensation
Expense(c) ........... .= — — 1,478 1,478
Contingent Liability '
Credit(d) ............. — — — (1,400)  (1,400)
24,924 — 6,396 78 31,398
Inventory Reserves for
Exited Product Lines(e) ‘ — 425 6,000 — 6,425
- $24,924 $425 $12,396 $§ 78  $37,823

The write-down of fixed assets was reported as other charges and related to assets taken out of service as
part of the Drilling Products and Services’ manufacturing rationalization program. The amount was
determined by use of internal appraisals and evaluations to assess the net realizable value upon disposal
based on expected future cash flows.

The other impairments relate to two technology joint ventures. The amount was determined by use of
internal appraisals and evaluations to assess the net realizable value upon disposal based on expected
future cash flows.

In May 2003, two members of the Board of Directors volunteered to step down to reduce the number of
common directors between Grant Prideco and its former parent, Weatherford, and vesting of their stock-

" based compensation was accelerated (See Note 12).

(d)

(e)

In July 2003, the disputé underlying the 2000 $4.7 million contingent liability accrual was settled for
$3.3 million, therefore a $1.4 million credit was recorded to refiect the actual 2003 settlement of the
liability accrued as a charge taken in 2000.

The inventory reserves for the exited product lines were reported as Cost of Sales and relate to the write-
down of industrial inventory drilling products, to their net estimated realizable values. The amount was’
determined by use of internal appraisals and evaluations to assess the estimated net realizable value upon
disposition. This inventory has been completely liquidated as of December 31, 2004.
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2002 Charges

During 2002, the Company incurred $7.0 million of pre-tax charges, $4.9 million net of tax. These
charges, which have all been utilized, included $2.6 million related to fixed asset write-downs and $4.4 million
for executive severance payments and related expenses and are summarized in the following table:

Drilling Tubular
Products Technology
and Services and Services Corporate Total
(In thousands)
Fixed Asset Write-Downs(a) .................. $2,360 $220 $ — $2,580
Severance(b) ........ .. ... i i — — 4,465 4,465
$2,360 $220 $4,465 $7,045

(a) The fixed asset write-downs relate to idle assets taken out of service pursuant to the Company’s ongoing
automation and efficiency initiatives and are classified as held for sale. The amount was determined by
use of internal appraisals and evaluations to assess the estimated fair value upon disposition.

(b) The severance charges relate to an executive employee terminated during June 2002. The amount
accrued for severance was based upon the terminated employees employment contract, which was paid in
July 2002.

4. Acquisitions

On August 27, 2004, the Company acquired Diamond Products International, Inc. (DPI), a designer and
manufacturer of specialized polycrystalline diamond compact (PDC) drill bits and coring equipment for
$17.0 million in cash. The purchase price for the DPI acquisition has been allocated to the fair values of net
assets acquired. The preliminary purchase price allocation is based upon the Company’s current estimates of
respective fair values, which is subject to final working capital adjustments. The Company expects to finalize
the determination of the fair value of assets acquired in 2005. The value of intangible assets recognized in this
acquisition was $3.1 million for patents and $1.3 million for customer relationships and goodwill recognized
was approximately $5.1 million, which is not deductible for tax purposes. The patents and customer
relationships are amortized over 15 years and 20 years, respectively. DPI’s results of operations are included in
the Company’s Drill Bits segment from the date of acquisition.

On June 21, 2004, the Company acquired the polycrystalline diamond compact (PDC) manufacturing
business of Novatek International, Inc. (Novatek) for $17.3 million in cash plus a non-interest bearing note
payable of $4.2 million, with $3.0 million due June 2005 and $1.2 million due June 2006, which has been
discounted to $4.0 million based on the Company’s incremental borrowing rate of 4.75%. The Company’s
management believes that this acquired PDC technology will provide the Company’s Drill Bits segment with
certain manufacturing capabilities to ensure a high quality supply of PDC cutters and better control over
cutter technologies. The purchase price for the PDC acquisition has been allocated to the fair values of net
assets acquired. The value of intangible assets recognized in this acquisition was $6.7 million for patents and
$0.3 million for a covenant not to compete and there was no goodwill recognized. The patents and covenant
not to compete are amortized over 15 years and 1.5 years, respectively. The PDC manufacturing business
results of operations are included in the Company’s Drill Bits segment from the date of acquisition.

On December 20, 2002, the Company purchased the ReedHycalog drill bits business from Schiumberger
Technology Corporation and its affiliates (Schlumberger) for $364.9 million, consisting of $259.3 million in
cash, $90 million in Grant Prideco common stock, and $15.6 million of assumed non-current liabilities and an
accrued working capital adjustment. The results of ReedHycalog have been included in the financial
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statements from the date of acquisition. ReedHycalog is a leading designer, manufacturer and distributor of
fixed-cutter and roller-cone drill bits to the global il and gas industry.

In addition to the cash and equity consideration for ReedHycalog, the Company assumed certain of
Schlumberger’s and its affiliates’ obligations, responsibilities, liabilities, costs and expenses arising out of or
incurred in connection with the operation of ReedHycalog. This includes, subject to certain exceptions, certain
of Schlumberger’s and its affiliates’ obligations, labilities, costs and expenses related to the operation of its
business, contractual matters, warranty claims and various accrued liabilities, including certain known and
unknown obligations, liabilities, costs and expenses arising or incurred prior to the closing date. The Company
believes that, as a result of Schlumberger’s indemnification obligations, the Company will not have any
material exposure for pre-closing matters. However, the indemnification the Company received is subject to
certain thresholds and limits and the Company cannot assure that such indemnification will be adequate.

The purchase price for ReedHycalog has been aliocate;d to the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. Some allocations are based on studies and independent valuations.

The components of the purchase price and final allocation, including the weighted average useful life of
intangibles, are as follows:

Intaﬁgibles
Weighted Average
Amount Useful Life
_ (In thousands)
Final Allocation of Purchase Price:

CashPaid .........ooviiieeein, S, - $259,271

Grant Prideco Common Stock Issued ..................... 90,000

Non-Current Liabilities Assumed ........... ... ... ...... 13,899

Accrued Working Capital Adjustment. .................... 1,745

Acquisition CostS . ..ot e - 5,151 .
Total Consideration and Acquisition Costs’............... $370,066

‘Final Allocation of Purchase Price: \

Current Assets ................... e $149,417

Property, Plant, and Equipment .......................... 45,794

Other Assets . ............... O 618

Identifiable Intangible Assets: .
Patents. ... .. e e 29,350 15.0
Customer Relationships, . ................ e e 3,300 20.0
Covenant Not to Compete ..., 1,000 1.5

Goodwill ... ... Y 161,807

Liabilities Assumed . .......... ... . : (21,220)

~ Net Assets Acquired .............. PR $370,066

Goodwill that is deductible for income tax purposes related to this acquisition was $73.6 million.

On September 13, 2002, the Company acquired the assets of Grey-Mak Pipe, Inc. (Grey-Mak), a
company headquartered in Casper, Wyoming that specializes in the threading of casing and tubing and
provides related accessories. The Company paid approximately $4.8 million in cash, and goodwill recognized
in the acquisition was approximately $0.6 million. Grey-Mak’s results of operations are included in the
Company’s Tubular Technology and Services segment from the date of acquisition.
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On May 7, 2002, the Company acquired 65% of Rotator AS (Rotator), a Norwegian company that
manufactures control valves and systems for the offshore oil and gas industry. On January 28, 2003, the
Company purchased the remaining 35% interest in Rotator. Total consideration for the purchase of Rotator
was 0.3 million ‘shares of Grant Prideco common stock with a value of approximately $5.1 million and
$6.1 million in cash. Goodwill recognized in the acquisition of Rotator was approximately $5.1 million, all of
which related to the 2003 step-acquisition. Rotator’s results of operations and financial condition are included
in the Company’s Tubular Technology and Services segment. In September 2003, the Company sold Rotator.
See Note 5 for further discussion of the Rotator disposition. '

On-March 26, 2002, the Company acquired an additional 48.5% interest in JSG, a Chinese entity
engaged in the manufacture and sale of drill pipe to the Chinese and related markets, thereby giving the
Company a 70% controlling interest in JSG. The Company previously owned approximately 21.5% of JSG and
accounted for its investment under the equity method. The Company paid approximately $0.5 million in cash
and issued 1.3 million shares of Grant Prideco common stock for the additional interest. Goodwill recognized
in the step acquisition of JSG was approximately $11.3 million. Subsequent to acquiring a controlling interest,
the Company’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSG. Previously recorded goodwill of
$2.9 million related to the Company’s initial 21.5% investment has been reclassified from “Investments in and
Advances to Unconsolidated Affiliates” to “Goodwill” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. JSG’s results of
operations ‘are included in the Company’s Drilling Products and Services segment.

On March 26, 2002, the Company also entered into the TGP joint venture for the manufacture of
unfinished upset to grade pipe in China, with the intent of this joint venture to supply JSG with all of its
tubular requirements. The Company currently owns a 60% interest in the TGP joint venture and invested
approximately $5.0 million for machinery and equipment representing the Company’s contribution to the joint
venture. TGP’s results of operations are included in the Company’s Drilling Products and Services segment.

The acquisitions discussed above were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The cost
of business acquisitions is allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair
values at the date of acquisition using third-party appraisals and management estimates. Management’s
estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but which are inherently
uncertain. The results of operations of all acquisitions are included in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations from their respective dates of acquisition. See Note 11 for supplemental cash flow information
concerning acquisitions.

Acquisitions discussed above, with the exception of the ReedHycalog acquisition, are not material to the
Company individually or in the aggregate for each applicable year, therefore pro forma information is not
presented. ’

The following unaudited pro forma summary presents information as if ReedHycalog had been acquired
at the beginning of 2002. The pro forma amounts include certain adjustments, including recognition of
depreciation and amortization based on the final allocated purchase price of the properties, plant and
equipment acquired and of intangible assets; adjustment to reduce employee benefit expenses related to
benefit plans not to be continued by Grant Prideco; increased interest expense on acquisition debt; and




GRANT PRIDECO, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

elimination of interest income that is not expected to have a continuing impact. The pro forma amounts do not
reflect any benefits from economies which might be achieved from the combined operations.

December 31, 2002

(In thousands,
except per share data)

ReVENUES ... $853,598
Net Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change ............. 23,737
NEt INCOMIE . .ottt e e e 17,325
Basic Earnings Per Share. .. ... . ... 0.14
Diluted Earnings Per Share . ........ ... .o 0.14

The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of what would have occurred if the ReedHycalog
acquisition had been in effect for the period presented and they are not intended to be a projection of future
results.

5. Dispositions

On March 4, 2004, the Company sold its Plexus Ocean Systems (POS) rental wellhead business for
$1.3 million in net cash. The POS operations were included in the Company’s Other segment. The Company
recognized a pre-tax loss of $0.1 million on the sale, which is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations in “Other Income (Expense), Net”. Revenues related to POS included in the Other segment’s
results for the years ended 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $0.2 million, $1.1 million and $0.9 million respectively.
Operating income (loss) related to POS for the years ended 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $0.0 million,
($4.4 million) and $0.3 million, respectively.

On December 2, 2003, the Company sold its Petro-Drive operations, a provider of hammer services, for
$7 million in cash. The Petro-Drive operations were included in the Company’s Tubular Technology Services
segment. The Company recognized a pre-tax loss of $0.1 million on the sale, which is recorded in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations in “Other Income (Expense), Net”.

On September 2, 2003, the Company sold Rotator for $14.3 million in cash, which included a post-
closing working capital adjustment of $0.8 million that was recorded in the first quarter of 2004 in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations in “Other Income (Expense), Net”. Revenues related to Rotator
included in the Tubular Technology Services segment’s results for the years ended 2003 and 2002 were
$8.7 million and $12.6 million, respectively. Operating income related to Rotator for the years ended 2003 and
2002 were $0.9 million and $1.3 million, respectively. ‘

On March 25, 2003, the Company sold Star Iron Works, Inc. (Star), a manufacturer of drilling tools for
the water well, construction, and utility boring industries, for $11.0 million in cash and a note valued at
approximately $0.9 million due March 2006. The gain recognized on the sale of Star was $1.3 million,
$0.8 million net of tax, and is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as “Other Income
(Expense), Net”. Revenues related to Star included in the Other segment’s results for the years ended 2003
and 2002 were $3.6 million and $19.5 million, respectively. Operating income related to Star for the years
ended 2003 and 2002 were $0.1 million and $1.4 million, respectively.

During the third quarter of 2004, the Company sold its Bryan, Texas Facility, along with some other fixed
assets, and recorded a gain on sale of assets of $2.2 million, which was recorded in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations in “Other Income (Expense), Net”.
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6. Discontinued Operations

On April 23, 2004, the Company sold the assets and business of its Texas Arai division for approximately
$20.2 million in cash, subject to final working capital adjustments, and recognized a loss on sale of
approximately $11.7 million, $10.4 million net of tax, which primarily related to the goodwill allocated to this
operation (see Note 10). Also included in the loss on sale was $0.4 million related to accelerated vesting of
certain stock options. Texas Arai was previously included in the Company’s Tubular Technology and Services
segment.

Following are the condensed statements of operations from discontinued operations related to Texas Arai:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
: (In thousands)
ReVvenUES . ...t e e $ 12,833  $34,638  $30,358
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes....................... 1,369 820 (990)
Income Tax (Provision) Benefit ........................ ... (479) (287) 346
Income (Loss) from Operations, Net of Tax ................ 890 533 (644)
Loss on Disposal, Netof Tax .................. e (10,417) — L -
~ Income {Loss) from Discontinued Operations ............... $ (9,527) $§ 533 $ (644)

Intercompany sales related to Texas Arai, which were eliminated from the condensed statements of
operations above, were $2.1 million, $5.1 million, and $5.9 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Intercompany profit was immaterial for the periods presented.

Following is a condensed summary balance sheet of discontinued operations for the assets and liabilities
sold related to Texas Arai, along with the goodwill allocated, which were included in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as of December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

Accounts Receivable. .. .. ..o i e e

Inventories . . ..o e e A

Total CUITENt ASSETS. o\ vttt ettt et et e e e e e

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net "......... e e
GoodWill . . e e

Accounts Payable .. ... ...
Other Current Liabilities .. ... i i

Total Liabilities . . oot e e
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7. Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

The following table summarizes the Company’s eq\iity-method investments:

December 31, |
2004 2003 |
Equity Income Equity Income
Investment - (Loss) . Investment (Loss)
. (In thousands)
Voest-Alpine ......................... $38,308 $6,413 $36,649 $4,028
IntelliServ........ e e 10,851 (4,848) 11,137 (3,567)
GPEX ..o — — — (939)

The Company’s 50.01% owned joint venture, Voest-Alpine, is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting due to the minority owner having substantive participating rights. Under the limited partnership
operating agreement (1) the Company has no rights to unilaterally take any action with respect to its
investment and (2) the day to day operations of Voest-Alpine are under the direction of a Management
Board, whose members are determined principally by the minority owner. The Management Board is
responsible for planning, production, sales and general personal matters, which represent substantive
participating rights that overcome the presumption that the Company should consolidate its 50.01%
investment. The investment in Voest-Alpine was $38.3 million and $36.6 million at December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively, and is included in the Drilling Products and Services Segment.

Summarized financial information for Voest-Alpine is as follows:

December 31,

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Current Assets ............... e e $103,561 $ 68,141
Other ASSetS ..o P 58,912 56,885
$162,473  $125,026
Current Liabilities ... ... $ 58259 % 32,176
Other Liabilities . . ... ... e 65,827 54,482
Stockholders’ Equity ....... .. oo i 38,387 38,368

$162,473  $125,026

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{In thousands)
Net Sales ......... e $320,141  $224960  $220,266
Gross Profit ........... T 31,862 22,008 33,280
NetIncome ... ... i e 13,104 7,268 16,443
- Company’s Equity Income . .. ................ ... ... 6,413 4,028 8,446
Dividends Received. .. ... ... ... 8,090 13,649 16,088

The Company’s equity in earnings differs from its proportionate share of net income due to the
elimination of intercompany profit on Voest-Alpine sales to the Company. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
the Company’s investment in Voest-Alpine exceeded its equity in its net assets by approximately $19.1 million
and $17.5 million, respectively, due to goodwill, tax adjustments and timing differences.
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During 2004, the Company’s supply agreement with Voest-Alpine was amended. The amended
agreement provided for a reduced minimum quantity commitment per year through July 31, 2007, effective
April 1, 2004, The amendment also provides for a surcharge provision under which actual costs of key raw
materials in the green pipe production process will be indexed to the April 2003 base cost and surcharges per
ton assessed accordingly for the difference. These surcharges are phased in and did not significantly impact
2004, however, they will be in place for 2005 forward. The contract includes a penalty for every metric ton that
a two-year average of purchases fall below the annual purchase minimum. During 2004, the Company met its
minimum purchase requirements and the Company currently believes it will meet it’s contractual commit-
ments for 2005 without incurring unnecessary penalties or material unnecessary inventory positions. Purchases
of tubulars from Voest-Alpine totaled $44.3 million, $27.0 million and $22.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Trade payables to Voest-Alpine were $6.6 million and
$9.3 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In September 2001, the Company entered into a joint venture, G-PEX, related to the commercialization
of composite progressive cavity motors and pumps. The Company has a 50% interest in this joint venture and
its investment is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. G-PEX has encountered several
engineering and technical delays and as of December 31, 2003 had not delivered any products for field-testing.
As a result, the Company was uncertain that G-PEX would be able to successfully commercialize its product
line, and therefore, concluded, in the fourth quarter of 2003, that the G-PEX investment was other than
temporarily impaired based on expected future cash flows. A charge was recorded in 2003 to write-off the net
investment of $2.6 million and all future cash advances to fund G-PEX’s operations will be expensed. In 2004,
the Company incurred $1.0 million of expenses in 2004 related to GPEX. The Company is currently in the
process of winding-up its GPEX investment.

In May 2001, the Company purchased all of the outstanding shares of Intellipipe, Inc. common stock for
0.6 million shares of Grant Prideco common stock with a fair value of approximately $12.0 million. The
Company, through its 100% owned subsidiary Intellipipe, Inc., owns a 50% interest in IntelliServ. IntelliServ is
currently developing and commercializing a drill pipe telemetry system. The Company’s investment in
IntelliServ is accounted for under the equity method of accounting and as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the
Company’s investment in IntelliServ was $10.9 million and $11.1 million, respectively, and is included in the
Drilling Products and Services Segment. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 the
Company has recorded equity losses of $4.8 million, $3.6 million and $3.0 million, respectively. IntelliServ is
in the field trial testing and refinement stage and has not yet introduced a product commercially.

8. Short-Term Debt

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had no outstanding short-term borrowings. At December 31,
2003, the Company had short-term borrowings of $1.3 million with a weighted average interest rate of 4.6%.
Additionally, at December 31, 2004 and 2003, there were $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively, of
outstanding letters of credit not supported by the Senior Credit Facility.
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9. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31,
20064 2003
(In thousands)

Senior Credit Facility:

Term 10an . ..o e $ — § 42,857
Revolving credit facility............. e [ — 14,320
9%4% Senior Notes due 2007, Net of Unamortized Discount of $518 and
$695 in 2004 and 2003, Respectively.............. e 199,482 199,305
9% Senior Notes due 2009 . ... . .. o 175,000 175,000
Capital Lease Obligations Under Various Agreements ................. — 1,441
Other .. ... e 7,472 3,715
381,954 436,638
Less: Current Portion of Long-Term Debt ........................... 4,181 9,785

$377,773  $426,853

The following is a summary of scheduled long-term debt maturities by year (in thousands):

20005 e $ 4,181
2000 .o 1,273
2007 . 199,705
2008 . 234
2000 L 175,245
Thereafter ... e 1,316

$381,954

Senior Credit Facility

In connection with the ReedHycalog acquisition in December 2002, the Company entered into a new
four-year $240 million senior secured credit facility (Senior Credit Facility) with a syndicate of U.S. and
foreign banks. The Senior Credit Facility was comprised of a $50 million term loan and a $190 million
revolving credit facility, which includes up to $20 million for letter of credits.

The U.S. credit facility is guaranteed by Grant Prideco, Inc. and all domestic subsidiaries and is secured
by substantially all of the Company’s U.S. assets, including U.S. inventories, equipment, receivables, owned
real property and 65% of the stock of certain foreign subsidiaries. The Canadian credit facility is guaranteed by
Grant Prideco, Inc. and all U.S. subsidiaries and is secured by substantially all of the Company’s U.S. assets
and certain Canadian inventories, equipment, receivables, owned real property and 65% of the stock of certain
foreign subsidiaries.

Amounts outstanding under the Senior Credit Facility accrue interest at a variable rate based on either
the U.S. prime rate (plus 0.75% to 1.75% depending on the Company’s leverage ratio) or LIBOR (plus 1.75%
to 2.75% depending on the Company’s leverage ratio) for the U.S. denominated advances or a variable rate
based on the Canadian prime rate (plus 0.75) or the applicable rate for Canadian bankers acceptances, for
Canadian denominated advances. Interest on outstanding borrowings is payable monthly or, with respect to
LIBOR borrowings, either quarterly or at the end of the applicable LIBOR period. The U.S. revolving credit

57




GRANT PRIDECO, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

facility also provides the Company with availability for letters of credit. The Company is required to comply
with various affirmative and negative covenants, which will limit the Company’s ability to incur new debt,
make certain investments and acquisitions, sell assets, grant liens, and take other actions. The Company is also
subject to financial covenants that require the Company to limit its capital expenditures and, under certain
circumstances, require the Company to maintain a certain minimum fixed charge coverage ratio. As of
December 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with the various covenants under the Senior Credit
Facility. '

As of December 31, 2004, the Company did not have any outstanding borrowings under the Senior
Credit Facility and $7.7 million of revolver availability had been reserved to support outstanding letters of
credit. Once the term loan was repaid, it no longer represented availability under the Senior Credit Facility. As
of December 31, 2003, the Company had borrowed $57.2 million under the Senior Credit Facility, of which
$42.9 million relates to the term loan, $14.3 million relates to the revoiving credit facility and $5.9 million had
been used to support outstanding letters of credit. Net borrowing availability was $168.0 million and
$122.3 million as of December 2004 and 2003, respectively.

9% Senior Notes Due 2009

In December 2002, the Company issued $175.0 million principal amount of 9% Senior Notes Due 2009
(9% Senior Notes). Net proceeds from the issuance of $170.4 million were used, along with certain other
funds, to fund the cash portion of the ReedHycalog acquisition. Interest is payable June 15 and December 15
of each year. After December 15, 2006, the Company may redeem all or part of the 9% Senior Notes at any
time at a price of 100% of their principal amount plus an applicable premium and accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date. The 9% Senior Notes are guaranteed by all of the Company’s domestic subsidiaries.
The indenture governing the 9% Senior Notes contains various covenants customary in such instruments,
including restrictions to incur new debt, pay dividends, sell assets, grant liens and other related items.

9/s% Senior Notes Due 2007

In December 2000, the Company issued $200.0 million principal amount of 9%4% Senior Notes Due 2007
(9°4% Senior Notes). The 9%:% Senior Notes were issued at a discount to yield an effective interest rate of
9%.%. Interest is payable June 1 and December 1 of each year. The Company may redeem all or part of the
9%:% Senior Notes at any time at a price of 100% of their principal amount plus an applicable premium and
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. The 9%% Senior Notes are guaranteed by all of the
Company’s domestic subsidiaries. The indenture governing the 9%% Senior Notes contains various covenants
customary in such instruments, including restrictions to incur new debt, pay dividends, sell assets, grant liens
and other related items.

In the event there is a payment default under the Senior Credit Facility, the 9% and 9%% Senior Notes
could come due. As of December 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with the various covenants under
the 9% and 9%:% Senior Notes agreements.

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”. SFAS No. 142 provides for a two-step transitional goodwill impairment test with respect to existing
goodwill. The Company’s reporting units under SFAS No. 142 are as follows: 1) Drilling Products and
Services, 2) Drill Bits, 3) Tubular Technology and Services and 4) Other. Completion .of the annual
impairment test for 2002, upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, indicated the carrying value of the Other reporting
unit exceeded its fair value and the Company recorded a goodwill impairment loss totaling $9.3 million,
$6.4 million net of tax. This charge had no impact on cash flows and was recorded as a cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle in the Consolidated Statements of Operations effective January 1, 2002. The
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fair value of the Other reporting unit was determined using a combination of discounted cash flow projections
and comparable company market value multiples. The circumstances leading to the goodwill impairment in
the Other reporting unit were overall weak market conditions in the telecommunications industry, which
contributed to declining revenues and profitability, and a reduction in the estimated future expected
performance of this reporting unit. :

During 2003, the Company transferred the Plexus International (Plexus) division from the Tubular
Technology and Services reporting unit to the' Other reporting unit which had acquired goodwill of
$2.5 million. Plexus, which was acquired in 2001 (see Note 4), was never integrated into the Tubular
Technology and Services reporting unit after its acquisition and the benefits of its goodwill were never realized
in the Tubular Technology and Services reporting unit. Additionally, during 2003 the Company sold its Star,
Petro-Drive and Rotator businesses and goodwill allocated to these sales of $1.5 million, $1.6 million and
$4.8 million, respectively, were based upon the proportional relative fair market values of the businesses sold
to their respective reporting unit that was retained. See Note 5 for further discussion of these dispositions.

During 2004, the Company sold its Texas Arai operations. Goodwill allocated to this sale of $8.0 million
was based upon the proportional relative fair market value of Texas Arai to the Tubular Technology and
Services reporting unit that was retained. See Note 6 for further discussion of this discontinued operation.

The Company performs its annual test for potential goodwill impairment as of October 1st of each year or
when events occur or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a
reporting unit below its carrying amount. For 2003, the annual impairment test indicated that the fair value of
the Other reporting unit was below its carrying value and a goodwill impairment loss was recorded totaling
$2.5 million, $1.6 million net of tax. For 2004, the Company completed its annual assessment, which indicated
no existence of impairment. The carrying amount of goodwill by reporting unit was as follows:

Drilling Products Tubular Technology
and Services Drill Bits and Services Other Total

(In thousands)

Balance, December 31,

2002 ... $125,199 $155,983 $111,367 $ 1,534 $394,083
Acquisitions . .......... — 5,823 3,047 —_ 8,870
Dispositions ........... — — (6,443) (1,534) (7,977)
Translation and Other

Adjustments......... - 4,259 509 (2,800) 2,500 4,468
Impairment Loss....... — — — (2,500) (2,500)
Balance, December 31,

2003 ... 129,458 162,315 105,171 — 396,944
Acquisitions ........... — 5,089 — — 5,089
Dispositions ........... — — (8,038) — (8,038)
Translation and Other

Adjustments......... 669 (671) — — (2)
Balance, December 31, ‘

2004 ... $130,127 $166,733 - $§ 97,133 $ —  $393,993

Intangible assets of $43.8 million and $36.3 million, including accumulated amortization of $10.3 million
and $7.3 million, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, are recorded at cost and are amortized on a
straight-line basis. The Company’s intangible assets primarily consist of patents, covenants not to compete,
trademarks, technology licenses and customer relationships that are amortized over the definitive terms of the
related agreement or the Company’s estimate of the useful life if there are no definitive terms. See Note 4 for
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discussion of newly acquired intangibles. During 2003, the Company recorded an impairment on licenses
related to its Plexus division of $1.3 million, net of $0.2 million of accumulated amortization. The following
table shows the Company’s intangible assets by asset category:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Intangibles Amortization Intangibles Intangibles Amortization Intangibles

(In thousands)

Patents ........ ... oo, $43,380 $ (5,908) 837,472 $33,160  $(2,877) $30,283
Technology Licenses .............. 1,438 (498) 940 1,288 (373) 915
Customer Relationships ........... 4,600 (333) 4,265 3,300 (167) 3,133
Trademarks. ..................... 1,610 (815) 795 1,610 (424) 1,186
Covenants Not To Compete........ 3,125 (2,790) 335 4,150 (3,417) 733

$54,153  $(10,346) $43,807  $43,508 $(7,258)  $36,250

Amortization expense related to intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
was $4.4 million, $4.1 million, and $0.9 million, respectively. Excluding the impact of future acquisitions,
estimated annual amortization expense related to existing intangible assets for years 2005 through 2009 is
expected to be approximately $4.4 million, $4.0 million, $3.7 million, $3.3 million and $3.2 million,
respectively.

11. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest and income taxes (net of refunds) was as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Interest Paid ... ... $38,241  $41,168  $26,068
Income Taxes Paid, Netof Refunds ........................ 22,369 13,530 21,139

The following summarizes investing activities relating to acquisitions:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Fair Value of Assets, Net of Cash Acquired................. $38,248  $(2,826) $263,061
Goodwill. . ... e 5,089 8,870 171,955
Fair Value of Liabilities Assumed ......................... (9,504) 2,228 (58,933)
Grant Prideco Common Stock Issued ...................... — —  (110,911)
Cash Consideration, Net of Cash Acquired.................. $33,833 § 8,272  $265,172

The acquisition information for 2003 primarily relates to fair value adjustments of net assets acquired in
the ReedHycalog acquisition in December 2002. Additionally, in June 2004 the Company entered into a
$4.0 million non-interest bearing note in connection with the PDC manufacturing business acquisition (see
Note 4 for further discussion).
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12. Stock-Based Compensation
Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plans

The Company has stock option plans pursuant to which directors, officers and other key employees may
be granted restricted stock and stock options to purchase shares of Grant Prideco Common Stock (Common
Stock). Stock options are typically granted at the fair market value on the date of grant.

The Company has in effect a 2000 Employee Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (2000 Plan), a
2000 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (Director Plan) and a 2001 Employee Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Plan (2001 Plan}. Under these plans, restricted stock or stock options to purchase up to an
aggregate of 15.8 million shares of Common Stock may be granted. At December 31, 2004, approximately
3.4 million shares were available for granting under such plans. Stock options and restricted stock vest one to
four years from the date of grant and expire ten to fourteen years from the date of grant. Restricted shares are
subject to certain restrictions on ownership and transferability when granted.

The Company also has stock options granted to employees and directors of Weatherford that were
granted prior to September 1998. Under the terms of Grant Prideco’s spinoff from Weatherford, these
employees and directors were granted an equal number of options to purchase Common Stock. The Company
granted a total of 1,247,255 stock options related to the Weatherford grants prior to September 1998. As of
December 31, 2004, options outstanding related to the Weatherford plans prior to September 1998 were
530,267.

Compensation expense of $3.3 million and $0.3 million was recognized in 2004 and 2003, respectively,
primarily related to accelerated vesting of certain stock option awards.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock options under the 2000 Plan, the Director Plan and the
2001 Plan along with the Weatherford grants prior to September 1998 as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 and the changes during the year ended on those dates are presented below (actual amounts):

2004 2003 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at the Beginning
of the Year ............. 12,510,605 $11.69 12,330,533 $11.81 12,305,863 $11.80
Options Granted During the
Year ................... 713,500 13.61 993,500 10.72 427,002 10.79
Options Exercised .......... (2,998,289) 8.69 (96,428) 8.29 (168,832) 6.95
Options Canceled .......... (131,012) 10.22 (717,000) 12.87 (233,500) 12.84
Outstanding at the End of
the Year................ 10,094,804 $12.74 12,510,605 $11.69 12,330,533 §$11.81
Exercisable at the End of the
Year ..., 5,648,654 $15.54 6,437,883 $13.66 3,039883 § 7.74
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life (Years) Price Exercisable Price
$247-8741 ... 3,476,241 9.36 $ 6.84 1,008,591 $ 6.11
$8.35-814.19 .. ... 2,768,296 9.75 11.57 849,796 11.51
$14.55-81999 . ... ... .. 3,850,267 8.45 18.90 3,790,267 18.96
10,094,804 9.12 $12.74 5,648,654 $15.54

The fair value of stock options granted by the Company during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was estimated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with the following weighted average assumptions (see Note 1 for pro
forma effect of applying fair value methodology):

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Weighted Average Fair Value of Stock Options Granted .......... $ 703 $547 §$ 588
Valuation Assumptions: ' ‘
Expected Option Term (Years) ...........ciiiiiinneinn... 7.4 7.4 74
Expected Volatility ......... ... i i, 42.50% 41.14% 43.00%
Expected Dividend Rate ........... .. ... . ... — — —

Risk Free Interest Rate .. ... i i 3.66% 3.64% 4.58%

Other Stock-Based Compensation

In June 2002 and January 2004, awards were granted under the 2000 Plan to executive officers for
500,000 and 60,000 shares of restricted stock, respectively. Additionally, compensation expense of $1.1 million
was recognized in 2003 related to accelerated vesting of a 2001 restricted stock award for a member of the
Board of Directors. '

In February 2004, the Company awarded 330,550 shares of restricted stock to officers and other key
employees under the 2000 Plan. The restricted shares vest on the ninth anniversary of the date of grant
(February 2013), however there is an accelerated vesting schedule based on the achievement of certain
predetermined performance metrics. Beginning with the third anniversary date of the grant through the eighth
anniversary date, the performance metrics are evaluated annually and early vesting will occur for meeting the
performance goals. Restricted shares are subject to certain restrictions on ownership and transferability when
granted. During 2004, the Company recorded compensation expense of $0.7 million related to these shares.

Also included in the February 2004 restricted stock award was a tax gross up bonus component based on
the incremental tax rate needed to reimburse the employees for the federal income taxes resulting from the
vesting of the restricted shares. As the tax gross-up bonus component will change based on the share price at
the vesting date, the estimated cash liability to the employees is considered to be a variable award under APB
No. 25 and therefore the liability is required to be adjusted as the stock price changes. The estimated ultimate
tax liability based on the market value of common stock at December 31, 2004 was $4.4 million based on the
stock price at that date, and is being recognized ratably over the expected vesting period. During 2004, the
Company recorded compensation expense of $0.7 million associated with this liability.
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A summary of the restricted stock awards and the amounts recognized as compensation expense for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except share amounts)
Shares Awarded . ... ... . ... .. .. .. 390,550 — 500,000
Weighted Average Fair Value of Restricted Stock Granted .... $ 1339 § — § 1510

Compensation Expense Recognized ........................ $ 3,510 $40t4 §$§ 2,135

Executive Deferred Compensation Plans

In April 2000, Weatherford spun off Grant Prideco to its stockholders as an independent, publicly traded
company. Weatherford maintains various Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Ownership Plans (the
“Weatherford EDC Plans™). Prior to the spinoff from Weatherford, participants in the Weatherford EDC
Plans had a right to receive shares of Weatherford common stock upon termination of their employment based
on the deferred amounts placed in their individual accounts. Under the Weatherford EDC Plans, in the event
of a dividend or special distribution to the sharecholders of Weatherford, the accounts of the employees are to
represent a right to receive the consideration provided through the dividend or special distribution. As a result,
participants in the Weatherford EDC Plans were entitled to receive shares of both Weatherford common stock
and the Company’s Common Stock in respect of amounts deferred by the participants prior to the spinoff.
Accordingly, a portion of the deferred compensation liability recorded by Weatherford was allocated to Grant
Prideco based on the relative market value of the Common Stock to the relative market value of the
Weatherford common stock on the date of spinoff. The liability transferred to Grant Prideco was approxi-
mately $4.2 million and is included in “Deferred Compensation Obligation in Stockholders’ Equity”. The
Company has reserved 519,000 shares of Common Stock in settlement of this obligation. As of December 31,
2004, 352,123 shares remain. Settlements under the Weatherford EDC Plans will be in Weatherford common
stock and the Company’s Common Stock.

At the time of the spinoff from Weatherford, Grant Prideco established separate Executive Deferred
Compensation Stock Ownership Plans (the “Grant EDC Plans”) in which certain Grant Prideco employees
- and directors participate. The terms of the Grant EDC Plans are substantially similar to the Weatherford
EDC Plans. A separate trust (the “Trust”) has been established by Grant Prideco following the spinoff to
fund the benefits under the Grant EDC Plans. The funds provided to the Trust are invested in Common Stock
through open market purchases by a trustee independent of the Company. The assets of the Trust are available
to satisfy the claims of all general creditors of Grant Prideco in the event of a bankruptcy or insolvency.
Settlements under the Grant EDC Plans will be in Common Stock. Accordingly, the Common Stock held by
the Trust is included in Stockholders’ Equity as “Treasury Stock, at Cost” and was approximately $7.8 million
at December 31, 2004. '

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In 2003, the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) was approved and the Company
reserved 1.2 million shares of Common Stock for issuance under the ESPP. Under the ESPP, eligible
employees may elect to withhold up to 10% of their earnings, subject to certain limitations. Each one-year
offering period commences on January 1st of each year, except the initial offering period which commenced
on July 1, 2003, and concludes on December 31st. The price at which the Common Stock may be purchased
under the ESPP is equal to 85% of the lower of the fair market value of the Common Stock on the
commencement date or the last trading day of each offering period. In January 2005, there were approxi-
mately 171,000 shares sold through the ESPP for 2004.
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13. Retirement and Employee Benefit Plans
Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has defined contribution plans covering certain of its employees. The Company’s expenses
related to these plans totaled $4.0 million, $2.4 million and $1.2 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Pension Plans

On December 20, 2002, the Company assumed sponsorship of two defined benefit pension plans in
connection with the ReedHycalog acquisition (see Note 4).

U.S. Pension Plans

As part of the purchase agreement with Schlumberger, Grant Prideco acquired the Reed Hourly Pension
Plan (the U.S. Plan). The U.S. Plan covers approximately 200 employees and provides a defined benefit based
on a fixed dollar amount per year of service. The fixed dollar amount is defined in the union contract and is
subject to change.

Obligations and Fuﬁded Status

The following table reflects information concerning the change in benefit obligation, change in plan assets
and reconciliation of funded status. The Company’s benefits are presented and computed as of and for the
twelve-month period ended on the December 31 measurement date.

2004 2003
(In thousands)

Change in Benefit Obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year ............... .. ... ... ... ... $13,675 $12,658
S EIVICE COS. .\ttt ittt e e 367 413
Interest cost ....... ... ... ... .. ... N 734 825
Benefits paid . .. .o (486) (478)
Actuarial (gain) 108S ... ... e (913) 257
Benefit obligation atend of year ........ ... ... .. . ... L. $13,377  $13,675
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year................ ... ..... $ 879 § 9,372
Actual return on plan assets . . . ...t e 787 (46)
Employer contributions ....... .. 244 —
Benefits paid . ...... e e e (486) (478)
Administrative eXpenses .. ... ...ttt e (176) (51)
Exchange rate changes ........... i — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year............................ $ 9,165 § 8,797
Funded Status at End of Year........ .. ... . i (4,212)  (4,878)
Unrecognized Net Actuarial Loss ........ e 4 1,018
Net amount recognized atend of year ........... ... .. ... ... .... $(4,208) $(3,860)
Amounts Recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets: ‘
Accrued benefit liability ... .. P e $(4,212) $(4,878)
Accumulated other comprehensive income. . ...... ... ...coiviinn... 4 1,018

Net amount recognized at end of year ......... ... ... ... .. ... ... $(4,208) $(3,860)
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The accumulated benefit obligation was $13.4 million and $13.7 million as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

The following table provides information related to the accumulated benefit obligation in excess of the
U.S. Plan assets:

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Projected Benefit ObHGation . . . ... oovvv et $13,377  $13,675
Accumulated Benefit Obligation .......... ... ... ... i, 13,377 13,675
Fair Value of Plan Assets . ... ..o e 9,165 8,797
Components of net periodic benefit cost:

2004 2003

(In thousands)
Service o8t . oot $ 367 § 413
Interest oSt . ... 734 825
Expected Return on Plan Assets .......... .. .. . . (560)  (7%9)
Administration Expenses...... ... ... . oo oo 510 91
Net Periodic Benefit CoSt...............civinn. T, $592 § 574

|

Additional Information

The Company is required to recognize a minimum liability if the U.S. Plan has an accumulated benefit
obligation in excess of plan assets. Adjustments to the minimum liability are included in other comprehensive
income.

2004 2003
(In thousands)

Increase (Decrease) in Minimum Liability Included in Other Comprehensive
Income ... . ... $(1,014) $1,018

Assumptions

Assumptions used to determine net benefit obligations for the fiscal year ended December 31:

2004 2003
DISCOUNt TAtE . . . oo e 5.78% 6.15%
Rate of compensation INCTEASE .. ... v ottt ettt ittt i aens N/A N/A
Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost:

2004 2003
DISCOUNE TALE . . . oottt e e e e e e e e 6.15% 6.75%
Expected return on plan assets ............i i 6.58% 8.50%
Rate of compensation inCrease .. ......... oot N/A N/A

To develop the expected return on plan assets assumption, Grant Prideco considered the current level of
expected returns on various asset classes. The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based on
the target asset allocation to develop the expected return on plan assets assumption for the portfolio.
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Asset Categories

The following table provides the target and actual asset allocations:

Actual
December 31,
Asset Category Target 2004 2003
Equity Securities ............... e e e 65% 68% 0%
Fixed InCome . ... i e e e 33%  31% 0%
OTHET . oottt et e 2% 1% 100%

100% 100% 100%

All of the U.S. Plan assets were invested in cash as of December 31, 2003 due to transition from the
acquisition of the plan.

The primary investment objective is to ensure, over the long-term life of the pension plans, an adequate
pool of sufficiently liquid assets to support the benefit obligations to participants, retirees and beneficiaries. In
meeting this objective, the pension plan seeks to achieve a high level of investment return consistent with a
prudent level of portfolio risk. Investment objectives are long-term in nature covering typical market cycles of
three to five years. Any shortfall of investment performance compared to investment objectives should be
explainable in terms of general economic and capital market conditions.

Cash Flow
The Company expects to contribute $0.8 million to the U.S. Plan in 2005.

The following table provides the expected benefit payments for the next ten years:

Fiscal Year Ending Payments
(In
thousands)
2005 .. ..ol e e e e $§ 651
2000 . . e e e 764
200 o 753
2008 e e 911
2000 . o e e 1,060
Next Syears ...t S [ 5,916
Total ....................... e $10,055

Non-U.S. Pension Plans

As part of the purchase agreement with Schlumberger, Grant Prideco acquired the Hycalog Retirement
Death Benefit Scheme (the Scheme). The Scheme covers approximately 115 employees and provides
pensions on a defined benefits basis. The Scheme is closed, with no future benefits accruing.
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Obligations and Funded Status

The following table reflects information concerning the change in benefit obligation, change in plan assets
and reconciliation of funded status. The Company’s benefits are presented and computed as of and for the
twelve-month period ended on the December 31 measurement date.

2004 2003
(In thousands)

Change in Benefit Obligation: :
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ................. .. ...l $21,480  $11,155

InereSt COSt o it e e 863 841
Employee contributions . ...t e — 77
Benefitspaid............... ... ... . .. EE TP (256) (216)
ACQUISILIONS . .. oot e e — 8,688
Actuarial (gain) 10SS . ...t i e {1,439) 935
Benefit obligation at end of year ................. ... . ... ... $20,648  $21,480
Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year......................... $17,956 § 9,230
Actual return on Plan @SSELS . .. oo v vttt e 3,429 2,339
Employer contributions . ...ttt — 6,526
Employee contributions . .. ....... ..ot e — 77
Benefits paid . .. .. ..o e {256) {216)
Fair value of plan assets atend of year............... . ... ... ... ... $21,129  $17,956
Funded Status at End of Year ......... ... .. i, 431 (3,524)
Unrecognized Net Actuarial Gain ........ ... o i, (5,120) (712)
Net amount recognized atend of year ............. ... ... ... $(4,639) §(4,236)
Amounts Recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Accrued benefit liability ....... ... . $(4,639) §(4,236)
Net amount recognized atendof year ............ ... . ... ... ..., $(4,639) $(4,236)

The accumulated benefit obligation was $20.6 million and $21.5 million as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

The following table provides information related to the accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan
assets (in thousands):

2003
Projected Benefit Obligation . ... .. i e $21,480
Accumulated Benefit Oblgation ... ... it ittt i i s 21,480
Fair Value of Plan ASSets ... .. i e e 17,956

For 2004, the fair value of plan assets exceeded the accumulated benefit obligation, therefore, no amounts
are presented above for the current year.
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Components of net periodic benefit cost:

2004 2003

(In thousands)
Interest oSt . o o $ 83 § 841
Expected Return on Plan ASSEts ... ..ot (927)  (692)
Amortization of Net Actuarial (Gain) Loss............ ... ... ... .. ..., (293  —
Net Periodic Benefit Cost (Benefit) ... e $(357) § 149

Additional Information

In 2003, as a result of a legal dispute regarding the benefit accruals of the Scheme, Grant Prideco
recognized an additional $8.7 million for the Scheme under purchase accounting. In 2004, the Company
reached a settlement with Schlumberger on various outstanding issues relating to the purchase agreement,
including but not limited to pension plan funding. As the settlement of the pension funding issue was not
directly linked to the purchase price, it was recorded to the income statement and not as an adjustment to
goodwill. The settiement was recorded as a $3.2 million reduction to pension expense in 2004. See Note 4 for
further discussion on the Reedhycalog acquisition.

Assumptions

Assumptions used to determine net benefit obligations for the fiscal year ended December 31:

- 2004 2003

DiSCOUNT TAte . . ..ot e e 4.75% 5.50%
Rate of compensation INCrease . ..............oiervminenenneaanaan, N/A N/A

Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost:

2004 2003

DiSCOUNT TALE . ..ottt 5.00% 5.50%

Expected return on plan assets .. ... ..ot 500% 6.75%
Rate of compensation increase ......... ... .ot N/A N/A

This Scheme’s assets are presently invested wholly in UK Government Bonds, therefore the expected
return on plan assets was derived from the expected yield on those bonds.
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Asset Categories

For 2004 and 2003, 100% of the Scheme’s assets were allocated to the fixed income investments.

Cash Flow
The Company does not expect to contribute to the Scheme in 2005.

The following table provides the expected benefit payments for the next ten years:

Fiscal Year Ending Payments
(In thousands)
200 L $ 235
2006 . e 262
00T 277
2008 L e 283
2009 ....... D 307
N Xt S YCaTS oottt e e e e 2,227
TOAL . .ot e $3,591

14. Income Taxes

The domestic and foreign components of income (loss) before income taxes consist of the following:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Domestic ... ... B $ 44975  $(42,768) $(5,058)
Foreign .. o e 56,771 54,880 29,373
Total Income Before Income Taxes ............cc.vvn.. $101,746  § 12,112 $24,315

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
{In thousands)

Current:
U.S. federal and state income taxes ...........o.vvvvnn.. $  (460) $§ (500) § (1,441)
Foreign ... . (11,154)  (19,872) (9,450)
(11,614)  (20,372)  (10,891)

Deferred:
U.S. federal and state income taxes .................... (14,879) 16,136 5,870
Foreign . ..o i (5,217) (3) (2,553)
(20,096) 16,133 3,317
Total Income Tax Provision(a) ........................ $(31,710) $ (4,239) § (7,574)

(a) Excludes the deferred tax benefit of $2.9 million relating to the cumulative effect of the accounting
change for the year ended 2002 (see Note 10). Also excludes $0.9 million, ($0.3) million and
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$0.3 million of deferred taxes from the income (loss) from discontinued operations for the years ended
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively (see Note 6).

The following is a reconciliation of income taxes at the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% to the
effective provision for income taxes reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Operations:
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

Provision for Income Taxes at Statutory Rates............... $(35,610) $(4,239) $(8,510)
Effect of Foreign Income Tax, Net ........................ 4,236 — (975)
Change in Valuation Allowance ........................ ... (4,523)  (4,300)  (2,000)
Preferred Supplier Credit............................ e 1,339 3,080 955
Extraterritorial Income Benefit ............................ 1,145 -~ 700 350
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates .............. 3,032 1,409 3,144
State and Local Income Taxes Net of U.S. Federal Income

Tax Benefit ............. . 900 (500) (305)
Amortization of Restricted Stock Award . ................... (2,220) — —
Other Permanent Items ........... ... ... .. ... .. (9) (389) (233)

Provision for Income Taxes . ...........c.covivueienonnn. $(31,710) $(4,239) $(7,574)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax effects of temporary
differences between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its reported amount in the financial statements.
The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities is based on enacted tax laws and rates currently in effect
in each of the jurisdictions which the Company has operations. Additionally, applicable U.S. income and
foreign withholding taxes have been provided on certain undistributed earnings of the Company’s international
subsidiaries that are not intended to be reinvested indefinitely outside of the United States.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current according to the classification of
the related asset or liability for financial reporting.




GRANT PRIDECO, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The components of the net deferred tax assets (liabilities) and the related valuation allowances were as
follows:
Year Ended
December 31,
2004 2003
(In thousands)

Deferred Tax Assets:

Foreign tax credits . ......... P $ 23,393  $14,365
Domestic and foreign operating losses. ...l . 1,367 7,910
Accrued liabilities and reserves ... . i 17,951 11,726
Inventory basis differences .......... ... ... oL, SN 4,778 11,727
Goodwill and other intangibles . ............. ... . .. ... oL — 4,250
Investments in unconsolidated subs . ......... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... ... 3,164 2,611
Total deferred tax assets ...t 50,653 52,589
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Goodwill and other intangibles .. ........... .. ... .. ... . ... (6,176) —
Property and equipment and other.............. ... ... ... ... L {36,042) (34,776)
Tax on non-repatriated foreign income ........... ... oo, (5,510)  (6,345)
Total deferred tax liabilities .............. ... ... ... (47,728) (41,121)
Valuation Allowance:
Foreign tax credits .. ...ttt s (13,924)  (9,400)
Total valuation allowance .................. e (13,924) (9,400)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) .............. [ $(10,999) § 2,068

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had United States net operating loss
{(NOL) carryforwards for tax purposes of approximately $3.2 million and $23.8 million, respectively, which
will expire in the year 2023. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had foreign tax credit
carryforwards, net of allowances, of $8.2 million and $5.7 million, respectively, which will expire in the years
2011 through 2014. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had a valuation allowance of $13.9 million
and $9.4 million, respectively, due to the uncertainty of utilization of foreign tax credits to reduce the
U.S. income tax liability. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had United States alternative
minimum tax credits of $0.8 million and $0.4 million respectively, which carryover indefinitely. During 2003,
$3.1 million was reclassed from another deferred liability to the valuation allowance. The Company has not
recorded a deferred income tax liability that would result from the distribution of earnings from certain foreign
subsidiaries if those earnings were actually repatriated. The Company intends to indefinitely reinvest certain
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries located in Italy, Canada, China, Mexico, Singapore, Venezuela
and the United Kingdom. In the event that the balance of such earnings were to be distributed a one-time tax
charge to the Company’s consolidated results of operations of up to approximately $14.9 million could occur.
At December 31, 2004 and 2003 the total amount of foreign earnings indefinitely reinvested is approximately
$34.2 million and $7.2 million, respectively. Deferred taxes at December 31, 2003 include an adjustment
related to the acquisition of ReedHycalog.

Certain subsidiaries operating in China qualify for a tax holiday. These tax holidays resulted in a
$2.0 million reduction in tax expense in 2004 or less than $0.02 per share, $1.0 million in 2003 or less than
$0.01 per share and $0.9 million in 2002 or less than $0.01 per share and they expire in 2005 and 2008.
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The calculation of the Company’s tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of
complex tax regulations in a multitude of jurisdictions. The Company recognizes potential liabilities and
records tax liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on its
estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. The Company adjusts these reserves
in light of changing facts and circumstances; however, due to the complexity of some of these uncertainties,
the ultimate resolution may result in a payment that is different from its current estimate of the tax liabilities.
If the Company’s estimate of tax liabilities proves to be less than the ultimate assessment, an additional charge
to expense would result. If payment of these amounts ultimately proves to be less than the recorded amounts,
the reversal of the liabilities may result in income tax benefits being recognized in the period when the
Company determines the liabilities are no longer necessary. Substantially all of these potential tax liabilities
are recorded in “Other Long-Term Liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as payment is not expected
within one year. During 2004, the Company reversed approximately $1.2 million primarily related to state
taxes and settled an audit of its Austrian joint venture for approximatety $0.5 miilion more than was in the
reserve,

During 2004, certain foreign countries in which the Company has operations reduced their statutory tax
rates. The effect on the deferred tax balance was approximately $0.6 million.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”) enacted on October 22, 2004 provides for a
temporary 85% dividends received deduction on certain foreign earnings repatriated during a one-year period.
The deduction would result in an approximate 5.25% federal tax rate on the repatriated foreign earnings. To
qualify for the deduction, certain criteria in the Act must be satisfied. The Company is in the process of
evaluating whether it will repatriate foreign earnings under the repatriation provisions of the Act and if so the
amount that will be repatriated. Through December 31, 2004, the Company has not provided deferred taxes
on certain foreign earnings because such earnings were intended to be indefinitely reinvested outside the
United States. Whether the Company will take advantage of this provision depends on a number of factors
including reviewing future Congressional guidance before a decision can be made. Until that time, the
Company will make no change in its current intention to indefinitely reinvest certain earnings of its foreign
subsidiaries. If the Company were to repatriate these earnings, a one-time tax benefit to the Company’s
consolidated results of operations of up to approximately $2.1 million could occur.

15. Disputes, Litigation, and Contingencies

Litigation and Other Disputes -

The Company is aware of various disputes and potential claims and is a party in various litigation
involving claims against the Company, some of which are covered by insurance. Based on facts currently
known, the Company believes that the ultimate liability, if any, which may result from known claims, disputes,
and pending litigation would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or its
results of operations with or without consideration of insurance coverage.

Insurance

The Company is predominantly self-insured through an insurance policy for employee health insurance
claims and is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims for certain of its employees. The amounts in
excess of the self-insured levels are fully insured. Self-insurance accruals are based on claims filed and an
estimate for significant claims incurred but not reported. Although the Company believes that adequate
reserves have been provided for expected liabilities arising from its self-insured obligations, it is reasonably
possible that management’s estimates of these liabilities will change over the near term as circumstances
develop.
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16. Commitments
Operating Leases

The Company is committed under various operating leases, which primarily relate to office space and
equipment. Total lease expense incurred under operating leases was approximately $11.9 million, $11.3 mil-
lion, and $8.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Future minimum
rental commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows (in thousands):

2005 $ 9,992
2006 . .o 7,833
2007 o e e e 5,917
2008 . 5,345
20000 e e e 2,553
TRereafter . . 15,813

$47,453

Other Commitments

At the time of the December 1998 acquisition by the Company of 93% of T.F. de Mexico, the Company
entered into a 30-year supply contract with Tubos de Acero de Mexico, S.A. (TAMSA). Under the supply
contract, TAMSA has been given the right to supply tubulars for the Company’s Mexican drill pipe operations
as long as the prices are on a competitive basis. This supply agreement does not obligate the Company to make
purchases from TAMSA for any location other than Mexico. The supply agreement also does not restrict the
Company’s ability to utilize tubulars manufactured by its affiliates, including Voest-Alpine.

In connection with the spinoff, the Company entered into a preferred supplier agreement with
Weatherford in which Weatherford agreed to purchase at least 70% of its requirements of drill stem products
from the Company, subject to certain exceptions. In return, the Company agreed to sell those products at
prices not greater than that at which it sells to similarly situated customers, and the Company provided
Weatherford a $30.0 million credit towards the purchase of those products. During 2003, the Company
extended the term of this contract by two years and reduced ‘the unused preferred supplier credit balance by
$6.6 million. The effect of the reduction in the supplier credit was a reduction in the accrued liability as a
credit to other income. Such adjustment is reflected in “Other Income (Expense), Net” in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2003. At December 31, 2004, the remaining credit
balance was $4.1 million, which is classified as “Other Accrued Liabilities” in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Weatherford purchased approximately $25.1 million of drill stem products from the Company
during 2004. Weatherford also purchased API tubing and accessory threading services from the Company
aggregating $3.9 million during 2004,

17. Related Parties

Until April 14, 2000, the Company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford. The Company was
spun off from Weatherford on April 14, 2000, through a distribution by Weatherford to its stockholders of all
of the Company’s Common Stock. Weatherford no longer owns any interest in the Company. Prior to the
Company’s 2003 Annual Meeting held in May 2003, the Company had seven Directors, five of which also
served on the Board of Weatherford. Following the 2003 Annual Meeting, the Company now has nine
Directors, of which only three serve on Weatherford’s Board.

The Company’s Drill Bits segment sells drill bits worldwide to oil and gas operators, including Newfield
Exploration Company (Newfield). In addition, a division of the Company’s Tubular Technology and Services
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segment also sells accessories directly to Newfield. Two of the Company’s directors, Mr. Trice and
Mr. Hendrix, are directors of Newfield and Mr. Trice is Newfield’s Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer. During 2004, Newfield purchased approximately $2.1 million of products from the Company. The
Company believes that the prices it charges are on terms comparable to those that would be available to
unaffiliated third parties.

18. Segment Information
Business Segments

The Company operates through three primary business segments: Drilling Products and Services, Drill
Bits and Tubular Technology and Services. In the first quarter of 2004, the Company announced an
organizational restructuring which collapsed the former Marine Products and Services segment into the
Tubular Technology and Services segment. This segment reporting change was made as these combined
operations have similar economic characteristics and will be managed by one chief operating decision maker.
Prior periods have been restated to conform to the current year presentation.

The Company’s Drilling Products and Services segment manufactures and sells a full range of proprietary
and API drill pipe, drill collars, heavyweight drill pipe and accessories. The Drill Bits segment designs,
manufactures and distributes fixed-cutter and roller-cone drill bits. The Company’s Tubular Technology and
Services segment designs, manufactures and sells a line of premium connections and associated premium
tubular products and accessories for oil country tubular goods and offshore applications. The Company also
has an Other segment, that prior to the first quarter of 2003, included the Company’s industrial drill pipe
operations and its construction casing and water well operations. The Company exited these product lines in
the first half of 2003, and for the remainder of 2003 and 2004, this segment has liquidated the remaining
industrial product inventories. Additionally, this segment included three of the Company’s technology joint
ventures, of which two of the joint ventures were either sold or terminated in the first quarter of 2004. See
Note 5 for further discussion on dispositions.

The Company’s products are used in the exploration and production of oil and natural gas. Segment
information below has been prepared in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information™. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described
in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, except that income tax (provision) benefit is allocated
to the segments by an application of the Company-wide effective rate to the net income (loss) of each
segment. Intersegment sales, which have been eliminated at the segment level, are recorded at cost plus an
agreed upon intercompany profit.




2004

Revenues from Unaffiliated
Customers ..............

Intersegment Revenues ... ..
Other Charges ............

Depreciation and
Amortization . ...........

Equity Income in
Unconsolidated Affiliates . .
Operating Income (Loss) ...

(Provision) Benefit for _
Income Taxes ...........

Capital Expenditures for
Property, Plant, and"
Equipment..............

Interest Expense...........
Total Assets ..............
2003

Revenues from Unaffiliated
Customers . .............

Other Charges ............

Depreciation and
Amortization . . . .. e
Equity Income (Loss) in
Unconsolidated Affiliates . .
Operating Income (Loss) ...
(Provision) Benefit for
Income Taxes ...........

Capital Expenditures for
Property, Plant, and
Equipment..............

Interest Expense . ..........
Total Assets ..............
2002

Revenues from Unaffiliated
Customers . .............

Other Charges ............

Depreciation and
Amortization ............
Equity Income (Loss) in
Unconsolidated Affiliates . .
Operating Income (Loss) ...
(Provision) Benefit for
Income Taxes ...........
Capital Expenditures for
Property, Plant, and
Equipment..............
Interest Expense .. .........
Total Assets ..............
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Drilling Products

Tubular

Technology and

75

and Services Drill Bits Services Other Corporate Total
(In thousands)

$390,617 $326,918 $226,233 $ 1875 § — § 945,643
— — 348 — — 348

2,051 — 3,207 — 3,777 9,035
15,237 12,121 12,751 195 2,916 43,220
1,565 — — - — 1,565
90,509 70,542 20,884 (2,117) (38,146) 141,672
(27,624} (20,242) (5,267) 394 21,029 (31,710)
8,808 18,794 4,986 446 4,845 37,87%
614 110 213 2 40,950 41,889
489,684 519,258 258,517 359 76,643 1,344,466
$308,297 $258,975 $226,607 $ 9939 § — $ 803818
24,924 — 425 12,396 78 37,823
14912 11,191 13,424 3,356 1,805 44,688
461 - — -(939) - (478)
18,776 58,443 7,634 (16,754) (22,802) 45,297
(8,366) (15,062) 1,082 4,681 13,426 (4,239)
16,260 10,175 9,664 940 4,379 41,418
514 7 507 5 42,838 43,871
478,714 450,653 273,587 8,721 50,386 1,262,061
$317,280 $ 5270 $258,458 $ 28,382 3§ — $ 609,390
2,360 — 220 — 4,465 7,045
12,252 249 13,914 1,475 941 28,831
5,989 — — (647) — 5,342
58,029 796 12,824 (1,124) (23,530) 46,995
(20,835) (276) (695) 425 13,807 (7.574)
22,781 — 14,879 2,041 6,080 45,781
605 — 810 S 25,620 27,040
497,243 394,352 208,393 58,988 66,373 1,315,349
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Foreign Operations and Export Sales

Financial information by geographic segment for each of the three years ended December 31, 2004 is
summarized below. Revenues are attributable to countries based on the location of the entity selling products
rather than ultimate use. Long-lived assets represent long-term assets excluding deferred tax assets.

United Latin
States Canada America Italy Asia Other Total
(In thousands)
2004
Revenues ............. $577,479  $72,950 $43,986  $20,938  $123,100 $107,190  $945,643
Long-Lived Assets ..... 413,431 18,405 73,336 42,752 78,741 118,965 745,630
2003
Revenues ............. $458,421  $84,213  $51,567 $11,818 $100,793 $ 97,006 3$803,818
Long-Lived Assets ..... 458,791 18,358 75,237 43,426 58,900 93,971 748,683
2002 '
~ Revenues ............. $445,114  $38,175 $10,212 $24,564 § 63,746 $ 27,579  $609,390

Long-Lived Assets ... .. 518,406 19,806 88,163 35,757 85,465 45,248 792,845

"Major Customers and Credit Risk

Substantially all of the Company’s customers are engaged in the exploration and development of .oil and
gas reserves. The Company’s drill pipe, drill bit products and other related products are sold primarily to rig
contractors, operators and rental companies. The Company’s premium tubulars and connections are sold
primarily to operators and distributors. This concentration of customers may impact the Company’s overall
exposure to credit risk, either positively or negatively, in that customers may be similarly affected by changes
in economic and industry conditions. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and
does not generally require collateral in support of its trade receivables. The Company maintains reserves for
potential credit losses, and actual losses have historically been within the Company’s expectations. Foreign
sales also present various risks, including risks of war, civil disturbances and governmental activities that may
limit or disrupt markets, restrict the movement of funds, or result in the deprivation of contract rights or the
taking of property without fair consideration. Most of the Company’s foreign sales, however, are to large
international companies, in-country national oil companies, or are secured by a letter of credit or similar
arrangements.

In the three years ended December 31, 2004, there were no individual customers who accounted for 10%
or more of total revenues.
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19. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table presents unaudited quarterly financial data for 2004 and 2003:

2004 (a)
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues .. .. .. P S $101,481  $224,666  $246,366  $283,130
Gross Profit . . ..o e 77,589 88,437 97,573 121,237
Other Charges ... 2,734(b) - 2,498(c)  3,803(d) —_
Selling, General and Administrative ..................... 53,944 35,672 59,312 65,201
Operating Income. ............. ..., P 20,911 30,267 34,458 56,036
Income from Continuing Operations .......0............. 6,564 . 12,045 17,234 28,950
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax .. 642 (9,885) 21 (305)
NetIncome. ..ot B 7,206 < 2,160 17,255 28,645
Basic Net Income Per Share(e): ~

Income from continuing operations .................... $§ 005 $ 010 $ 014 $ 023

Income (loss) from discontinued operations............. 0.01 (0.08) — —

Net HICOME . - ..o $ 006 $ 002 $ 014 $ 023
Basic Weighted Average Shares Outstanding ... ........... 122,044 122,767 123,805 124,669
Diluted Net Income Per Share(e): ) v

Income from continuing operations .................... $§ 005 $ 010 $ 014 § 023

Income (loss) from discontinued operations............. 0.01 (0.08) — —

Nt HICOME - ..o $ 006 $ 002 § 004 § 023
Diluted Weighted Average Shares Outstanding . .';.... ... .. 124,262 126,603 127,614
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2003
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share data)

REVENUES . o oottt et e e $182,885 § 181,243 $212,928  $226,762
Gross Profit. .. ... . e 59,416 52,868 (f) 74,338 83,624
Other Charges . .......coveeurinencerneinanns — 78(g) — 31,320¢h)
Selling, General, and Administrative ............... 42,531 43,475 51,962 55,583
Operating Income (Loss) ................. ... ..., 16,885 9,315(a)(b) 22,376 (3,279)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations. ........ 4,354 3,477(a)(b) 7,405 (10,579)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of

TAX . oottt e (320) 349 79 425
Net Income (LoSS) ... 4,034 3,826 7,484 (10,154)
Basic Net Income (Loss) Per Share(e):

Income (loss) from continuing operations ........ $ 003 § 0.03 $ 006 $ (0.08)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . ... .. — — — —

Net income (1088) .. ... $ 003 3§ 003 - $§ 006 $ (0.08)
Basic Weighted Average Shares Outstanding........ 121,377 121,636 121,775 121,792
Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share(e):

Income (loss) from continuing operations ........ $ 003 3 0.03 $ 006 $ (0.08)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations. ...... — — — —

Net income (1088) .. ..o, $ 003 § 0.03 $ 006 $ (0.08)
Diluted Weighted Average Shares Outstanding . .. ... 122,977 123,576 123,308 121,792
As a result of the Company’s testing of internal controls in connection with Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404

requirements, the Company reported a material weakness in its revenue recognition practices. The
material weakness relates to inadequate documentation supporting the Company’s revenue recognition
procedures in certain of its operating divisions (See ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures).As a result of
the material weakness, the Company tested revenue transactions and determined that while title and risk
of loss had transferred to the customer, in certain instances the supporting documentation did not meet all
of the requirements to recognize revenue prior to the products being in the physical possession of the
customer. Therefore, the revenue and profits from these transactions are required to be deferred until the
period in which the customer takes physical possession. The first three quarters of 2004 have been
restated, as previously reported in the Company’s 10-Q’s, to properly reflect these deferred revenue
transactions. The impact of this restatement on the first, second and third quarters of 2004
was:ajrevenues were increased (decreased) by $(28,077,000), $(549,000) and $(3,895,000), respec-
tively, b) operating income was increased (decreased) by $(5,230,000), $(217,000) and $(2,153,000),
respectively, ¢) net income from continuing operations was increased (decreased) by $(3,399,500),
$(141,050) and $(1,399,450), respectively, and d) basic and diluted net income per share was increased
(decreased) by $(0.03), $0.00 and $(0.01), respectively. The impact on prior years’ financial statements
was not material.

Includes other charges of $1.8 million related to the Drilling Products rationalization program and
$0.9 million of severance costs associated with the organizational restructuring of the Company’s Tubular
Technology Services segment in the first quarter of 2004.

Includes other charges of $2.3 million for severance costs associated with the organizational restructuring
of the Company’s Tubular Technology Services segment and $0.2 million related to the Drilling products
rationalization program in the second quarter of 2004,
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Includes other charges of $3.8 million in the third quarter of 2004 related to the relocation of the
Company’s corporate offices in September 2004.

Earnings per share (EPS) in each quarter is computed using the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during that quarter while EPS for the full year is computed by taking the average of the
weighted average number of shares outstanding each quarter. Thus, the sum of the four quarters’ EPS
may not equal the full-year EPS.

Includes $6.4 million of other charges in the second quartér of 2003 related to inventory reserves for
exited product lines, which were classified as cost of sales.

Includes other charges of $1.5 million for stock compensation expense and a $1.4 million credit for a
previously recorded contingent liability in the second quarter of 2003.

Includes other charges of $31.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2003 related to fixed asset write-downs
and asset impairments related to two technology joint ventures.

See Note 3 for further discussion of 2004 and 2003 other charges.
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20. Subsidiary Guarantor Financial Information’

The following condensed consolidating statements of operations for the three-year periods ended
December 31, 2004, condensed consolidating balance sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and
condensed consolidating statements of cash flows for the three-year periods ended December 31, 2004 are
provided for the Company’s domestic subsidiaries that are guarantors of debt securities issued by the
Company. The Company’s obligations to pay principal and interest under the 9% and 9% Senior Notes are
guaranteed on a joint and several basis by all of the Company’s domestic subsidiaries. The guarantees are full
and unconditional and the guarantor subsidiaries are 100% owned by Grant Prideco, Inc. :

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2004

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarg:lltors Eliminations Total
. i (In thousands) .
REVENUES . . ottt $ —  $649,202  $296,441 $ —  $945,643
Operating Expenses:
Costofsales ......................... — 397,176 163,631 — 560,807
Selling, general and administrative ... ... — 160,536 73,593 — 234,129
Other charges ............... ... . .... — 6,984 2,051 —_ 9,035
— 564,696 239,275 — 803,971
Operating Income ...................... — 84,506 57,166 — 141,672
Interest Expense............. ... .. ... .. (36,758) (4,486) (645) — (41,889)
Equity in Subsidiaries, Net of Taxes....... 80,383 — — (80,383) —
Other Income (Expense), Net............ — 2,425 (2,027) — 398
Equity Income in Unconsolidated Affiliates — 1,565 — — 1,565
43,625 (496) (2,672) (80,383) (39,926)
Income From Continuing Operations Before
Income Taxes and Minority Interest .. ... 43,625 84,010 54,494 (80,383) 101,746
Income Tax (Provision) Benefit .......... 11,641 (30,100) (13,251) — (31,710)
Income From Continuing Operations Before
Minority Interests .................... 55,266 53,910 41,243 (80,383) 70,036
Minority Interests ...................... — — (5,243) — (5,243)
Income From Continuing Operations ... ... 55,266 53,910 36,000 (80,383) 64,793
Loss From Discontinued Operations, Net of
Tax .o — (9,527) — — (9,527)
NetIncome ........................... $ 55,266 $ 44,383 § 36,000 $(80,383) § 55,266

30




GRANT PRIDECO, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2003

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Total
(In thousands)
Revenues.............. [P, $ —  $529,661  $274,157 $ —  $803,818
Operating Expenses: .
Costofsales.......... e — 407,411 126,161 — . 533,572
Selling, general and administrative .. .... — 119,805 73,746 — 193,551
- Othercharges........................ — 23,475 7,923 — 31,398
— 550,691 207,830 — 758,521
Operating Income (Loss) ................ — (21,030) 66,327 — . 45,297
Interest Expense.................. ... .. (36,644) {6,564) (663) — (43,871)
Equity in Subsidiaries, Net of Taxes....... 26,741 — —  (26,741) —
Other Income (Expense), Net............ 3,489 17,245 (9,570) — 11,164
Equity Loss in Unconsolidated Affiliates . .. — (478) — — (478)
‘ (6,414) 10,203 (10,233) (26,741) (33,185)
Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations
Before Income Taxes and Minority
Interest ......... ... ..o, (6,414)  (10,827) 56,094 (26,741) 12,112
Income Tax (Provision) Benefit .......... 11,604 4,032 {19,875) — {4,239)
Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations
Before Minority Interests .............. 5,190 (6,795) 36,219 (26,741) 7,873
Minority Interests .......... ... ... ... — — (3,216) — (3,216)
Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations 5,190 (6,795) 33,003 (26,741) 4,657
Income From Discontinued Operations, Net .
of Tax ... ... i — 533 — — 533
Net Income (Loss) ..................... $ 5190 § (6,262) $ 33,003  §$(26,741) $ 5,190
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2002

Revenues............. ... .. ... ... ...

Operating Expenses
Costofsales...........................
Selling, general and administrative ........
Other charges . .................. e

Operating Income ........................
Interest Expense.......... S
Equity in Subsidiaries, Net of Taxes.........
Other Income (Expense), Net..............
Equity Income in. Unconsolidated Affiliates . ..

Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations
Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit ............

Income From Continuing Operations Before
Minority Interests ......................

Minority Interests ........................

Income From Continuing Operations ........

Loss From Discontinued Operations, Net of
Tax ..o

Income Before Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change .....................

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change . ...

NetIncome ........ ... ...

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarg?ltors Eliminations Total
(In thousands)
$ —  $445,114 $164,276 $ —  $609,390
— 361,477 110,743 — 472,220
— 64,043 19,087 — 83,130
— 5,745 1,300 — 7,045
— 431,265 131,130 — 562,395
— 13,849 33,146 — 46,995
(23,003) (2,919) (1,118) — (27,040)
22,506 — — (22,506) —
— 1,265 (2,247) — (982)
— 5,342 — — 5,342
(497) 3,688 (3,365) (22,506) (22,680)
(497) 17,537 29,781  (22,506) 24,315
7,131 (2,702)  (12,003) — (7,574)
6,634 14,835 17,778 (22,506) 16,741
— — (3,051) — (3,051)
6,634 14,835 14,727 (22,506) 13,690
— (644) — — (644)
6,634 14,191 14,727 (22,5006) 13,046
— (6,412) — — (6,412)
$ 6,634 $ 7779 $ 14727  $(22,506) § 6,634
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CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2004

Non-
Parent Guarantors  Guarantors Eliminations Total
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash ........... . .. $ —  $30,721 $ 16,831 §$ — § 47,55
Restricted cash .................... — — 231 — 231
Accounts receivable, net............. — 133,589 68,495 — 202,084
Invéntories . ......... ... ... ... .. ... — 193,738 95,082 — 288,820
Deferred charges . .................. — 17,204 — — 17,204
Current deferred tax assets........... — 24,236 2,237 — 26,473
Other current assets .......... P — 5,920 8,483 — 14,403
— 405,408 191,359 — 596,767
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net..... — 141,793 102,512 — 244,305
Goodwill ....... ... ... ... — 206,004 187,989 — 393,993
Investment In and Advances to
Subsidiaries . ....... ... ... .. ... 1,080,596 — — (1,080,596) —
Investment In and Advances to
Unconsolidated Affiliates ............ — 49,159 — — 49,159
Other AsSetS ... vt - 6,101 38,357 15,784 — 60,242

$1,086,697 $840,721 $497,644 $(1,080,596) $1,344,466

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings and current

portion of long-term debt .......... $ — § 4181 $ - 3 — $ 4181
Accounts payable................... — 40,912 30,829 — 71,741
Deferred revenues .................. — 21,413 — — 21413
Current deferred tax liabilities ... ... .. — 47) 3,155 — 3,108
Other accrued liabilities ............. 6,673 56,821 31,564 — 95,058

6,673 123,280 65,548 — 195,501
Long-Term Debt ..................... 374,483 3,290 — — 377,773
Deferred Tax Liabilities .. ............. — 10,536 25,897 — 36,433
Other Long-Term Liabilities ........... — 11,954 1,270 — 13,224
Commitments and Contingencies ....... — — — — —
Minority Interests .................... — — 15,994 — 15,994
Stockholders” Equity . ................. 705,541 691,661 388,935 (1,080,596) 705,541

$1,086,697 $840,721 $497.644 $(1,080,596) $1,344,466
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CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2003

Parent Guarantors Guﬁgg;ors Eliminations Total
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash...................... $ — $ 2620 $ 16,610 $ — § 19,230

Restricted cash ...... e — 18 265 — 283

Accounts receivable, net ... .. — 118,303 93,982 — 212,285

Inventories . ................ — 160,982 71,012 — 231,994

Current deferred tax assets ... — 28,345 1,938 — 30,283

Other current assets ......... — 5,573 11,215 — 16,788

— 315,841 195,022 —_ 510,863
Property, Plant and Equipment,

Net.. ..o — 164,537 86,699 — 251,236
Goodwill..................... — 208,952 187,992 — 396,944
Investment In and Advances to

Subsidiaries ................ 982,881 — — (982,881) —_
Investment In and Advances to

Unconsolidated Affiliates .. ... — 47,786 —_ — 47,786
Other Assets ................. 7,682 29,832 17,718 — 55,232

$990,563  $766,948  $487,431  $(982,881) $1,262,061

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Short-term borrowings and
current portion of long-term

debt..................... $ — §$ 9,166 $ 1967 § — $ 11,073
Accounts payable ........... — 49,091 25,317 — 74,408
Current deferred tax liabilities — 6 3,757 — 3,763
Other accrued liabilities . . .. .. 3,260 39,595 34,156 — 77,011

3,260 97,798 65,197 — 166,255
Long-Term Debt.............. 374,305 50,406 2,142 — 426,853
Deferred Tax Liabilities . ....... —_ 6,912 20,053 — 26,965
Other Long-Term Liabilities . . . . 6,884 9,289 7,670 — 23,843
Commitments and Contingencies — — — — —
Minority Interests ............. —_— — 12,031 —_ 12,031
Stockholders’ Equity........... 606,114 602,543 380,338 (982,881) 606,114

$990,563  $766,948  $487,431  $(982,881) $1,262,061




GRANT PRIDECO, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2004

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net cash (used in) provided by

operating activities ................

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash

acquired........... ...l

Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of

cash disposed ......................

Proceeds from sale of discontinued

operations, net of cash disposed .......

Investments in and advances to

unconsolidated affiliates..............

" Capital expenditures for property, plant

and equipment .......... ... ...
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets .......

Net cash used in investing activities . ..

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Repayments on debt, net ..............
Purchases of treasury stock............. )
Proceeds from stock option exercises. . . . .
ESPP Purchases......................

Net cash provided by :(used in)

financing activities ................

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash

Net Increase in Cash ...................
Cash at Beginning of Year ...............

CashatEndof Year....................

Non-
Parent ° Guarantors Guarg:tors Eliminations Total
(In thousands)

$(24,211) $116,546  $ 20,835 $— $113,170
— (33,833) — — (33,833)
— 1,349 g31 — 2,180
— 19,859 — — 19,859
— (4,167) — — (4,167
—  (18,592)  (19,287) — (37,879)
— 6,911 1,548 . — 8,459
— (28,473) (16,908) — (45,381)
—(59972)  (4,129) — (64,101)
(2,508) — — - (2,508)
25,791 — — — 25,791
928 o 928
24211 (59,972)  (4.129) — (39,890)
— — 423 — 423
L — 28,101 221 — 28,322
— 2,620 16610 - 19,230
$ — $30721 §$ 16831 $— $ 47,552
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/
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31, 2003

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Total

{In thousands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities . ............... $(20,381) $78,908 § 24,411 $— $ 82,938

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash

acquired........ ... i il (1,861) (1,250) (5,161) — (8,272)
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of
cash disposed ...................... 24,064 6,300 — — 30,364
Investments in and advances to
unconsolidated affiliates.............. — (5,459) — — (5,459)
Capital expenditures for property, plant
and equipment ............ ... . ..... — (23,461) (17,957) — (41,418)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets ....... — 796 185 = 981
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities ................ 22,203 (23,074) (22,933) — (23,804)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Repayments on debt, net .............. — (55,904) (4,686) — (60,590)
Purchases of treasury stock............. (2,388) — — —_ (2,388)
Proceeds from stock option exercises. . . . . 566 — — - 566
Net cash used in financing activities . .. (1,822)  (55,904) (4,686) — (62,412)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash — — 630 P 630
Net Decrease in Cash . .................. — (70 (2,578) — (2,648)
Cash at Beginning of Year ............... — 2,690 19,188 — 21,878

Cashat Endof Year.................... $ — $2620 § 16,610 $— $ 19,230




GRANT PRIDECO, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31, 2002

Non-
Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Total

(In thousands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities ................ $ 103,332 $§ (991) $ 16,345 $— $ 118,686
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash

acquired. . . ... .. .. {266,543) — 1,371 — (265,172)
Investments in and advances to :
unconsolidated affiliates............ — (3,794) — — (3,794)
Capital expenditures for property, plant
and equipment ............ ... — (35,718) (10,063) — {45,781)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets ... .. — 360 51 = 911
Net cash used in investing activities (266,543)  (38,652) (8,641) {313,836)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Borrowings on debt, net ............. 164,317 40,428 2,401 — 207,146
Purchases of treasury stock........... (2,279) — — — (2,279)
Proceeds from stock option exercises. . . 1,173 - — — = 1,173
Net cash used in financing activities 163,211 40,428 2,401 —_ 206,040
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on
Cash ... .. — — 604 — 604
Net Increase in Cash ................. — 735 10,709 — 11,454
Cash at Beginning of Year ............. — 1,905 8,479 = 10,384
Cashat Endof Year.................. $ — $ 2690 $ 19,188 $— $ 21878
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants On Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(¢e) under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the Exchange Act). Based on that evaluation and the material weakness described below, our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that, as of the end
of the period covered by this report (December 31, 2004), for the reasons discussed below our disclosure
controls and procedures were not effective in providing reasonable assurance that information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports filed or submitted by us under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting and for performing an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of our chief executive and principle financial officers, and effected by our board of directors and
management to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepara-
tion of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004. In making this assessment, it used the framework entitled “Internal Control —
Integrated Framework” set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Based on its evaluation of the COSO framework applied to Grant Prideco’s internal control over
financial reporting, and the identification of the material weakness described below, management concluded
that Grant Prideco did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004.

A material weakness is a significant control deficiency, or combination of significant control deficiencies,
that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected.

Our revenue recognition policy provides for the recognition of revenue for finished products delivered to
our customer-owned inventory yards, and not yet in the physical possession of our customers, if certain criteria
are met. The internal controls over such transactions at our Drilling Products and Services and Tubular
Technology and Services segments were ineffective at December 31, 2004. Specifically, our controls over
documentation of delivery terms requested by the customer and customer notification necessary to record
revenue prior to customer possession of the product were ineffective at December 31, 2004. As a result of
these ineffective controls, revenue was recorded during 2004 for certain product sales which had not yet met
all requirements to recognize revenue. During the fourth quarter of 2004, we adjusted revenues, net income
and diluted earnings per share to exclude those fourth quarter sales not meeting all revenue recognition
criteria. We also restated each previously reported 2004 quarterly revenues and net income, and for the first
and third quarters, diluted earnings per share.
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Actions Taken to Correct Material Weakness

In order to address the material weakness identified, management intends to make corrective measures
during 2005 including: 1) requiring a checklist to be completed prior to revenue recognition to ensure that all
sales orders have the required documentation and 2) initiating processes and procedures to better document
the terms of sales transactions including transaction review and monitoring activities. We believe that these
corrective actions will remedy the identified material weakness with respect to, and improve, both our
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting at December 31, 2004. We
have discussed our corrective actions and future plans with our Audit Committee, which has approved them,
and with our independent registered public accounting firm. Such firm has an attestation report on our
management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting, and such firm’s attestation report is
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Controls

Except as described above, there has been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
during our most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting. . .
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grant Prideco, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Grant Prideco, Inc. (Company) did not maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, because of the effect of the material
weakness identified in management’s assessment and described below, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been identified and included in management’s
assessment. The Company’s revenue recognition policy provides for the recognition of revenue for finished
products delivered to the Company’s customer-owned inventory yards, and not yet in the physical possession
of its customers, if certain criteria are met. The internal controls over such transactions at the Company’s
Drilling Products and Services and Tubular Technology and Services segments were ineffective at Decem-
ber 31, 2004. Specifically, the Company’s controls over documentation of delivery terms requested by the
customer and customer notification necessary to record revenue prior to customer possession of the product
were ineffective at December 31, 2004. As a tesult of these ineffective controls, revenue was recorded during
2004 for certain product sales which had not yet met all requirements to recognize revenue. During the fourth
quarter of 2004, the Company adjusted revenues, net income and diluted earnings per share to exclude those
fourth quarter sales not meeting all revenue recognition criteria. The Company also restated each previously
reported 2004 quarterly revenues and net income, and for the first and third quarters, diluted earnings per
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share. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the 2004 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report
dated March 29, 2005 on those financial statements.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Grant Prideco, Inc. did not maintain effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the
COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of control criteria, Grant Prideco, Inc. did not maintain effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Houston, Texas
March 29, 2005
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Grant Prideco’s Proxy Statement
for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Grant Prideco’s Proxy Statement
for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Grant Prideco’s Proxy Statement
for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Grant Prideco’s Proxy Statement
for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Grant Prideco’s Proxy Statement
for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this report or incorporated herein by reference:
1. Our consolidated financial statements are listed on page 33 of this report.
2. Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the three years ended December 31,
2004.

Note: All financial statement schedules not filed with this report required by Regulation S-X
have been omitted as not applicable or not required or the information required has been included in
the notes to financial statements.

3. Our exhibits are listed below under Item 15(b).
(b) Exhibits:

2.1 Distribution Agreement, dated as of March 22, 2000, between Weatherford and Grant Prideco, Inc.
(incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on
Form S-3, Reg. No. 333-35272).

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Grant Prideco, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Ex-
hibit 3.1 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-3, Reg. No. 333-35272).
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3.2

4.1

42
4.3%

4.4*

4.5%

4.6%

4.7

4.8*

4.9*

4.10

4.11
4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

Restated Bylaws of Grant Prideco, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Grant Prideco,
Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 1-15423, as amended).

Indenture for 9°%4% Senior Notes due 2007 (incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Grant
Prideco, Inc’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, File
No. 1-15423).

Form of 9°4% Senior Notes due 2007 (included as part of Exhibit 4.1 above).

Grant Prideco, Inc. 2000 Non- Employee Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2000, File No. 1-15423).

Grant Prideco, Inc. 2000 Employee Stock Option and Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 1-15423, as
amended).

Grant Prideco, Inc. Executwe Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Ex-
hibit 10.9 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 1-15423, as
amended).

" Grant Prideco, Inc. Foreign Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.8 to Grant Prideco, Inc 's Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 1-15423, as
amended).

Grant Prideco, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 10, File
No. 1-15423, as amended).

Grant Prideco, Inc. 401(k) Savings Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Grant
Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 1-15423, as amended).

Grant Prideco, Inc. 2001 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001, File No. 1-15423).

Indenture relating to 9% Senior Notes due 2009 dated as of December 4, 2002, between Grant
Prideco Escrow Corp. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-15423, filed on
January 3, 2003).

Form of 9% Senior Notes due 2009 (included as part of Exhibit 4.10).

Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 20, 2002, among Grant Prideco, Inc., Grant Prideco
Escrow Corp., certain of Grant Prideco, Inc.’s subsidiaries, and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File
No. 1-15423, filed on January 3, 2003).

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2002, among Grant Prideco, Inc., certain of its
subsidiaries, the Lenders party thereto, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as US, Deutsche
Bank AG, Canada Branch, as Canadian Agent, Transamerica Business Capital Corporation, as
Documentation Agent, JP Morgan Chase Bank, as Co-Syndication Agent, and Lynch Capital, as
Co-Syndication Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-15423, filed on January 3, 2003).

Security Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2002, among Grant Prideco, Inc., certain of its
subsidiaries and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as agent (incorporated by Reference to
Exhibit 4.7 to Grant Prideco, Inc s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-15423, filed on
January 3, 2003).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2002 between Grant Prideco
Canada Ltd. and Deutsche Bank AG, Canada Branch, as agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.8 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-15423, filed on
January 3, 2003).

Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 of Grant
Prideco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 1-15423).

Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18 of Grant
Prideco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 1-15423).
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4.19

4.20*

4.21%
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4.23*%
4.24*
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10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5%

10.6*

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13
10.14
10.15

Security Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2002 between Grant Prideco Canada Ltd. and
Deutsche Bank AG, Canada Branch, as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to Grant
Prideco, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-15423, filed on January 3, 2003).

Form of Subsidiary Guarantee by certain of Grant Prideco, Inc.’s subsidiaries in favor of Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to Grant
Prideco, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K, File No. 1-15423, filed on January 3, 2003).

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.21 of Grant Prideco’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 1-15423).

Form of Executive Restricted-Stock Agreement (with tandem tax rights).

Form of Executive Restricted-Stock Agreement.

Form of Executive Stock Option Agreement (with accelerated vesting upon termination).

Form of Executive Stock Option Agreement (without accelerated vesting upon termination).

See Exhibits 2.1 and 4.1 through 4.24 for certain items material contracts.

Employment Agreement with Michael McShane dated June 26, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2002, File No. 1-15423).

Employment Agreement with Matthew Fitzgerald dated January 12, 2004 (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Grant Prideco Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004).

Employment Agreement with Philip Choyce dated April 14, 2000 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.26 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, Reg. No. 333-102635).
Form of Change of Control Agreement with William Chunn, Dan Latham, Warren Avery and
Philip Choyce (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000, File No. [-15423).

Form of Change of Control Agreement with David Black, Jim Breihan, Greg Boane, Jay Mitchell
and John Deane (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Annual Report
on 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, File No. 1-15423).

Preferred Supplier Agreement dated April 14, 2000, between Grant Prideco, Inc. and Weatherford
International, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Weatherford International, Inc.’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000, File No. 1-13086).
Amendment No. 1 to preferred supplier agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of
Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003).
Tax Allocation Agreement dated April 14, 2000 between Grant Prideco, Inc. and Weatherford
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Weatherford International, Inc.’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000, File No. 1-13086).

Investment Agreement, dated as of April 29, 1999, by and between Grant Prideco, Inc. and Voest-
Alpine Schienen GmbH & Co KG (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Grant Prideco,
Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 1-15423, as amended).

Operating Agreement, dated as of July 23, 1999, by and Grant Prideco, Inc. and Voest-Alpine
Schienen GmbH & CoKG (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s
Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 1 -15423, as amended).

Supply Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2003, by and between Voest-Alpine Stahlrohr Kindberg

GmbH & Co KG and Grant Prideco, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of Grant
Prideco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 1-15423).

Amendment No. 1 to Voest-Alpine Supply Agreement.
Amendment No. 2 to Voest-Alpine Supply Agreement.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 19, 1998, by and between Weatherford, Pridecomex
Holding, S.A. de C.V., Tubos de Acero de Mexico S.A. and Tamsider S.A. de C.V. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 10, File
No. 1-15423, as amended).




10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19*

21.1

23.1
31.1
31.2
321

Master Technology License Agreement, dated as of June 19, 1998, by and between Grant Prideco,
Inc. and DST Distributors of Steel Tubes Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to
Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 1-15423, as amended).
Agreement, dated as of November 12, 1998, by and between Tubos de Acero de Mexico, Tamsider
S.A. de C.V., DST Distributors of Steel Tubes Limited, Techint Engineering Company, Weather-
ford, Grand Prideco, Pridecomex Holding, S.A. de C.V. and Grant Prideco, S.A. de C.V.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on
Form 10, File No. 1-15423, as amended).

Agreement, dated as of December 1, 1998, by and between Tubos de Acero de Mexico, Tamsider
S.A. de C.V., Weatherford and Pridecomex Holdings, S.A. de C.V. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.19 to Grant Prideco, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form 10, File No. 1-15423, as
amended).

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of Grant
Prideco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 1-15423).
Subsidiaries of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of Grant Prideco’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 1-15423).

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.
Certification of Michael Mc¢Shane.
Certification of Matthew D. Fitzgerald.
Section 906 Certification.

* Designates a management or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SCHEDULE 11

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Additions
Balance At Charged to Charged to Balance
Beginning Cost and Other At End
Descriptions of Year Expenses Accounts Deductions of Year
(In thousands)
2004: ‘
Allowance for Uncollectible
Accounts . ... $ 3,539 $ 3,844 $1,141 $ 3500 $ 8,024
Inventory Reserves . ........... $14,910 $ 6,961 $ 226 $9,084 $13,013
2003: _
Allowance for Uncollectible
Accounts . ................. $ 2,815 $ 1,948 $ (397) $ 827 $ 3,539
Inventory Reserves ............ $10,695 $11,718 $ (312) $7,191 $14,910
2002:
Allowance for Uncollectible
Accounts .................. $ 1,407 $ 1,106 $ 366 $ 64 $ 2,815
Inventory Reserves ............ $ 9,321 $ 5,844 $ (5 $4,465 $10,695
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GRANT PRIDECO, INC.

By: /s/  MICHAEL MCSHANE
Michael McShane

Chief Executive Officer, President,
and Chairman of the Board

Date: March 31, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following individuals on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Capacity in Which Signed Date
/s/  MICHAEL MCSHANE Chief Executive Officer, President and March 31, 2005
Michael McShane Chairman of the Board

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ MATTHEW D. FITZGERALD Senior Vice President and Chief March 31, 2005

Matthew D. Fitzgerald ~ Financial Qfﬁcer

(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ GREG L. BOANE Corporate Controller March 31, 2005

Greg L. Boane (Principal Accounting Officer) ‘
/s/ DAvID J. BUTTERS Director March 31, 2005

David J. Butters

/s/  ELioT M. FRIED Director March 31, 2005
Eliot M. Fried

/s/  DeNNis R. HENDRIX Director March 31, 2005
Dennis R. Hendrix

/s/ HAaroLD E. LAYMAN Director March 31, 2005
Harold E. Layman

/s/ SHELDON B. LUBAR Director March 31, 2005
Sheldon B. Lubar
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Signature

/s/  ROBERT K. MOSES, Jr.

Capacity in Which Signed

Robert K. Moses, Jr.

/s/ JosepH E. REID

Joseph E. Reid

/s/  DaviD A. TRICE

David A. Trice

Director

Director

Director

Date

March 31, 2005

March 31, 2005

March 31, 2005
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